UK Mail Group Plc

*A2
A34 274
OOOOOOOOOOOOOO

E AR

BFVZEM®
06/2013 #157




2
=
<
-
O

ORT&

a0
wo
<




T
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS >

REVENUE

2013 £475.4m

2012 | 77X T}
2011 | =TT up 10.8%

2010 I T to £475.4m
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX & EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
2013 [ X TN
2012 [T B o
tax and
eyl £16.1m | exceptional

2010 £17.8m items
0,
2009 [ ZREFST G A T @A | up 17.7%
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ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Group revenue

Adjusted
basic earnings
per share up
22.9% to
24.7p

2009 |
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DIVIDEND PER SHARE DECLARED
2013 18.8p

2012 [T Full yoar
- dividond up

)
2010 3.3% to 18.8p
20000 - idn]
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NET CASH
2013 -
2012 m Net cash up
£8.6m to

2011 £17.4m
2010 NS '
2009 e

£27.0m
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT >
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UK Mai perdermed strongly in 2013 Financial tighfights for the year
include,

> Group revenues up 10 8%

> Group PBT (beiore exceptional dems) up 17 7%

> Adjusted EPS (before exceptional items) up 22 9%, and

> Final divadend increased 5 1% to 12 4p per share

This 1s particularly pleasing given the continued market challenges we have
faced and the continued difficult econarmic background Further details are
proviged in the Chief Executives ‘Business Review' on page 4

Qur strategy remains Lo continue 1o build competitive advaniage, developing
and nvesting in our low cost integrated network drving down cost and
bringing to marke! new products and services to dnve profitable revenug
growth By caprialising on our leadershp and differentiated posittonung, we aim
to increase both the size ol the markets avatlatle to us and ous share of those
rmarkets and o lake advaniage of opportunities that anse

As you will read later n this report 1mail, ipostparcels and retail logistics, all
product mnovations of the fast lew years are gaming real traction now,
delivering real refumns for ihe business Qur wnvestment 10 anirastructure
contmues at pace with further nvestment 1n automatson and scanners putting
us at the forefront of the iIndustry

Our management teams have been further stiengthened dunng the year, not
only with a number of new appointments but increased training throughout the
business

The strength of our business should not be underestmated 1 was proud of not
only how the Group respanded 1o the unigue challenges posed by the hosting
of the 2012 Qlympics and Paralympic games, but the seemingly annual
demands placed on our network by the Brihish winter weather

These are all achigvements to be proud of

Looking forward the main operational challenge would seem to come from the
necessary relocation of our national hub given the impact of HS2 However,
with challenge comes oppostunity and this will provide us the window requiced
to further implement more automation, which to date has delivered real
efficiencies 1o the business

Governance

| am commutted to the highest standards of Corporate Governance | see 1t as
my job 1s to ensure that the Board works eflectively, fargely through ensuring we
have the night people with the appropnate skils and talents requared to form a
successiul leadership team

The Beard has a wide range of responsibilities but of the most important to me
are firstly, that the Board sets the tone for governance thzoughaut the group,
secondly, to debale and agree our sirategy, helding the execulive team
accouniable for its execution and thirgly, 1o ensure that we have the most
talented team to execute the stralegy

We are commutted to Corporate Responsibility ('CR') and regard the integration
of sound CR prachices (which take tnto account the interests of all our

stakeholders be they employees, custemers, sharehalders or the wider
communiiy) as a long-term, sustainable approach to business

Dunng the year we surveyed our employees for the frst tme The survey
produced sorme very uselul results which we will buiid onto improve our positicn

| also believe we afl have a part to play in helpng those unfortunate enough to be
out of work, and was particularly pleased when we, i parinership with Elmfigid
Training, announced the launch of ‘Appforthat — Apprenticestips with UK Mail

This iniative not only supperis our exishing work expenence programmes, but
enables those who complete the work experience programme the opportuniy to
go onto an Apprenticeship should a pesilion be avadable

Further details of these successes and others can be found in the ‘Qur Peaple’
and 'Corparate Responsibifity’ reports

Dwvidend

The Board has pioposed an increase in the Final Dvidend of 0 6p, laking the
Final Dradend 1o 12 4p (2012 11 8p), resulling 1n a total deadend for the year
of 188p (2012 18 2p)

This represents a full year ingrease of 3 3%

The lotal dwdend for the year 15 covered 1 31 limes by earnings (2012 095
times) The Board intends to grow dividends progressively over time 1o reflect
our targeted earnings growth, whilst also impraving the level of dividend cover

People
On behalf of the Board  would ke to thank all of our colleagues, and our

associates working within our franchise and pallet networks for their continued
hard work and commuitment i providing great service to our customers

As announced last year, Bill Cockbum stood down from the Board as Deputy
Chairman and Seniar Independent Divector in May 2012 Bill had served as a
non-execulive director since 2002 and had played a key mle in the
estabhishment of our Mail business  Hwould ke to thank Bill for lis many years
of excellent sevice and hus counselling

In September 2012 | was delighted to be able to welcome Jessica Burley fo the
Board Jessica bings a wide range of commercral and marketing expertise io the
Group particutarly in the on-line arena

Outlook

1 remain confident 1n our strategy and believe that the Group 1s well posiioned
io take advantage of opportunies as they anse

Improvements made to our systems over the last few years and operational
restructuring has left us with a lean and tocussed business, the benefits of which
should become apparent as the econcmy resumes growth

The evolution of our industry continues, not least wilh the anticipated
privatisahon of Royal Matl However with qur strong managerment team, highly
competitive business model and ‘obust balance sheet | believe we have ihe
necessary tools to generale good returns for our shareholders

Thank you agamn for your continued support

A
(Gt

Peter Kane, Chairman
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WHAT WE DO >

Out customers and markets

Ouw  customers range from the fargest Danks,
supermarkets, telecommumcation businesses, and
government, through to mid-range and small independent
companies and sole traders Key o our business model 1s
the development of new products and services expanding
the markets available fo us and mereasing ows share of
thase markets we are already in, whilst delivering the same

matbtenan

Our infrastructure

With over 30 years expenence in parcel, mall and
logistics services and with our extensive network of
50 sites, 2000 vehicles, 2.600 staff, nationwide mail
sortalion machmes and aulomation, this enables us
to provide industry leading sevice on an efficient
cost basis

high level, efficient service 1o our custemers

treen
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Our people

Our people have the support, traning and confidence {o
respond and enhance the customer experience
We encourage our people to be passignate, Innovative, and
empower them to make decisions We develop our people
with training both internally and externally Gur people know
what 15 nght or our company and customers due to the
training we undertake and the tools we provide for the job

srsurrrssecaas L N T L “4vsses

03




UK MAIL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2013 04

- |
BUSINESS REVIEW >

We are pleased with the performance we have delivered for the year,
with an encouraging first half iollowed by a strong second half
The key factor n this success has been our Parcels business

LA RN E AN R AR AR R R R AN RN R E R RN RN RN N N N N N N N N N N N R R R RSN ]

Introduchen

We are pleased with the perlormance we have delivered far the year, with
an enceuraging hrst hall tollowed by a strong second half The key factor in
this success has been our Parcels business which had particulasty high
volumes In the second half leaditg to an increase i market share and a
fload operating margin

Across our businesses we continug ie benefil frorm our strong market posiions, igh
service levels and efficient integrated network In March we expenenced the highest
ever daly volumes across our combined parcels and mail businesses and, given our
focus on our nefwork management, we continued to maintain our streng custamer
SEVICE fevels

Reported Gsoup revenues for the year at £475 4m were ¢p 10 8% compared to the
previous year  Adjusting fer the increase in Roya! Mail pnces implemented on 2 Apnl
2012 and twg less working days than in the previous year, underlying Group revenues
increased by 8 3%  Group profit before tax before exceptional #ems incieased by
17 7% on the previous year fo £17 8m

Qur Mail business (51% of Group revenues) grew s revenues on a reported basis by
161% on an underlyng basis, revenues were up by 10 2% compared with the
previous year  Fhis good revenue growth was diven by a cominuation of strong
customer relention and new business wins  Mail operating proft increased by 7 8%
16 £10 7m (2012 £100m) Cur Mail business remains well positioned n its market
with a healthy mpeline of new business oppariunities. We again saw strong progress
fromy imait and related new praduct mnovations

QOur Parcels business (40% of Group revenues) grew s revenues by 10% compared
1o the previous year reflecting ihe benelil of recent customer wins. The pricing
enmironment remaned challenging and the shift 1in mix towards B2C continued
Despite this mix effect the Parcels operating margin smproved to 8 6% for the year
(2042 68%) This ncrease n margin combined wih the geod revenue growth has
led to a sirong increase 1n ihe Parcels operaling profit of 40 6% 1o £16 3m (2012
£116m) We conbinue to focus on operational efficiency and innavalion to help dve
further Parcels margin improvement A key faclor here 15 our plans lo implement
further automation which s covered in mose detail later in this statement

Inour Courier business (3% of gioup revenues) revenues have declined as expected
by 19 6% compared to the pnor year Strong operalional managemeant hawever
rethuced aperaling costs, helping 1o resingl the operating profit decline to 6 7%

In our Paltets business (6% of group revenues) revenues showed a shight decling of
0 7% compared i0 the same penod (ast year Pallels operating profits have dechined
by 63 8% compared lo the same period st year, due pamanly 1o temporary gaps in

our agiomwde memder netwesrk wheeh resulted i addiional temporary operating
cosls During the penod we have stiengthened our Pallets management team and our
network issues are now resclved

The Board has proposed that the final dvidend be increased by 0 6pto 12 4p (2012
118p) The total dvadend far the year will Increase to 18 Bp {2012 18 2p)which1s
covered 1 31 times by eamings per share

Our cash generahion and financial position rematn strong with net cash balances at the
penod end of £27 0m (2012 £18 4m)

Strategy

Our aim 15 to conlinue 1o strengihen our position as the UK s leading independent
integrated postzl gioup  There are two Yey elements to this stralegy

First, we continue to enhance the market-leading, 'ow-cosl, mtegraled network that
underpins the compehtiveness of our businesses We are doing this by conlinuing to
dave down the cost base of our business and reshaping and extending our depot
network to maamese its efficiency and capacity  We have continued to mvest tn our
IT infrastructute so as ta increase efficiency and inboduce new information and data
services lo the end customer and will coniinue to consider future (nvestment
opporiunities, such as further auiomation of our network, assurming suitable financial
returns can be achieved

Second, we are focused ¢n conlinuing fo expand the size of the markets available to
us and on increasing our shar of those markets  To do so, we have intreduced new
and innovative products and seraces in botkr our Parcels and our Mai! businesses, &
sirategy which 15 gaining valuable traction

We have been working haid 1n recent years, through dnving efficiencies and
introgucing major product and service mnovatigns (o position ourselves as
competitively as possible 1o oulpaniarm our competitors and fo Ircrease our market
share




Aufomation

A key element that will increase our capacity and drive down costs 15 the further
automahion of our network  In 2010 we successfully partially autormated our
Birmuinghar hub This was undertaken at a cost of some £2m and has yielded
a nel denefit of some £1m per annum, famely through increased vehicle
utilisation Following this investmeni we now handle some 20% of our Parcels
volumes through our current automated sertation facilities

We intend {0 increase the level of aulomated sortahion to some 80% of our
Parcefs volumes, the maximum we believe ow business can achieve al this
stage, due to the freight we handle not all being compatible with automated
sortation  Fhis will wvolve the installation of further automaied sortation
equipment, at a capital cost of approximately £20m which we expect will be
incuried over the nex twa finaneial years  Thes wilt be funded rom our existing
cash resources and new bank faciliies We are targetng a double digit net
relum on the investment we make, achieving some net benefits 1n the year 1o
March 2015, and the full run rate of benefits achieved from Seplember 2015

We estimate thal this increased automation of our parcels operations will
increase owr central soriation capacity by same 45%

New Hub/HS2

Alongside our plans lor sutomation, we have also been in discussions with the
Department for Transport regarding therr plans for the new HS2 rail hink, which
will invelve the relocation of our Bimingham hub

Discussions are proceeding well, and further annguncements will be made
shortly once agteement has been reached wilh the Secretary of Stale for
Transport

05

Group revenues up

10.8%

Profit before tax
and exceptional
items up

17.7%

Parcels revenues up

10.0%

Mail revenues up

16.1%
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Alongside our pipeline of Innovative new products and high service
levels, greater automation I1s now a key factor In our plans to drive
further volume growth and margin enhancement across the Group
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Mail showed further growth 10 revenues of 16 1% to £2416m (2012
£208 1m) The Mait revenue growth includes the impact of the Royal Mal
pnce increase on 2 April 2012, which increased pnces by some 11% on an
annuahsed basis On an underlying basis, revenues increased by 10 2%

The further Royal Mall price increase on 2 Apnl 2013 was 3 3% (2012 12%), which
will not have such a distesting effect on underlying revenue growth so we will cease
to adjust for this factar in future

Gur mel volumes increased by seme 2% compared to the prior year, while the overall
UK mail markei has seen a decling an transactional volumes of some 5% per annum
n recent yasrs This gsawdh in market share has been achieved thiough genetaling
addimional mail volumes from existing cuslomers, largely due to switching from Royal
Mait as their prices increase, and a number of new customer wins

Malt operating profits were up 7 8% to £107m (2012 £100m) The operaling
margin reduced fo 4 4% (2012 4 8%), which is largely the “pass-through effect of
the 11% price ncrease (mposed by Royal Mail 1f the effect of the 11% price increase
imposed by Royal Mail 15 excluded the underlying mail margin 1s broadly siable
compared ta the prior year

To increase the efficiency of our aperations and to provide addiional Boites to our
cuslomers we are investing in two new, state of the art, mail sortation machings This
will involve an investment of some £1m  This investment reflects our confidence n
our mail busingss and its ability to develop with the market

UK Mail remains 2 market |leader with an operational template that 15 1deally suied 1o
adapt 1o the demands of an evolving mai! market, and we have continugd to focus on
grawing our business, by gaining addiionat volumes from new and existing
customers and drving our new product INnovations

An important Eactor i the volume grewth 1s pioduct nnovatton  imad our web-to-
pant postal service, conlnues to grow sliongly We have invesied fo increase our
capacity and 1o provide addiional sevices, such as high speed insertion  We are
developing this product further 1o suppon sis market leadership sncluding the
addiion of data semvices 1mait s average daiiy volumes were more than 60% higher
than those of a year ago  We have a strong pipeling of new opporiundiss for this
product as we entify new areas where 1t can be applied successfully

On 10 Oclober 2012 Royal Mail published a discussion document on ihe
development of access conlracts with the aim that the new agreements would be in
place by Apnl 2013 Overall, we believe that the document covered 1ssues {hat have
tang needed lo be addressed and, to that exient, we welcomed i 25 a step towards a
position of greater clanty for all market participants

The key terms of the new contract relate to minimum volymes contract vanabon and
the ability for Royal Mail to impose fulure pnce increases on operators who do not

provide all thew mail to Royal Mail We do nat anbicipate any matenal adverse impact
onour business from these thanges

We have therefore signed the new contract which has resulied in an access price
increase for our cusiomers of 3 3%, compared io the Increase of some 5% that would
have been imposed had we nat signed the contract We believe that all other access
operaters and most mail customers with direct access arrangements have also signed
the new conlrac!

The sale of Royal Mal} is widely expected o be announced later in the year The Royal
Mail accounts for the year to March 2012 showed that i had made a profit of £80m
fromaccess and, in ts 2013 results announcement, recenfirmed thal access made a
consilerable comrbution 1o the cost of funding the Universal Service network We
therelore fully expect 2 prvatised Royal Mail to seek to continug to benefit from access
mall arrangements, and we centinue to see them as an important business pariner for
UK Mail

Parcels

Revenues i Parcels, which comprises the Group's business-to-business,
bustness-to-consumer and wnternational parcel delivery service, were up
10% for the year to £189 3m {2012 £172 1m)

The Parcels markel of some £6bnin the UK has two main components  Growih i the
B2B market ( B2B"), which represenis some 52% of the market tends to be linked 16
averall economic performance  Growth in the B2C market {*B2C"), which represents
somg 48% of the market, 1s inked to the giewth of internet hased home delivery, we
esttmate that this segment of the market 15 growing by sorme 10% per annum

We have achieved good velume growth in both the B2B and B2C market segments
with Parcals volures increasing by some 17% compased {0 the prier year We are
particelarty pleased with the velume growth we have achieved tn the second half year
of some 21%, fallowing growih in the first hali of some 12% reflecting funther gains
in markel share  This periorrrance 15 drven by good customer retenticn based on
competilive pacing and strong senice levels We have also benefitted from a nurmber
of good custamer wins, alihough we continued o see an on-gomng volume mix
change tawards the lower margen B2C segment

The strong volume growih ailows us o spread our fixed costs across the increased
volumes and improve our operzting marging  As a result desprie the continued
competitive pricing environment we have improved our Parcels operating margin 1o
8 6% for the year (2012 6 8%)

The good growih n revenue combined with the operating margin ncrease has led lo
strong growth m the Parcels operaling profi of 40 6% 10 £16 3m (2012 £11 6my)




Parcels volumes up

17.0

Mail volumes up

2.09%

imail volumes up
over
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To increase the efficiency of
our operabons and to provide
additional facilites to our
customers we are Investing in
two new, state of the art, mail
sortation machines
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We have been working hard in recent years, through driving
efficiencies and Introducing major product and service innovations,
to position ourselves as competitively as possible
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To allow us fo handle the increasing volumes we are expenencing we are faking acton
to Increase our capacity 0f the fifty sifes we cperate four will be expanded durng the
coming year, either thiough moving to a nearby larger site or increasing the size of the
exsting butding

We have introduced a number of major smprovements to aur | T mfrastruclure  These
include the provision of industry-leading functionality both o our customers, and to
ihe recipients of the parcels they despatch via cur semaces  All cuslomers can now
be notied 1n advance of expected delivery imes and given easy-te-use tacilies if
they need to re-arange delwenes

We have also completely replaced our delivery driver scanners  This has inveived the
purchase of some 2,000 scanners al @ ¢osl of some £12m  The new scanners
provide sigrifhicantly ncreased funchigrality inctuding impraved methods of reat-ime
commumication with gur drivers to amend collection and delivery arrangements  The
new scanners alsa nclude GPS facilites which will be the basis far improved route
planning and customer delvery notfication which we: plan to mtroduce in the autumn

Another %ey development has been the implementation of CRM technology into aur
customer care centres which allow us to improve customer service as well as track
quenes i ensuie they are resolved prompily

Qur Regail Logistics product, wineh provides senices taitored 1o the speciftc needs of
refailers such as hanging garments, cortinues to metke good progress  This service
15 fargeted at 1he extensive list of retail custorners we have access to through our mail
parcels and couster businesses, and we new have a number of najor retarlers trading
wih us We eshmate the Retall Logistics market 10 be worth £1 2bn overall,
supporting our view that this represents a significant growlh opportumity for the
business We are inthe process of implementing a dedicated Retait Logistics facility,
including avtomated soration capabilities for hanging gaiments, which will provide
increased capacity for thas business  This faciity, combined with further
devetopments af our 1T platiorm, will erhance our capabiities and support our
development plans for this key product

Our postparcels product allews any cusiomer, be they an mdvdual or & small
business, la arrange parcel collechon and delivery directly with UK Mail thrgugh an
€asy-to-use website  This product has been successfully established in the market
and 1s achieving rapid growth  We are now handling some 10 000 tems per week
wilh this semce  There 15 an increasing #rend dor parcel collection and delivery
services fo be purchased by consumers on-ling, parlly caused by ihe grawth of on-
ling transaction sites such as ebay and Amazon market place  We will continue fo
develop and market ifus product which we see as a good source of future profitabikity

The overall parcels market in the UK1s challenging and highly competiive  Qur target
pasition 12 this masket 15 1o be a ngh quality operator which provides the value added

services hat customers want  The key here 15 a reliable next day service, praviding
customers wilh eshimated delwery windows, which can easily be re-arranged with the
use of I T to prowide added information We conbinue 1o be successful inwinning new
Parcels customers as a resuli of eur high service levels, low-cost network and strong
brand in the market  Our service tevels remained very high even during the peak
seasons of the year when we achieved our mghest ever service lavels whilst handling
record parcel volumes

Couner

Revenues m our Couner business which provides same day delivery services
decreased as expecled by 19 6% to £16 5m (2012 £20 5m) The revenue decling
15 fargely due o the loss of a major customer in eardy 2012 We are continuing 1o
focus on national comlracls thal can leverage our network and blug chip customer
base Operating marging increased to 15 5% (2012 13 4%) helping to restnct the
decling 1n operating profit to £ trm resulting n £2 6m for the year (2012 £2 7m)
The ncrease n operaiing margin reflects ihe actions management have taken to
improve effectiveness and reduce overheads in the business

We have now deve{aped a fghly efficient nationwide counier network with a proven
abihty io support national contracts winch adds to our ability to offer a fully integrated
proposition and supparts product devetopment across the Group

Pallets

Revenues n our Pallets business which priovides a nationwide pallessed goods
delvery sevice decreased by 0 7% to £28 Om (2012 £28 3m)

The Pallets business 15 based on g matignal network of members  Duning the pered
we expenenced temporary gaps in this network which gave nse to addihional delivery
o0sis Asazesult operating profit for ihe penod dechined by £1 3m to £0 8m (2012
£2 1m) These network 1ssues are now resolved and we have developed successfut
relanonships with major hauliers which will play a major role in developing this
business nhe future

As part of our plans to re-enemise [fus business we have appanted & new Managing
Cirector and new management team to supporl him

We remain convinced that this business can be successiul in a market with good fong
lerm growih prospects

Guy Buswell, Chief Executive
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The Group uses a number of key performance indicators (KP( s) to assess the development underlying business performance and position of the Group and its divisions  These KPI s are

reviewed percdically {o ensure they reman appropriate and meaningful measures of the Group s periormance

Further discussion on the financial KPI's can be found n the Financial Review report on page 12, and on the non-hineancial KPI's in the Comorate Responsibility report an page 20
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REVENUE GROWTH %

2013 [T Y Y
2012 [ V')
2011 [EXCY

2010 |§ -0.1
2009 |

743 |

Group revenues have grown
10.8% in the year. This is

a good indicator of the
growth of activity within
the company.
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OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN %

Operating profit margin is the
KPIl used by the Board
to measure profit margins
both on a Group and
segmental basis.
The operating profit margin
has increased to 6.4%.
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ROACE %

2013 [ Y}
2012 TYY

2011
2010 |

2009, B9

FREE CASHFLOW £m

2013 [ T}
2012 Y'Y

2011 [T

Return on average capital
employed is the Boards’ prime
measure for the return (profits)

on assets utilised within

the business.
The ROACE improved from

14.4% to 20.8% in the year

under review.

Free cash flow is the KPI the
Board uses to measure
cash generated excluding

financing activities.
Free cash flow has increased
by £8.4m to £19.2m.




DEBTOR DAYS

2013 YN
2012 Y
2011 [ETTY
2010 YN

2009 262 |
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Debtor days are the KPI the
Board uses to measure and
monitor the efficiency of cash

collection from customers.
Debtor days have increased
1.7 days to 33.0 days.
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HEALTH & SAFETY COMPLIANCE %

Health and Safety compliance
has improved from 93.4% to
95.0% of all sites.
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CO: EMISSIONS (TONMES)

2015 T

CO:2 emissions is the KPl the
Board uses to monitor its
effect on the environment.
The 57.9k tonnes emitted
represents a 1.1k tonne
improvement year on year,
despite the increased activity
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WASTE RECYCLING %

2013 N TF
2012 [V

2011 76.3

This KPI is used by the Board
to monitar the amount of
waste recycled, thereby
avoiding landfill.
The Group recycled 91% of all
waste generated.
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1SO 14001 IMPLEMENTATION %
2013 [ TN
2012 [N
2011 JREXR
2010[ ¥5.0

ISO 14001 is the key standard for
Environmental Management
Systems. It sets out rigorous
demands for environmental

management and is externally
audited on a regular basis.
The Group has achieved 100%
certification at all corporate sites.
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FIN ANC' AL heGoup delvered a solid financil

result In a very competitive market whilst

R EVI Ew > maintaining 1ts robust capital position

Revenue

2013 2012 Change
Segment £m £m %
Mail 2416 2081 16 1%
Parcels 1893 1721 10 0%
Couner 165 205 (196)%
Pallets 280 283 (07N%
Total Revenue 4754 4290 10 8%

Reported Group revenues for the yaar at £475 4m were up 10 8% compared ta the previcus year However, the underlying increase was 8 3% after allowing for the increase in Royal
Mail pnces implemented on 2 April 2012, and there bewng two less trading days in the year under review

The encreases m both Mail and Parcel revenues reflected hoth strong levels of customer retention, together with good volumes resulling from new customer wins

Courer revenues declined 19 6% fallowing the loss of a major customer in the early part of the financial vear

Operating profit before exceptional items

0p Proft 0p Proftt Cp Prohit Op Profit Reporting Change 1n

2013 Margin 2012 Margin Op Prohit 0p Profit

Segment £m % fm % change % margin %
Mail 107 44% 100 48% 78% -04%
Parcels 163 46% 116 68% 40 6% +18%
Couner 26 155% 27 134% 67)% 1 21%
Pallets 08 27% 21 74% (63 B)% -47%
Total segmental operating proit 30 4 6 4% 264 62% 15 0% 102%
Central costs {127) . {113} - {12 0y% -
Reported operating profit E 37% i 15% 16 7% t 02%

Reported operating prafit before excephional 1tems ncreased 16 7%, largely dnven by volume increases n bath Mail and Parcels

Mail operating profits increased by some £0 7m largety driven by a 10 2% underlying growth in revenues after adjusting for effect of the Royal Mail price increase  The underlying
operating margin within Mail was stable year-an-year despite the reporied fall to 4 4% as ihe Royal Mail pnce increase was gassed onto customers

Despie a change in the B2B/82C mucwithin Parcels increased volumes which led to an increase i market shaze togethes with good cost control resulted v a 40 6% increase in
operating profits As a resuft Parcels reported an operating profit margin of B 6%, some 1 8 percentage poinls belter than 2012




As reported 1ast year, actions 1aken 1o control the cost base have enabled Couner to feport a 2 1 percentage point increase w the operating margin, despite reduced
revenues following the loss of @ major custormer early on in the year

Operating profits within Pallets were impacted by the necessary additional delvery costs incurred, following temporary gaps wilhin the member network, Whils! these
network issues have been resolved, this one-off effect has matenally impacted ihe reported aperating margin

There were no exceptional items dunng ihe curent year, for further detatls on the previous yeas, see note 3

Net finance income

Continued strong control aver working capstal enabled the Group to martain fugh average cash balances throughout the year enabling the Group o earn £0 2m (2012
£0 1m} of bank deposit interest income

Once finance lease interest cosis of £0 1m (2092 £0 1m) are faken into account the Group reported net inance ncome of £0 $m (2012 tni)

Taxation

The Group s effective tax rate was 24 3% (2012 27 1%), the reduction largely a direct seflection of the 2% reduction In corporation tax effectve from 1 Apnl 2012
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share increased 43 0% to 24 7p (2012 17 3p} The underlying basic earmings per share, which excludes the impact of excephional lems incurred
last year, increased 22 9% to 24 7p (2012 20 1p)

Dividend

The Board has proposed an increase of 0 6p to take the Final Dvidend 1o 12 4p {2012 11 Bp), resulting 1n a total dwsdend for the year of 18 8p (2012 18 2p) The
Final Dmdend 15 payable an 26 July 2013 1o shareholders registered on 28 June 2013

The total dvidend 15 covered 131 times by earmings {2012 095 hmes)  The Board iniends 1o grow dividends progressively over ime £ reflect our targeled gamings
growth, whilst also improving the level of dvidend cover

Cash flow and net cash

2013 2012

£m £m

Cash generated from operations 1 218
Tax paid 41) (45)
Nei capiial expenditure (78) 69)
Free Cash Flow 192 108
Dividends (99) 99)
Qiher movemenis 27) (17)
Increase/{decrease) i cash 66 (08)

The 42 9% increase in cash generaled from operations was drven by conhinued close conirol of working capital, which ganerated £5 6m this year (2012 £0 2m)
together with the £4 8m increase in operaling proft

Despile a £1 3mincrease in the amount expended on capilal expenditure, free cash How mcreased 77 4% jo £19 2m (2012 £108m)
The strong cash generation enabled the Group lo repay the final £2m of a £10m loan taken out to fund the acguisition of UK Pallets
As a result net cash at the year end was £27 Om (2012 £18 4m), compnising of £28 2m (2012 £21 6m) cashin hand and £1 2m (2012 £3 2m) total dett

Further informaion can be found in note 30
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FINANCIAL
REVIEW >

Balance sheet

2013 2012 Change

£m £m £m

Non-current assets 500 489 1
Current assats — excluding cash 670 637 33
Cash ™ 282 216 66
Current liabiiries — excluding 1ax/borigwings (74 6) {65 4) {92)
Borrowings * 12) 32 20
Tax (23) {17 (06)
Non-current hiabilities — excluding borrawings 2n (30) 03
Net assels 644 1—9 _3_5
Net cash * 270 86

Net assets increased by £3 5m to £64 4m (2012 £60 9m)

Goodwill represents £9 5m {2012 £9 5m) of the balance sheel total This has been tested for iImpairment as detailed 1n note 10 1here being na requirement for resulant
adjustment

Increased business and a 1 7 day increase 1n debtor days to 33 0 days (2012 31 3 days) largely account for the increase In current assels

This increased actmity was also reflected in the £ 2m inciease in current llabiliies where other credilors which include franchise AFA and subcontractor creditors
increased £4 4mand trade creditors increased £1 7m year-on-year

Treasury nsk management

The treasury function ¢f the Group operates within policies and procedures approved by the Board  These procedures caver funding banking relationships, foreign currency,
Interest rate exposures and cash management

The Group has considered carefully 1ls cash flows and banking covenanis for the nexl hree years These have been appraised in Light of the current economic chrmate and
on a number of forecast scenanos As such, conservative assumphions on prohitability and working capital performance have been used lo determing the level of inangal
resources required by the Group and io assess liquidily nsk

The Group continually assesses its actual and forecast cash pasition on a weekly basis  This ensures that in the short lerm the Group s cash is used ophimally Each month
a medium term revigw of the forecast 1s underiaken to ensure full compliance wilh the barking covenants

Liquidity nsk 1s ihe nsk that the Group will not be able to meel its financial chligations as they fall due The Group’s strong levels of eperaling cash Bow and low
1ndebtedness mean that 1t 1s not significantly exposed to hquidity nisk

The Group 1s not significantly exposed to the effects of fluciuations in exchange rates since all income 1s in sterling and cosls deneminated in foreign currency poncipally
the euro represent less than 1% of all expendilure

The Group s exposure to any sigmiicant interest nisk 15 mimimal due to the relatively low level of debt
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PRINCIPAL RISKS &
UNCERTAINTIES >

Risk is an inevitable fact of life The real challenge for any business 1s to
identify the principal risks it faces, be they cperational, commercial or
financial In nature, and to develop approprate mitigating controls

A successful sk maragement precess weighs up the patential nsks and rewards against iheir impact and probability The Board has overall responsibility for ensuning that the Group
has an appropriatety balanced appreach 1o nsk management and internal cortrol whilst achiewving the Group's everall busiaess plans and strategic abjeclives

The Gioup has an established nsk management monitoning and review process as descnibed in the Corporate Govarnance Repert on pages 26 10 36 The process requires
management of the busmess i¢ denbily evaluate znd monilor nsks and takes steps {0 reduce, elsmingle or manage those nsks

These nsks are scored as te the likelihood of their occurrence and the scale of thew polenhal impact after allowance 15 made for the effectiveness of exshing of planned mibgating
controls such that ihe overall Risk Register can be sutably priontised

This register together wilh the idenificalion implementation and pregresston of miligation plans are reviewed on an on-going basis m detail by senior management of the Group

The Audit Commultee, who ulhmately retain the responrsibility for the Company s nsk management framework, review the nsk management process and 1he top 30 nisks identified on
the Risk Register on a regular basis

The table below details the prncipal nsks and uncertainties faced by the Group and the steps taken io muligate such nsks and uncertainties The Board constders these o be the
moast significant nsks and whilst ngl direcily comparable, they have been ranked in terms of relalive importance to the Company at this ime

They de nol compnse all of the nsks identified by the Company, nor those presently unknown to management or those currently deemed less matenal which may also have an
adverse effect on the business

Additionally, the Group, 1n common with others 1s exposed to a number of financial nsks including market nsk, credit nisk, (nterest nsk, hquicily nsk, capital nsk and foreign exchange

nsk details of which can be found in nate 26 on page 82

Risk

Potential Impact

Mitigation

Assurance

IT Systems failure

Reliance 15 placed upon the proper
funciicning of IT systems far the etfective
funning of operations Any piolonged
Interruption to the Group's IT sysiems
could have a matenally adverse effecl on
11$ business

Any prolonged nterruption to the
Group's 1T systems could have a
matenally adverse effect on s business

The Group has a Busingss Continuity
Plan in the event of IT systems failure
Networks are pratected by firewalls and
anti-virus  protection  Syslems  are
backed up, and offsite disaster recovery
facilties exist n the event that a mayor
15sug affects one of our key localions

Executive Direclor approval 15 required
for any material system changes A full
implemeniation review and/or parallel
unning 1s undertaken by the sponsanng
department and IT pnor lo any new
systemn go lve

Disaster  Recovery and  Business
Contnuity ptans are requlardy rewewed
and tesied &t frequent infervals

IMernal 1T department  constantly
moniters threats 1o data protection by
viruses, hacking and breach of access
contrg!s

Patential impact of HS2 rail Link on
our National hub

The Burmingham hub 15 sied on the
proposed HS2 rait route

Managemenl 1s dislracted from the
achievement of day-to-day objectives to
management of the move

Loss of key personnel affected by a
period  of  ungedaty  andfor
umwitlingness 1o relocate

The relocation 15 being mznaged by a
dedtcated HS2 steenng group

Plans are n place to retain employees
befera, dunng and after the move

Contingency plans have been reviewed

The Board monitars the HS2 plan on a
penodic basis and receives regular
igports from the Head of HR, and lhe
Sigering group
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Risk Potential Impact Mitigation Assurance
Business continuity
The Graup could be matenally atlected if | Severe disruption and  reputalional | Business Coniinwily Plans are in place | Disaster Recovery and Business

there was a sigmificant incident such as a
terronst incident, fre or flooding
particularly at one of the major hubs

damage to the busingss, which would
ylimately impact on the Group's
finangial perfarmance

for each site and tgsted on a rotational
basis

Continwly plans are regularly reviewed
and tested & frequent ntecvals

Competitive

The Group eperates in ighly compelitive
markels and faces competiion from
international, nationat, regional and locat
companies as well as the Royal Mail

Increased competiiive activity could lead
to an adverse effect on results esher
through loss of cuslomers or pressure on
margins

Market actwity, and compelitor
behaviowr, and tading epporiuniies are
reqularly reviewed

Dedicated customer account teams exist
for larger accounts

Hierarchy approval for customer rates
charged

The Group seeks o expand the available
market through the introduction of new
products and services

The Groups customers aie spread
acioss a large number of business
seclors and wide geography

Competitor actvity s monitored at botha
strdlegic and lackcal level o emable
sultable actiens to be developed In
response

Feedback from custormers, including
cemplainis, logether with the findings
from cuslomer sahisfachion surveys are
roulingly montored and discussed

The Group s perikermance aganst KP1 s 1s
discussed at Operating and Man Board
meelings

Legislatron and regulation

The Group 15 subject 10 numercus laws
and regulations, with the mail market
addistenally regulated by the Office of
Cemmunications {'Ofcem’)

The Greup, 1n commen wih enany
businesses s subject o htigation fiom
tire 1o time

Failure to comply of respond could lead
to financial loss, eiher from financial
penalies or damages redeploymeni of
management resgurce or reputational
damage to the Group

The Group keeps abreast of forthcoming
legislative and regulatory changes, and
mainiaing conlipds and  procedures 1o
ensure full comphance

The Group masntains active engagement
with Ofcom, responding 1o consuliations,
when refevani

The Group mamtains both in house and
external legal expertise

The Board reviews reports from senior
exgcutives ncluding the Head of
Regulatory Compliance, and Lhe Gioup
Legal Manager

The Group 15 subject lo vanous audits
and comphance wsits irom both external
bodies and in house internal audit and
sacunty leams

Fuel

Fuel shortages o stnkes could ifect the
Group's operations

Fue! costs could increase significantly
mote than forecast

Any prolenged interruphien to  the
Group's fuel supplies coutd have a
maienally adverse effect on its busingss

Hegher fuel costs could lead to reduced
margins and profitabilty

The Group has an established fuel
conlngency plar

In common wilh industry prachse, the
Group operaztes a fuel surcharge
mechanism  whereby (ncreases n fuel
paces are recharged 1o the majonty of
ihe Group's cuslomer base

The fuel conlingency plan 1s reviewed
and tested al frequenl intervals

The Board moenilors both ihe fuel pnee
and the fuel surcharge mechanism on a
penodic basis
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Policy

The UK Mail People Plan s to develep and engage our pecple lo deliver the
COMpany vision

To achieve this we are commilted to recruing rewarding angd secogmising our
people by crealing a business that puts it$ people and 1ts customers at the centre
of all s activities, and recogrising that our peaple matter and are key o the
business achieving 11s goals

We are committed to engaging and communicating at ll tevels by ensunng our
employees understand the part they play to achieve the Company wiston ang that
al all times open commonication methods are used

We will gasure our people leatn and devetop by ensuong we develap ow teader
capability so we improve engagemerl and perlormance and creale an
enviranment so 1hat people development 1s seen as key to indwidug), team and
DUSHIESS SUCCESS

By warking salely we show that we value the safety of our employees and
customers ensuring that nothing we do will cause harm

Qur averall ehjeciive 15 fo become an Emptoyer of Choice by showing we are best
n class and set ‘role model” standards developing a culture that provides
employees with a greal place to work and being a leading employer within our
sector

Diversily

li 15 our pohicy to ensure that no job applicant, employee customer or contractor
receves less lavourable treatment for any reason We want lo make sure no one
I1s disadvaniaged by unjushfiable cenditions, cnlena or praclices because of thewr
sex gender, race, cofour, ethmc ongin, rehgion, sexual onentation, disability,
martal status age or any other grounds of discnimination prohifited by
legisiation

We are an equal opportunities emplayer, and being ihis 15 about good ermploymeant
practices and efficient use of our most valvable assels our employees  Every
manager and employee has personal responsibility for the implemeniation of our
equal opportunibies policies

Employee Communtcation and Engagement

UK Mat employees have been surveyed for the first time on a range of areas,
including ther understanding of business objectives and achigvemenis together
with views on team work, recogniion and learning and development with a view
to assessing and measuring employee engagement  The findings of the survey
have been analysed lo undersiand whal 15 working and whal improvernents are
required froma Group perspective through to indwidual site and depariment level
Each site and depariment has been given an individua! report with the ohjective of
makmg continuous improvement and increased engagement

We engage and communicate with our employees mn a vanety of ways through bi-
monthly newsletters, using the Company Iniranei and local team bnefings, as well
as semor management brtefing sessions

The Group holds the Investors in People accreditation and we continue 10 make
significant pregress 1n Human Resource management as we aim to become an
Employer of Chaice’

The Employee Consultative Group (ECG") has been n eperation for ten years and
15 well eslablished to provide a robust platform for all employees o make a
significant contnbution to bringing abput change 1 the workplace and to provide
a fotum for the exchange of infarmation, opiniens and feadback

There are now 62 ECG representatives and they receive on-geing training in thear
role including health and salely effective communication and meeting and
negotialions Every three years a new ECG Chairperson is elected with the next
renewal scheduled for October 2013

Inadditionte this the ECG brand 15 1a be re-launched and the aims and objectives
of the ECG efreshed  We held our first ECG Team Conference 1n March 2013 as
part of the re-launch as we see the ECG forum as the backbone of aur Company
providing an invatuable channei for information, advice and support o our
colleagues, simply making UK Mail a better place to work




Recogmtion and Reward

Qur recognilion and reward schemes are constantly reviewed and benchmarked in
arder to ensure that we pravide what both our employees and the market requye
Voluntary benefiis are an imporiant panl of the employee beneli siructure and
these cantinue 10 be reviewed tn order that we can establish and add i to the
scheme new offenngs The campany continues to run salary sacnfice schemes to
allow employees to make savings on therr National Insurance, and this scheme
will furlher be enhanced with a salary sacnfice scheme on the implementation of
Pensian Autp-Enrplment

Learmng and Development

Learnng and Develepment conlinues 1o be al the foreliont of the business and we
continue to provide Management Development fraining 1o hefp develop and
progress thase members of the UK Mail team up the career ladder, as well as the
required operational fraining  To help supplement this we are developing a
Traiming Directory and Tramng Matrx that can frack whal courses and
development an employee should have by role i order 1o promote succession
and carges planming

UK Mail cantinues to offer all employees the opportunily to study for NVQ
enabling them to study for an accredited qualifrcation

Helping People into Work

In Apnl 2013 UK Mail launches Applorhat — Apgrenticeships with UK Mail’, in
paringrship with Eimheld Traimng - Apprenticeships will be available i four gt
sites 1n Warehousing, Mail Sertatign and Customer Care These are permaner
foles from day one with a {ull rawning programme avaitable to all appreniices over
a 12 month pesiod

We also offer Work Expenence programmes and if avallable, those geopte who
have completed Work Expengnce successfully can then go onto an Apprenticeship
programme when a role becomes available

Occupational Health and support for those employees unforiunate to be long term
sick continues 1o torm part of the Group s health and well-being strategy, with the
emphasis being on work elated 1ssues and highlighting any risks 1o enable
employees to kanow what ta laok for

The ‘I Delivered' Awards 15 the UK Mait Recogneion scheme for going the Extra
Mile Awards are made on a quarerly basis with narminations from the quarterty
awards being made 1o the National Awards held 1n June of each year
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Voluntary henefits

are an important part ‘
of the employee
benefit structure

Learning and
Development

continues to be at the
forefront of the
business

The ‘i Delivered’
Awards is the UK
Mail Recognition
scheme for going the
Extra Mile.
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UK Mail continues to be commutied to Corporale Responsibility { CR ) and regard the imegration of sound CR praciices (which 1ake nte account the interests of all our
stakeholders be they employees cuslomers, shareholders or the wider communsdy) asalong term suslairable apprach to business We continue to devole significant
resources lowards improving CR standards and practices within the Group Cur Corposate Responsibilty programme has four key elements, environment, health and
salety, employment and community

CR strategy 15 appioved at Board level, with Sieven Glew having the appropriate CR responsidihly  He, together with the CR Steenng Commuttee actely manage,
develop and communicate our CR strategy wiih the strategy providing direction and guidance on atl aspects of businass practice and responsibibly  The members of
the CR Steenng Committee are drawn from a number of disciphnes across the company (human resources, hezlth and salety, operations, fransport, procurement
communications and legal )

To show our centinuing commitment 1o CR, we are & signatory te the United Nations Global Compact We have commitled 1o take action and uphold the ten universally
accepled principles i1 relation 1o areas such as labows, business integrity employment human nghis and the envionment

The Board takes account of the significance of social, envirgnmentat and etwcal { SEE ) matters to the business of the company Currently we have identified no social,
environmenizl of emnical fAsks thet would have a materizl impact on ow pusiress - - -
The Environment

The Group recogmises that it has a responsibility to reduce 1ts impact on the environment and seeks 1o 1ncrease the environmenial sustaiatality of its operations and
those of iis supphers Our envircnmental policy 1s requiarly reviewed and 1s available on cur company website www ukmail com

Whilst we recogrsse that we have an imporiant role ¢o play in defivening geods and mail inthe UK we are acutely aware of the impact that transport operations can have
on the envirgnment

However, the Group 1s commited to reducing thus impact through the introduction of cost effective solutions and changes which sesuli not only (n efficient operations,
but in real penefits to the environment as a whole

Our 2012/13 CR Targets
Te date, our CR programme has been driven through focused on the year 2013, three years from the 2010 base year

Cur performance 4n the year against those onginal targets was as follows

Baselins Target Actual Change Achievements
2009/10 201213 2012113 against 2011/12  Against Target
€0z emissions (tonnes) 62 3k 56 Ok 57 9k -19% Faited by 3 4%
Health & Safety compliance {%) 85% 95% 95% +17% Achieved
Warkplace fatalities 0 0 0 0 Achveved
1SQ 14001 compliance (% corporate sites) 5% (2 slies} 100% (40 sites)  100% (39 sites) +45% Acheeved
Land Fill Diverston (previously Waste Recyching) (%) 1% 90% 91% +03% Achieved
Waste te fandhll {tonnes) 9291 4641 2781 -04% Achieved by 40%
Tolal Waste {tonnes)” 5 488t 4116t 3,099t +51% Achigved by 24 7%
Waler Consumption {M3} 35 500m? 33 500m? 35923 m3 +4 4% Failed by 7 2%
Number of Training Days completed Nra 1800 2,401 +37% Nfa
\ J




CR Targels and Achrevements

Going forward, we have sei our targels to 2016 against current acluals which
will be mare challenging ihan the previous three years

Again the main focus will be on GOz emissions, health and safely, utihbies
wasie and our people

We will be using 2012/13 as the key baseline 1o ensure conlinuous
improvemneni  Fellowing the successiul implementation of 15014001 we
are gong to work toward cesbification of QHSAS 18001

C0z Emissions

L N R L I

2010 - 2013 Targe! - Reduce C0z by 10%
Achievement - Reduced by 7 1% against baseline

2016 Target - Reduce by 5%
We have again set ourselves challenging erission reduchion kargets for the
next three years which we aim 1o meet by a number of Iriliatives

Fuel
UK Masf has Iwo key objeclives )

Objective 1 To reduce the distance travelled by cur vehicle fleet through
eflective route planming and opiimisation of vehtcle hil

We continue 1o use sophisticated route ptanning sofiware 1o optimise the
mileage travelled by our inehaul fleet

We have fitted telematics devices io all of our vehicles which prowde data
cn the dnvers dnving behaviour and fuel consumption per joursey This
allows us fo proaciively manage the dnver to ensure we maximise the mpg
by vehicle and route

In 2013/14 we will implement new software on our parcel scanners which
will show our Owner Drivers the most effeclive route to take when
undeniaking delivertes with the object of sigmificantly reduging ihe meles
gnven

Objective 2 To reduce the fuel consumption of our vehicles thiough a
review of ihe design of vehicles used and ofher effective means

Efficient vehicle design 1s key 1o reducing our COz Qver the past thiee years
wg have reviewed our vehicle and irarler specifications and through
redesigning them managed to maximise mpg through the use of sloping
trailer rools

Whilst our average COz emiss«on acioss our company car flegl is 127g/km,
cars dehvered 1n 2012/13 had an average emission of 121g/km
Furthermore, we encourage drivers 10 make fewer husiness journeys by
feplacing them with conference calls and wideo conferencing

We have set a maximum 1arget of 125g/km far new company cars acquired
n 2013/14

Energy

We have deployed 'smarl’ meters in all of our sites These meters provide
regular ‘on ling’ energy usage readings for bolh gas and electncity
throughout the day, every day The infermation provided 1s allowing us 1o
identify and act upon unusual energy usage, particularly dunng the periods
when our operaiions are closed down

In 2012/13 we replaced the lighting n our Birmingham, Manchester
Thames Valley Leicester and Docklands sites io more energy elficient
hghting with mevement and hght sensors  This has reduced our hghting
energy censumption by around 5G% at these sites, and reduced our CO:2
emissions by 497 fonnes per annum  We are looking at extending the
replacement hghting imtigive acress a number of other sites in 2013/14

We have launched an “Eco’ campaign with the aim of engaging all our staff
In energy conservation with the aim of reducing energy usage by 5%

C02 Emissions
Reduced by

7.1

Waste to landfill down

70.22

IS0 Target achieved

100+

at all sites
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Health, Safety and Envircnment (SHE) Compliance

P N S R R R R Y]

2010 - 2013 Targe! 95%
Achievement - 85% against baseline

2015 Target 95%

The Group lully embracas and endorses the legal and moral obfigatien to prolect
the health safety and welfare of employees and others who may be afiected by our
operations

Rohust policies are deploved to ensure training nisk assessment safe systems of
work and accdent avestigabion procedures are carned out throughout the
Company Policies are updaled on an on-going basis to ensure they reflect the
chang:ng environment 1n which we operate Health and safety 15 discussed at
Groug Board meetings utihsing aur menthly health and safety report, which
outhnes proaclive and reactive measures for discussion angd debate

A full Salety Heatth and Emvirgnmens (SHEY audit 1s carned out on a reguiar basis
gach year at ali aperating locations We are pleased lo repori ihat the average score
achieved n e year has increased to 95% This has been achieved through
Integrating safety inta the way we work, impioved stafi awareness and new working
methods

A health and safely intranet sile comans readdly avatable indosmation for
managess on speciic procedures and pohcies such as safety policies and
pracedures emergency response safe systems, nsk assessments accident
investigations, hrited quanities of dangerous goods  allowed and
cemmunicattons 10 promole health and safely and to prevent accidents from
accumng in ihe work place

IS0 14001
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2010 - 2013 Target - 100% certification at aif corporate sites
Actireverent - 100% cerlification at all corporale sifes
2016 Yarget - mainlan existing certification and roil-oul to all franchise sites

Certifrcation of OHSAS 18001 at alf corporale siles

IS0 14001 15 the key standa:d for Environmental Management Sysiems it sets
agorous demands for environmental management and 1s externally audited on a
regular basis  We are pleased to report thal we have achieved the 1S0 14001
Standard across all our corporate sites

By 2016 we are aiming for certification of ISO 14001 at our franchise sites and
OHSAS 18007 across our corporate stes, which 15 the Brtish Standard for
occugational health and safety management systems

Waste Management
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Landhil Diversion 2010 - 2013 Targel - Increase to 90%
Acfievement — increased to 91% against baselme
2016 Targel — Increase fo 95%

Waste To Landfdl 2070 - 2013 Target - Reduce by 50%

Achievement - Reduced by 70% against baselne
2076 Target — Reduce by 5%

Tolal Wasle 2010 - 2013 Target - Reduce by 25%

Achtevement - Reduced by 43% agamst baseline
2016 Target — Reduce by 5%

We have been working hard to improve the managerment of our waste For example
we are now backhauheg ail of our cardboard and stretch-wrap waste to a regional
site 1n order to make our recycling more efficient Moreover we have reduced the
number of internal wasle sireams from five 1o two  This increased focus has
boosted landfilt diversion raies to $1% 10 2012413 (compared to just 5% n 2008)

Water Consumption
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2010 - 2013 Target - Reduce by 5 §%
Achievement - Increased by 1% agamst baseline

2018 Targe! - Reduce by 5%

Desmite an increase n business aclvity we were still able to reduce the growth of
our waler consumption across the buseness

We shall escalate the roll-oul of water saving devices filled 1n Gur washroom
facilities across all of our sites which will reduce water consumption  We have
also removed vehicle wash facilities at a number of siles and have installed smar
melers at our fugh consumplien sifes




Our People
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2010 - 2013 Target — 1,800 trarming days
Achievement — 2,481 lraming days

2016 Target - 2,500 trasning days
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Our approach to our people 15 set out tn Our People report on page 18

Learning and Development continues to be at the forefront of the business
and we confinue to provide Management Development training to help
develop and progress those members of the UK Mail team up the career
ladder as well as deliver the required operational framing  To help
supplement this we are developing a Traiming Cirectory and Training Matrix
that can {rack which courses and development an employee should have, by
tole

UK Mai) continues {o offer all employees the oppartunity 10 study for NVQ
enabling all employees to study for an accredited qualification  Moreaver
we are working with a leading vemicle manufacturer to support us in rolling
_ _out our dver Certifucate of Professional Competence traimng _

Employee invelvement

We continue to campaign internally to raise awareness amongst our
employees of the environmental impact of their achons This has seen
employees consciously switching off ights powerng off machines and
using on-site recyching facilities, increasing landfill diversion rates up to
91% Management at lccal sites have also been empowered 1o introduce
prachices which will encourage a reduchon n on-site energy usage and
waste, and increase recyciing

Working with our suppliers

We work closely with our supplers te imprave their environmental standards
and require them 1o provide detarls of therr enviranmental practices and
accreditation as part of the supplier selection process

Qur Suppher Code of Conduct defines our minimum slandards of business
activily and shapes the way we work with our supphers for mutual gain- We
continually work with our suppliers to develop new products and In re-
engineenng exsting products such that mare environmertally fnendly
matenals and less kmie matenals are used, such as paper and polymer

Forexample we have tnialled and are introducing degradable plastics for our
shipping bags We also work mare with UK based suppliers who produce
our high volume products m the UK instead of other paris of the world,
which significantly reduces the iransportation invaived

Community

We believe In commusity investment and that we should play our part as a
good corporate citizen, supporling chanties and commumity actvities that
affect our staff and customers

We financially support employees who are involved in personal fundraising
inibiatives for causes close to thewr hearts In 2012/13 we donated £20 000
to a diverse range of chanties through our Staff Sponsership Scheme,
helping fund cancer chanties, sea rescue, air ambulance, dog's homes and
children’s chartiies amengst others

We remain commitied io working with Job Centre Plus to help poteniial
recruits move fram welfare to sustained employment continues with the
paticipation i the government's Work Experience Programme  The
Company has heen successful in converting a number of work expenence
candidates inlo employed status and continues to actively support this
government indiative

In addition, UK Mail launched Appforihat'  Apprenticestups m Apnl 2033
Inially prioted 1n four operational siles throughaut the UK this programme
aims to help tackle the UK's youth unemployment challenge by offering
entry level opportunities with the necessary personal development support
required 10 build a successiul career at UK Mail - The programme works in
partnership with an external training partner

Chaniy Giving

——Over the past fve-years—UK-Maibhas been-tommitted {0 Gancer Research-

UK raising almost £500,000 over this period 1o help with the crucial wark
they do in preventing and trealing cancers and saving so many lives

UK Mail's chasen chanty for 2012 to 2015 1s the NSPCC, one of the UK's
largest children’s chanties  We are proud to be supporting the NSPCC in
their quest to end cruelty to children by both pratecting thase at nisk from
abuse and supporting their families

In addition to a donation made by UK Mall to the NSPCC, our stalf orgamse
ad hoc local fundraising activities such as dress down days or cake sales
which lake place dunng working hours  We alsg run an employee payroll
lettery scheme which generates around £3,500 per year for the chanty

UK Mail encourages staff not onty to fund raise but also to give ime for our
neminated charty  ChildLine, which 1s part of the NSPCC 15 a service
whereby volunteers visit pnmary schools to educate children about what 1s
and 1sn t acceplable behawigur, and when they should speak o semebody
about 1ssues such as abuse or bullying Staff are given time towards traiming
and also the flexbility fo adjust working hours to enable them to get
involved

We operate a Payroll Ging Scheme ' aflowing all our employees the
opportumity to ceniribute to therr preferied chanty through tax efficient satary
deductions

Finally, UK Mail has a policy of supporting supplier and chent chantable
lundraising initiatives threugh donations of monies ar gifts, where possibie
and has made a number of contnbutions to external companies’ and
individuals’ chantable activities in the iast twelve months
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It has been my behef {or many years thal good cosporate covernance 15 the
loundatron on which strong corporate performance can be built

| am not alene in this opinion, ang ndeed this year has seen much debate
about corporate governance, culminating with a number of nolable staternents
1ssued such as the Financial Reporting Council’s {'FRC") 'Feedback Statement
on Revisions to the UK Corporate Code’ and ‘The UX Stewardship Code' as
well as papers produced by such bodies as the Department of Business,
Innovation and Skills { BIS"

However, good corporate governance 1o me 1s not simply following a checklist
rather 1t lies within the cullure of an ozgamsatien As the FRC says, iLs purpose
15 'to faciltate effective, entrepreneunal and prudent management that can
detiver the long-term success of the Company’ This | agree with

| am fortunate in chainng a strong board, which was further sirengthened 1n
September 2012 following the appointment of Jessica Burley | now chaw a
Board compnised of three nan-executive and two executive direciars, and thus
have a Board with a wide breadih of skills and expenence on which to call

| believe that not only the balance of the Board, bus the size of the Board is now
at ihe ophmum level for a Company of our size

UK Mail's success depends on following a clear and robust strategy to dehver
continued growth and shareholder value The Board 1s confident in ihe strategy
we have developed over the years, but we confinue to test our current and
proposed activities agamst this framework A key objective for me 1s to ensure
that the Board sets suitably stretching finangial gbyectives whilst ensuring our
prudent nsk appelite remains intacl

We have seen much discussion and debate on executive pay over the last year
which | welcome as | remain of the opiign that good financial performance
fellows good corporate governance

Indeed In follfowing this debate, and hstening to the feedback from our
shargholders and other nterested parties, @ number of changes have been
made 1o our remuneralion pahcies For example we introduced bonus and
LTIP claw back prowsions, which | believe even more closely aligns the
interests of semor executives to the interests of all shareholders

I beheve that the Company remains i a sirong postion, following ihe nght
sirategy under a strong leadership team | look forward {0 the fuiure challenges
and opportunibies with confidence and oplimism

Finally 1 would welcome the opportunity o see you at this year's AGM

it

Peter Kane, Chairman
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Peter Kane
Chairman

Peter founded the Company  Afler a period
as Chief Executrve was appointed Chairman
n July 2001

Michael Findlay
Senior Independent

Non-Executive Director

Michael was appointed to the Board in
September 2009 and +5 currently a member
of the Audit and Nermination Commitiees and
chairs the Remuneration Dommitiee He was
appointed as the Semor Independent
Director on 1 June 2012 Michael 15 a
Managing Director and Co-Head of Bank of
Amenca Merll Lynch s Comporate Broking
business n EMEA He 15 also Chairman of
Fin Capital Limited

Guy Buswell
Chiet Executive

Guy joined the Company n 198% and was
apponted Sales Drector in 1992 After a
period elsewhere 1n the industry be rejoined
the Company in 1997 and was appainted tc
the Board in Augusi 1998 Guy started the
company's Mall busingss 1n 2002, and
became the Chief Executive in December
2005

Bill Spencer
Independent Non-Executive
Director

Bil was appointed to the Board in November
2011 and chairs the Audit Commutteg  Bill
has a wide range of financial expenence and
was Chigl Financial Officer of FISE tisted
Intertek Group ple from 1995 10 2010 He 15
a Chartered Management Accountant and 15
currently also a Non-Execulive Director of
Exova Group Ud and an Independent Non-
Executive Member of the Finance Comimitieg
of the Royal Institution of Charlered
Surveyars

Steven Glew
Group Finance Director

Steven was apponled to the Board as Group
Finance Director in Jung 2006 He has held the
positions of Group Rnance Direciar at Crown
Sports plc, Booker plc and Mothercare ple
having previoudly held a number of senior
pesitions with Tesco Store ple Steven recently
served 35 a Non-Eazcutive Director for 3 years
with Supergroup ple where he charred the audit
committee Steven 1s a Charlered Accountant

Jessica Burley
independent Non-Executive

Director

Jessica jomned the Board as & Non-Executive
Director on 1 September 2012  She 1s CEQ
of m/StX, a full-service media agency which
speniahses m digital, direct and socal mema
markeling Jessica has over 20 years'
experience n the advertsing and media
industry and has previously been a Non-
Exacutive Duector of Jacgues Vert Ple and
TalkTalk Plc Prior 1o this, Jessica was
Managing Director of The National Magazine
Cempany and COO for ACP-NatMag She
previously held senior positicns at Financial
Times Business 2 subsidiary of FT Group,
and Future Publishing Limited




Corporate Governance Report

The Lising Rules of the UK Listing Authonty require listed companies 1o disclose how ihey comply with the pnnciples of good govermance and code of best practice known
as Ihe UK Corporale Governance Code (the Code ), and whether there has been compliance wath its provigions throughout the financial year The Code may be found an
the FRC websile {www fic org uk} Proteduies have been put 1n place to address the new eddion of ihe Code which was published 1n September 2012 and which applies
to reporting penods beginning on or afier 1 October 2012

The dereclors consider that the Company has comphied fully with the provisions of the Gode applicable to 1t (the June 2010 Code) ihroughaut the firancial year ended 31
March 2013

This statement explains how the Company has apphed the pninciples of gaed govemance set out in the Code

The governance structure

Shareholders

UK Mail Group plc - Board of Directors
Non- Executive Company Executive
Directors Secretary Directors

Remuneration Audit Nomination Operating Administrative
Commitiee Committee Committee Board Committee

Risk Internal External
Management Audit Audit

The Board

The Board Is colleciively respansible far the long-term success of the Company and 1s ulimately accountable to sharefiolders and other stakeholders for the Group's sirategy
nisk managemeni and performance Further details of the Board's actvibies am provided on pages 27 to 29

Aundit Committee

The Audit Commitiee s pnmary responsthikities are to maonitar the mtegnity of the Group's Airancial statements to review intemal and exemnal audit activty and fo seview
and monior the effectiveness of nsk management and interral conifels Further details on the actvilies of the Audit Commiltee are provided on pages 3110 33

Nommation Committee

The Nomination Committee 15 responsible for board and semior execulive recruitment and succession pranning, thereby ensunng the appropriate balance of skill sels are
present in the boardroom The Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on membership of its committees Further details on the activities of the Nominatien
Committee are provided on pages 34 1o 35

Remuneration Commitiee

The Remuneration Commitiee 1s responsible for determining all element of remuneration for the executive directors and sentor executives of the Group and for approving all
ncentive plans Further details on the actviies of the Remuneration Committee are providad on page 34
Company Secrefary

The Company Secretary s pnmary respansibility 15 1o ensure 1hal good 1nformation 1s provided to the Board and all of its commiltees, and that all necessary compliance
155ues and rules and regulations are fallowed The Company Secreiary reports to the Chairman on all board governance matters All directors have agcess to the services of
ihe Company Secretary and may take indepandent professional advice at the Company s expense 1in conducting ther dulies
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Commitiee s pnmary responsibility 1s 1o identify, monsor and review the Group s non-financal nsks reporing &t least bi-annually 1o the Audit
Commitige

tnternal audit

The: intemal audit function provides an independent 1n-house assurance and consulting acivity designed to add value and improve the Company s aperations It helps the
business accomphish its objectives by bringing a systematic, diseiplined approach 1o evaluate and improve the effectiveness of nisk management, control and governance
plocasses

External audit
The exiernal audil function provides independent audit and eview Further details on the activities of their work are provided on pages 32 to 33
Operating board

The Operating Board has day-lo-day responsibility 1o execute the sirateqy approved by the board and compnises of the most senior executive management wihin the Group
including the funchional heads of Network and Operations, Mail, [T, as well as the Chief Executive, and Group Finance Director

Admimistrative Committee

The Adminisirative Committee, which compnses a quorum of at least two main Board direclors, has a delegated responsibiity from the Board to enter inta the legal
agreements or contracts approved by the Board on ils behalf All achions undertaken are reported a1 the next Board meeting

The Board

The Board 15 collectively respansible for the leng-term success of the Company and 1s ullimaiely accountable to shareholders and cther stakeholders for the Group s strategy
nsk management and performance

The Board reserves a number of matters for its sole consideration These include

* the approval of major lems of expenditure or commitment, Including acquisitions

* major operational projects, including new caniract wins

= financing, including lease/buy decisions and the use of denvatives and surance, and

= policy changes relzing to he franchise network
The Board routinely momtors the vanous financial, opesational and commercial nisks facing the Company Tirough reparls fom managermen
Board meetings

The Chairman i conjunclion with the Chief Execulive and Company Secretary, plans the agenda for each Soard Meeting Thal apenda 15 1ssued to all Board members
{whether attending the meating or nat) together with all supporting papers before the meeting 1s held

The Company Secretary ensures that the supporiing papers prowide the Beard with the appropriate and necessary information such Lhat the Board as a whole may discharge
their duties However, where 2 direclor feels that more information may be required he may eilher access the services of the Company Secretary or alternalively may take
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense

Board meetings are normally held at the head office of the Group albest ai least one meeling per annum is held at the National Hub i Birminghiam Operatienal management
are inviled to altend Board meetings on a regufar basis This, together wath wisits o 1he sites helps ta provide the indvidua! dwrectors of the Board with an opportunity to
broaden their knowledge of the business, and to meet employees and management of the Greup

The Board meets formally not less than ten times a year, with oiher meetings held as necessary Reporis are also supplied 1o direclors in manths when a Board meeting
does not take place

Formal minutes recarding the actwities and deeisiens of the Board and Commuttee meetings are prepared and criculaled to each director If a Director objects 10 a particular
decision this 15 ecorded in the minutes of the relevant meeting

Board composition

The Board currently compnses the Chairman, the Chief Execulive the Group Finance Director (who 15 also the Company Secretary) and three independent non-executive
directors There 15 a clear dmsion of respensibilities between the Chairman and the Chiet Executive, set out inwnting and agreed by the Board

The Chairman 1s pnmanly sesponsible for the effecive working of the Board, ensuning that the Board as a whole plays a full and constructive parl in the development and
determination of the Company's straiegy and #s overall commercial objeclves He ensures that the Boarl delermines the najure and extent of the sigmircant nsks the
Company 1s willing to accept 1 the implemeniztion of ts agreed strategy He 1s also responsible for promoting the highest standards of integriy and also manages the
refationship and communication with sharehe!ders in relaion to any govemance matigrs
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The Chiel Exgcuteve 15 responsible for all executive management matiers affecting the Company His prncipal esponsitiliy 15 1he day-lo-day runming of the business and
implementation of Board strategy and policy

The Senior Independent Non-gxecutive Direcior prowides 2 sounding board for the Chairmian and serves as an infesmediary for the other directors as necessary He also acts
as a ine of comtact for shareholders if they have concems which are not appropriate for discussion with the Chairman the Chief Executive or the Group Finance Direclor

The non-executive directors challenge and agree the Company’s siralegy with the Chief Executive and executive management and assess thewr performance against i
Non-execulrve directors are mbially appointed for a three year term with an expectatton that they will continue for al feast a second ferm

As can be seen from the director s profiles on page 25, the directors have a wide range of skills, knowledge and expenence and can bring indepencent judgement lo bear
on matters of stiategy, performance and governance The Company supports the aims and objectives of the Davies Report on Women on Boards and welcomes diversity
inihe boardroom, be thai criven by gender, or any other factor

Board induction and development

On appaintment, the Chairman agrees a personalised induction plan for all new directors tilored fo lher expenence, background and particular area of facus, which 15
designed to develop thew undersianding of the Gsoup s culture 2nd operations The programme has evolved over {ime having been modilied fallowing feedback but will
usually invelve meelings with senior maragement and site visits

0On an annual basts the Chairman reviews and approves indwidual development plans Direclors are encouraged o attend seminars and/or other forums relevant to their
role

Time Commutment

Service agreements and letters of appoinimint, for both the execulive and non executive Directors are avallable for inspection at ihe Company’s remistered office and at the
AGM

The letters of appomtment for each of the non-gxecutive directors stale that 0 accepting the appaintment the Director confirms that he/she 1s able to atlocate sufficient time
to meet the expectations of the role with an anticipated tme commitrrent of approximately 20 days per year

Executive direciors are permitled 1o fake a maarmum of ene non-execuive directorship positien wilh ancifier company but any such invelvement must be subject to the
Board s prior approval  Steven Glew held such an appointment during the year detadls of which are set aut In the Remuneration Repart

Board membership, meetings and atlendance

Director Date of Position Actual Number of Possihle Number of
appointment meetings atiended meetings attended

Peter Kane 10 July 2001 Chairman 10 10

Jessica Burley 1 Sept 2012 Indlependent Non-executive direclor 6 6

Guy Buswell 5 Dec 2005 Chief Brecuiive 10 10

Michael Findlay 1 Sept 2009 Seniar Independent Non-execulrve diector 10 10

Steven Glew 5 June 2006 Group Finance Directer g- 10

Bill Spencer 1 Nov 2011 independent Non-executive director 10 10

Past Committee members

Bill Cackburn — 1 Apnl 2002 Ex-Senior independent Non-exgcutive 2 2

umil 31 May 2012 durector and Ex-Deputy Chanman

" Non-attendance at meetings was due 1o 1liness
Board changes duning the year
The fellowing board changes occured duning the year

Bill Cockburn retired on 31 May 2032, having served on ihe board since 1 Apnl 2002 Bill had in recent years served as the Deputy Chairman of the Board and was the
Senior Independant Non-executive Director

Jessica Burley was appoinied 10 the Board on 1 September 2012, as an Independent Non-executive Direclor

Details of the current Board members and the compesition of s committees can be found on pages 25 and 30
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Board actvity duning the year
The following items were discussed by the Board dunng the year,

»  Monthly Chief Execulive’s report on operational perfarmance and key 1ssues facing the business,
= Monthly Finance Disectors Report en financia! performance

«  Monthly Health and Safety Report

+  The Group 5 Qlympic and Paralympic games plan

« The effect of the proposed HS2 eail hink on the Group,

»  Proposals for the acquisiion of capital assets {above the required threshold level),
+  Dfcom and Royal Mail proposals including the approval of a new access contracl,
= Strategic reviews including market and competdor behaviour,

«  Operatonal and | T performance revigws,

+  Corporate governance best prachice

*  Reviews of proposals made by Board Commillees, and

+  Dividend policy

Board evaluation

An evalualion of the Board is commutiees the individual directors and the Chairman was conducted intesmally This was ded by the Chairman, whe invited each
diectos io complele a survey, the resulis-of which were discussed baih collectvely.as a Board and with eachndwidual director -

In addition, the Chairman convened meetings of the aon-execulive direciors to assess the performance of the Board in the absence of the executive directars
Furthermore, the performance of the Chairman was discussed separately by the non-executives without the Chairman present

Overall, the Board and its commutiees remain satished ihat they continue to operale effectively, that the infarmation directors receive 1s both of the required quahiy
and orovides sufficiant ime for adequate review, and that there are consequently ne matenal changes required to exshing practices

Board Independence
he Board considers all the Company's non-execuiive directors to be independent 1n chiaracter and judgement and fiee from any elabonships or circumstances which
are ikely to affect, or could appear io affect, their judgement

The Cade stales that the Beard should determine whether a director (s independent In characier and judgement and whelher there are relationships er circumsiances
which are Dkely to affect or coutd appear lo affect, the direcier 5 judgement, for example serving on a boad for more than ning years or where he/she has had a
malenal business relationship with the Company within the last thiee years

Bifl Cockburn who had in recest years served as the senior independent non-executive directer retired on 31 May 2012 Bill Cockburn hag intially heen appointed
to the Board as a non-executive direclor m Apnl 2002 and had therefore served on the Board for more than nine years

Bill Cockburn previously had a consuftancy agreement wivich included incentives in relation to ihe perfarmance of UK Mail  These incenlives vesled in May 2008
with payment of s entillement shortly thereatter Bill 5 role since thal time had been solely as a non-executive director  The board had previously evaluated Bill §
|udgement and character, and found it hac been consistent thraughoul and have therefore satishied [hemselves that Bill Cockburn acted as an indepandent director

The Chairman of the company Peter Kane 15 nol Judged 10 be independeni due te his stgnificant shareholding Peter Kane was appointed as a director 1n Apnd 2001,
and having now served on the Board for more than nine years, 1s =quired under ihe provisions of the Code to submid himself for re-election each yaar

The Board have evaluated Peter's performance and the operation of the Board as a whole, and are satisfied that ne ene individual dominates procesdings
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Board Commiitees

The Board has a number of commuliegs, the pnncrpal ones besng the Audit Remuneration and Nomination Committees. Membership of these commutiees as ai May 2013

and their pnncipal terms of reference are set oul below

30 UK Mail Group plc

UK Matl Group ple
Board of direciors

Audit Committee
Bl Spencer {Chairman)

Jessica Burley, Michael Findlay

Cwversees the Group's financial statements
Monitars the adequacy of inteme! controls and
nsk menagemeni processes
Reviews the critical accounting policies and
compliznce with account:ng standards
Oversees the selection, compensation,
independence and performance of the Group s
exdemal auditors
Monitors the ndependen ce and performance of
1he Group's Head of internzt Audit and Group
Risk

Remuneration Committee

Michae! Findlay (Chairman)
Jessica Burley, Bill Spencer

Nomination Committee

Peter Kane (Chaiman),
Jessica Burley, Michzel Findlay Bill Spencer

Leads the progess for, and recommends afl
appointments to the Beard

Reviews succession planming ot the Board

Sets remuneration for all executive directors
including share-based incentives, pensicns
and other benehis
Monitors ihe level and stucture of
rernuneration for the fust layer of management
below Board level
Approves inial grants and subsequent exercise
of all share-based incentives
Responsible for appainiing emuneration
consultanis
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Audit Committee Report

"The Comnutiee has worked closely with both ihe mlernal and external audilors iis year to improve ihe effechive management of risk and inlernal conirols”

RESPONSIBILITIES
The main roles and responsitilities of the Audit Committeg are set oul n wntten lerms of reference, avadable on the company s website www ukmail com These terms
are considered annually by the Audit Commitiee and referred to the Board for agproval

The main rgsponsibilities of the Audit Commuttee are summarised below

Financial reporting
The Commttee 15 responsible for ensuning the integnty of the Company's financial information and oiher formal documents relating to its financial perfarmance and for
making appropriale recommendalions o the Board before publication

A key factor 1n ensuring the integrity of the financral slatemenis 1s compliance with accounting standards and consislency of accounting palicies from one year to the next
Addmonally, 1he Commiltee reviews the significant issues and judgemenls made by management, including lhe potential classiication of exceplional items and reviews
the reporis and opinions of the exieral autiors

Risk management and internal controt

The Commitiee 15 fespansible for reviewing the Company s internal coniro! and nsk management systems, by considering reports from the Head of Internal Aud:t and
Group Risk 1he Group Finance Director and the exlernal auditors

Internal audit

The Commitiee reviews and approves 1he Internal Audit work plan, which is determined through a structured nsk assessment' process

External audit
The Committee 1s responsible for the approval of the appointment, terms of engagement, compensabion and independence of the external audilors

The Commuttee reviews and challenges the external audi plan to ensure that all the key sk aieas have been ideniified and included
he Cormmittee cansters the reports and recommendalions made by the external auditoss regarding éinancial control, governance, acceunting and audit 1ssues

Fraud angd bribery

The Company operates a whistleblowing’ hatline allowing employees, centractors, suppliers or cuslomers fo raise 1ssues of congern in relation to suspected dishonesty
or malpractice on an entirefy conidential basis The Commuttee regularly reviews reported ‘whistleblowing’ activity, and other identified incidents of actual or potential
fraud and ihe subsequent actiens taken by management

The Audit Commiitee also monitors ihe Group s campliance with the provisions of the Bribery Act 2610

GOVERNANCE

The Audit Commities 15 composed of entirely independent non-executive direciors The Board has sabished itself thal the chaimian of the Audit Commuitee, and the
Commitiee colleciively, have ieceni and selevant financial expenence dug to the senior pasiions 1hey hold or hetd in other public companies te enable the Commiitee
to function efectively and to discharge its responsibiilies

Audnt Committee membership, meetings and attendance

Director Date of appointment | Position Actual Number of Possible Number
meetings attended | meetings attended

Bitl Spencer — Charman 1 Nov 2011 Independent Nar execuiive director 4 4
Jessica Burley 1 Sept 2012 Independent Non-execulive director 3 3
Mechael Findlay 1 Sept 2009 Semor Independent Non-executive direclor 4 4

Past Committee members

Bill Cockburn — unlil 31 May 2012 1 Apnl 2002 Ex-Semor Independent Non executive director | 1 i
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Other attendees

The Audit Committee reains discretion as to who from outside the committee can attend meetings in full but typically inviles the Chairman, Chief Executive, Group Finance
Durector, Group Financial Controlter, Head of Internal Audit and Growp Risk, and senor reqresentaiives of the external audsiors, although 1! reserves the night to request any
of these indiiduals to withdraw At least once a year the Commiitee meels separately wilh the external auditors and with the Head of Interna) Audit and Group Risk without
execulive management present

ACTIVITIES

The commiltee mel four imes dunng the year and eporis of these meetings were provided to the subsequent Board meetings
The Commuttee discharged s obhgations in respect of the inancial year in the folkowing ways

Financial Reporting

Dunng the year the Commltee reviewed the Group s draft intenm and annual financial reports prior to Board approval As part of these reviews the Commitiee recewved a
igport from the external auditors setting out the accourting and judgmental 1ssues which required s attention The audiiors’ reporis were based on a full audit (Annual
Repart) and a ugh level review {Inienm Repor) respectively

The Commuttee rewewed and approved the prncipal accounting and treasury policies of the Company and proposed changes ie them, and censidered the cniical
accounting judgments made by management in thew application

Managemeni ieparts were reviewed regarding the appropnateness of the going-concern basis, and the Internat Audit review thereof

Risk management and internal control

The Commiitee twice reviewed the pame linancial and non-financial nsks, as identified on the Risk Register duning the year, together with the efiectiveness of the Group's
centrols to manage and miligate the impact of those nsks The nisks and uncertainties which are currently judged by the Board to have the largest patential impact on the
Group are set out on pages 161 17

The Cammitleg was briefed on the key 1ssues identified from the Business Continutty tests undedaken at five sites dunng the year ensunng relevani poinis were camned
into the Busingss Continuity Plan

The Commitiee considered reposts from beth the Group Finance direcior and the Head of Inferna; Audit and Group Risk on the pperation of and 1ssugs ansing frorm, the
Group s infenat control procedures together with abservations frem the external auditors and discussions with senior management

The Company s auditors, Pncewalerhouse coopers LLP presented thenr findings 10 the Committee, following a deiailed (nan-audil) review of the IT and manual controls,
pracesses and systems surrounding revenue assurance A subsequent update was provided to the Committee by the Group Finance Director
Internal audit

Members of the Audit Commutiee receved Intemal Audit Reports on & regular basis througheut the year, as and when they were cancluded Twice duning the caurse of the
year the Head of {ntemal Audit and Group Risk presented updates to the Commuliee as 1o the mest significant findings resulting from this work together with a status and
pragress reporl of the agreed managemeni action implementalion pians

The Internal Audil Plan, which is iniiially determined by the Head of Internal Audit and Gioup Risk through a siructured process of msk assessment, was reviewed by the
Comnittee twice dunng the year, with a number of pnonties changed as a result Whilst the Commiltee agread that in general pricily should be given 1o the percewvad
ghest nsk areas, 1t was also necessary to ensure that all areas of the business both operational and non-gperational are subjecled lo intesnal audit gver the course of a
feur year cycle

The Comrttee also met with the Head of Internal Audit and Group Risk i privale dunng the year

External audit

The scope, fee, periormance and independence of the external auditors were considered by the Audit Committee The Commuitee remains confident thal the abjectivily
and independence of the auditers 1s nol impatied 1n any way by reason of their non-audit work or other factors and has adapted controls te énsure that this independence
15 not comprormised This included a review of the non-audit fees paid to the Group s auditors which was noted as compliant with the Group s policy

The external auditors eporied twice to the Committee on the sigrificant accounting and contiol 1ssues identriied during the course of their work the key accounting and
audil judgements made by maragement and made a number of internal coniie! recommendalions 1n thei management letter

The Commitiee recemved a number of repons from ihe exiernal audiiors dunng the year regarding developments i accounting and reporiing regulatory and corporate
governance matters

The Commutige also met with the external auditers in private during the year
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Fraud and bntery
The Commutiee ieceived reports on fraud perpetuated or atlempted against the Company, and subsequent actions iaken

Follawing a eview of the relatively low votume of calls taken by the whistle-blowing helpling, the Commuttee approved group-wide iniliatives 1o re-mwigosale knowledge
of, and the purpose of its exstence 1hrough promational matenial at sites on payshps and via other staff communications

EXTERNAL AUDITOR OBJECTIVITY AND INDEPENDENCE

External audi rotation

As gdetalled above Lhe Committee has primary respansibility for iecommending to 1he Board the appointment, re-appoiniment, ¢r iemoval of the external auditor and the
determinatign of their remuneration The Audit Gommitlee has 2lso noted the changes to the UK Corporate Governance Cede intfoduced by the FRC in September 2012
and n particular, the requerement contangd i the Gurdance on Audit Committees (for FTSE 350 compamies) to put the external audit contract out to tender at least every
len years The new code 15 elfechive for accounting penods begqunning on or after 1 Oclober 2012

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP has been the Company's auditor since August 2002 follawing a tender pracess. In order to ensure good corparate governance and thas the
services of the exdernal auditor remaned of the highest guahty, the Audil Commetiee recommended thal the provision of external audit services be put oul io iendes i
2011

Fallowing a transparent and competiiive tender, including presentations from all candidate hrms and discussions with management ihe Audit Commytiee recommended
to the Board the re-appoiniment of PricewalerhouseCoopers LLP This was subsequently approved al the 2012 Annua} General Meeling

The external audilors are required (o rotate the audit partners responsible for the Group and subsidiary audits at least every five years A new lead audit partnar was
appeinted in September 2011, fallowing the tende: process There are no contractual obligatiens restncting the Company’s chaice of external auditor
Audder independence

Auditor independence 15 maintained by lisuting the nalure and value of non-audit sesvices performed by the extenal audilors, ensunng that employees of ihe external
auditor who have worked on the audit in the pasi iwo years are nol appointed to senior fnancial posiions wighin the Group and the rotation of the lead audi partner at
least every five years. The current lead audit pariner has held the posibion since Sgplember 2011,

Rotaten of semor engagement personnel 1s reviewed on a regular basis by the lead partner in consultatian with the Audit Committee, and a formal staternent of
independence 15 recaived from the exiernal audilors every year

Non-aud#t services provided by the external auditors

The policy for the proviston of nan-audit services by the external auditors, which has heen approved by the Audit Commuttee, 1s available on the company’s websile
www ukmasl com The purpose of the policy +s 10 ensure that the independence of the auditors 1s not imparred

The policy specthcally detals a number of services which are not perritted 1o be provided by she exiernal audrior, incluging those activiiies normally underiaken by
management, where the auditor would be rewarded thiough a success fee, or where the auditor could be required to audit their own work

The policy permits the external auditors to provide a number of spectfied non-audd services to the Company withoul reference to the Commutiee where the work 1 closely
related to the performance of the audil or 1s a togical extension of the audit, or 1s of an assurance or compliance naluie wheee the auditers are in the best place 1o undertake
and where the fee 1s both less than £50 000 and cumulatively less than 50% of that financial year s audit fee

Included within tfus permitted category are a number of taxation services where the independance of the extemal audior 1s not compromised, such as reviews of
corpoaration fax returns for example

The polscy also lists a number of services where a case-by-case decision would be required by the Aucit Commuitiee

In the year undler review all non-audit services provided by ihe external audiiors were in compliance with these sules Funther information on fees payable 1o the exernal
auditors 15 provided 1n note 5

Bill Spencer

Chairman of the Audit Commuitee
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Role and responsibilities

The main roles and responsibiliiies of the Remuneration Commitiee are set oul in wnilen terms of reference available on the company s websile www ukmail com These
terms are censidered annually by the Remuneration Commitiee and referred to the Board for approval

The pnme respanstbility of the Remuneration Comimiitee 15 to delesmine the policy for the remuneration of the Charrman the execulive directors and the members of the
Operating Board

The Commitiee 1s responsible for making recommendations 1o the Board, within agreed terms cf reference on the Company’s framewark of execubive remungration

Remungeration Committee membership, meehings and attendance

Durector Date of appointment Position Actual Number of | Possible Number of
meelings attended | meetings attended

Michael Findlay — Chairman 1 Sept 2009 Senior Independent Non-executive director 5 5
dessica Burley 1 Sepl 2012 Independent Mon-executive dwector 4 4
Bill Spencer 1 Nov 2011 Independent Non-execulive director 5 5

Past Commitiee members

Bill Cockburn —until 31 May 2012 1 Apnl 2002 Ex-Senior Independent Non-executive director| 1 1

Further details of the Commillees membership and respansibilities together with details of director s remuneratien can be found within the Remuneration Report on page
42

Nomination Commitiee :

Role and responsibilities

The main roles and responsibilities of the Nomination Commiltee are sei out in witten lerms of reference, avallable on the company s websiie www ukmail com These
terms are considered annually by the Nomination Committee and referred to the Board for aporoval

The Committee 15 responsibile for making recommendations 1g the Board, within these agreed terms of reference
The main respensitlities of the Nemination Commuttee are summansed below

Composiien of the Board and its commitiees

The Nominatien Comritiee 15 responsibie for a number of matters relaling to the composition of the Board ard 11s Commuttees The Commulige meets as necessary to
consider the size, compesition and Structuse of the Board, and succession pianming The Nomination Commitiee plays a key role for appointments to the Board m agreeing
the pnnciple job descnplion appornting independent recruliment consultants and intesviewing the preferred candidates

The Commutiee keeps itselt updated on key developments relevant ta the Company, including most recently on the subject of diversity in the boardroom  Whilsl no
specific targets have been sei the Norminations Committee confirms thal the benehis of dversily, including gender diversity will continue to be a consideration when
changes to the Board are contemplated, whilst ensuning that the pnmary objective remains ensuring that 1he Board has the appropnate balance of skills expenence and
independence

The Commiitee also makes recommendations ta the Board on the membership of its commuttegs

Performance evaluation

The Committee 15 respensible for reviewing the eflecliveness of the Board as a whole and s commuttees including sts own As part of this responsibihty the Commuttee
15 requised to review the time commiiments required from non-executives on an annual basis through use of & performance evatuatien process

Re-election of directors

The Commitiee makes recommendations to the Board under both ihe annual re-election and retirement retaiion provisions in the Company s Arlicles of Association, having
regard to both the overall balance of knowledge skills and expenence on ihe Board and the need for the Board to be piogressively refreshed, pachicularly 1n telation to
direckors being re-elected for a teqm beyond mine years
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Director Date of appomtment | Position Actual Number of | Possible Number of
meetings attended | meetings attended

Peter Kane — Chairman 10 July 2001 Chairman 2 2
Jessica Burley 1 Sept 2012 Independeni Non-executive director - -
Michael Findlay 1 Sept 2009 Senior Independent Non-execulive direclor 2 2
Bill Spencer 31 May 2012 Independent Non-execulive director 1 i

Past Committee members

Bill Cackburn — until 31 May 2012 1 Apnl 2002 Ex-Senior Independent Non executive director | 1 1

Nommation Comrmittee Actwity during the year

The Nommabon Commitiee met iwice duning ihe year The Committee discharged s obligabions in respact of the inancial year in the following ways

Compostition of the Board and ds committees

Under the quidance of the Chairman a recruitment process had been underlaken to find a replacement non-exeulive director foflowing the retirement of Bdl Cockburn in
May 2012

Hanson Green, an external search agency specialising 1n ihe recruitment of Directors whnch has no connection to the Company, was engaged 1o assist i the appointiment
ol Jessica Burley A descriphien of the role and capabilities required for the position was provided to the agency Reports on potential appointees were provided to the
Commutiee members who afler careful consideration made a recommendation o the Board

In forming this decision the Committee considered Lhal Jessica 1s able to devote sufficient ime to this role and complements the skills knowtedge and experience of the
existing Board

Re-election of directors - z

The Narminalion Commitiee strangly supperts the re election of the ihree directors standing for election at the Company s forthcoming Annual General Meeting details of
which can be foung in the Notice of Meeting accompanying this Annual Report

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of dwectors has overall responsibility for ensuning that the Group maimiains a system of internal control to provide 1t with reasonable assurance regarding effective
and efficient operations nternal financial control and compliance with laws and requiations, whitst the rcle of management 1s to implement the Board s policies on sk
and control and provide assurance en compliance wilh those policies There are inherent limitations n any system of intemal conlrol and, acecordingly, even the mosl
effeciive system can provide only reasonable and not absclule, assurance

The Turnbull report, as revised in Oclober 2005 by the Fancial Reporling Councit, provided further guidance as 1o how the Code pnnciples on internal contral should be
applied in praclice

The Board considers that the Company has complied with the Tusnbull repert throughout the year There 1s a formal on going process for dentifying, managing and
reviewing any changes in the nsks {aced by the Company This process operaies under the direction of and 15 regulany reviewed by, the Board who 1s satisfied with the
level of elfeciveness of the internal control system

The key features of the intemal control system within the Group are

= clearly defined delegaton of respansitulilies, including relevant authonsation levels,

»  clearly decumented mitemal procedures set out in operational and administration manuals,

+  regular compliance audit visiis 1o all owned and franchised locations which monitor compliance wilh procedures and assess the integniy of fnancial infermaiien
= review of bath finanesal and operational pracedures by the Head of tniernal Audi and Group Risk, priontised v the perceved ghest business nisk areas

*+  a Group-wide nsk management framework which 1s embedded throughout the Group Under it key nsks are identified and assessed and acton plans are developed
to mitigate o7 eliminate unwanted exposures The results of these reviews are placed on sk regislers and are reviewed quarierly,

= regular mformation provided fo semior management, covening financial performance and key business indicalors
moanthly monifanng of results aganst budgel forecast and prior year with major vanances being followed up and management achion taken where necessary and

+  awhislle-blowing pohicy which sets out 2 framework for dealing with any allegations of fraud financial misreperting and any whistle-bfowing notification
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Financial Reporting

In addition to the general nsk managerment and internal control processes descnbed above, the Group has also implemented internal canirols specific to the financial
feporting process and the preparation of the annual and intenm consolidated finangial statements

The main cantrol aspecis are as loliows

formal watten financial pelicies and procedures applicable to ang consisten for all businass unils,
a detailed reporting calendar including the submission of detailed monthly accounts for each business uni in addition 1o the year-end and interim reporting process,

detailed managemeni review ai Operating Board and Main Board leves of the monthly management accounts with additionally an Audrl Commuttee review in respecl
of the inle:m and year-end accounts, and

monthly reconcilialion and review of all balance sheet accounts

Other

Details of the Group s activilies in relation to its environmental employment and heatth and salety responsibitiies are sel out n the Corporate Respensibility statement

The Board has reviewed the effecliveness of the internal control systems dunng the peniod covered by the financial statements and up 1o the date of approval thereof This
review covered all controls, including firancizl operational and compliance controls and nsk management

No significant findings were identidfied whigh required achon to be taken

Relations with shareholders

Whilst there 15 a substantial shareholding represented on the Board, the Company values ils dialogue with both insiilutional and pawate invesiors Two-way communication
withmstitulronal invesiors: analysts and pnvate investors 1s actively pursued and a senes of presentations and meetings are held throughout the year carefully recognising
slatutory constraings cencerning 1he disclosure of snformatien Feedback from these meetings 1s collaled by the Company s advisers and owculated 1o members of the

- Board |0 gnsure 1hat they aze kepl nformed of Ihe views of shargholders. In addiign, the Chawman penigdeally atiends meetings with sharghelders, and agn-gxecutive
direclors are imated to altend resulls presentations

The Group s annuat and hali-yearly results, interim management statements, trading updates, presentations given to analysts and all annguncements made through the
RNS are published on the Company s websile at www ukmal com A full Annuat Report and Accounts 15 sent to all shareholders who wish to receive one

All shareholders are given at least 20 working days' netice of the AGM It 1s standard practice for all directors to attend the AGM to which all shareholders are invited and
at which they may put questions to the charmen of the vanous commitiees or the Board generally The proxy votes for and against each resclution as well as votes withheld
{which may be recorded on the praxy farm accompanying ihe noitce of AGM) are counted before the AGM commences and are made available 1o sharehalders at the close
of he formal business of the meeting The proxy votes are also announced through the RNS and posted on the Campany s websile shordly after the close of the meeting
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Directors’ Report

The directars present therr Annual Report and the zudiied conselidated financial
statements of UK Mail Group Plg for the year ended 31 March 2013

Principal actnities

UK Mail Group Plc {registration npmber 02800218} 15 a public hmited company
ncorporated and dormiciled n England ard the helding company of UK Mail
timied and UK Pallets Limited 11 1s quoled on the London Stock Exchange
{LSE UKM) The Group's principal aclvily 1s the provision of express collection
and delwvery services for parcels mail and palletised goods

Busingss review

The Companies Act 2006 requires us to presenl a fair review of the business of
the Group dunng the year to 31 March 2013 and of the posiion of the Group at
the end of the financial year and a description of the principal nsks and
uncertainires facing the Group

The informatign thal fullils the requerements of the Business Review can be
found n the Chawman’s Slatement Business Rewew {incfuding Financial
Review), and Corporate Responsibihity siatermenis which are incorporaled 1n
this reporl by reference

Results and dvidends

The profit for the financial year of £13 5 million 1s repoded in the Conselidated
Stalement of Comprehensive Income ¢n page 58 A final dividend of 11 8p per
share in respect of 1he year ended 31 March 2012 was paid on 27 July 2012
An unchanged intenm dividend of 6 4p per share in respect of the year ended
31 March 2013 was paid on 18 January 2013 and the directors recommend a
inal dwadend ot 12 4p per shars, payable an 26 July 2013 {o sharehalders en_
1ne register on 28 Jung 2013

Corporate governance report

The Corporate Gavernance reporl {or the year ended 31 March 2013, prepared
in accordance with rule 7 2 of the FSA’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules 1s
set out an pages 26 to 36 and forms pari of this Direclor s report by reference

Donations

Ourng the yeas, the Group made chaniable domabions of £110,672 {2012
£96 372) tg a number of bolh local and national chantable causes including
£80,672 to Cancer Research UK (2012 £80 929} and £33 000 to NSPCC
(2012 Enil} The Group made ne political donatigns dunng the year {2012
)

Directors and their interests

A hist of dueciors their inerests i (he ardinary share capital oi the Company,
iheir interest 10 in its long-term incentive plan and detatls of thewr options over
the erdinary share capnal of the Company are given 1n the Remuneration Report
an pages 42 to 56

No director had a matenal intesest i any sigmificant contract, other than thear
contracl for services, with the Company or any of s subsidrares at any hme
dunng 1he year

Subject 1o the Company's Articles of Association, UK legisltation and any
durgctions given by special resolution, the business of the Company 1s managed
by the Board, which may éxercise all the powers of ihe Company Bnel
particulass of the directoss in office as at the dale ol this Report are shown in the
Board of Drrectors section of this Annual Report

Duectors’ mdemmities

As at ihe daie of this report indemmiies {which are qualifying 1hird-party
indemnity provigtans under the Companies Act 2006) are 1n place under which
the Company has agreed to indemnify the durectors of the Company and the
{omer diectors of the Company who held office dunng the year ended 31
March 2013, 1o the extent permitted by law in and by the Company's Anlicles of
Associatiort 1n respect of habihties incurred as a Jesult of thewr office The
Company maintains insurance against certan hatihities which cou'd anse fram
a negligent act or a breach of duty by its dueclors and officers n the discharge
of their duties

Employment policy

The Group § policy 1s to maintain as far as practicable, close consultations with
employees on matters likely to affect therr snterests and, to this end has an
established Employee Consultative Group The Group 15 an equal oppartunities
emplayer and holds an Investars in Peaple’ certificate

The Groupy's pehicy and practice 15 1o encourage the recruiment and subsequent
traimng career development and promotion of disabled persons according to
their aptitudes and abilies and the retention and retraiing of emplayees who
may become disabled during ther employment

Many employees are slakeholders in the busingss through participation an share
option and long term ncentive plan schemes

Further information concerning the Group s human resource management
actwaties 1s selaut inthe Our People report oa page 18

Envirgnmental responsibvisty and health and satety = -

A statement on fhe steps iaken o operate the busness in pursuit of good
environmental and health standards (s set out in the Corporate Responsibiliy
stalement

Financsal instruments

The Group's financial instruments are set ol 10 note 1 1o the hinancial
siatements The Group’s financial nsk management objectives and policies and
s exposure 1o the following risks — cred)i, market price, interest rale bquidity
foreign exchange and capital - are incluged n note 26 io the finanwal
statements

Research and development

The Group 18 engaged 1n on gmag research and development aimed at
Impreving processes and expanding the range of service offenngs Research and
development expendilure vs expensed when incurred of tn the case of internal
software developments capitalised (see note 11} where it meets the required
recognition ¢nlena detarled in rote 1 to the financial statements

Supphier payment palicy

The Group 5 policy concermng the paymenl of its trade pavables 1s 1o follow the
Beiter Paymeni Practice Code which can be found at www payontime co uk The
Group endeavouwrs to agree slandard terms of payment with 1ts major supphers
at the commencement of business Suppliers fulfilhng the conditons of supply
are paid m accordance with the agreed standard lgrms Other suppliets are pard
in accordance with contractual terms as agreed from Iime 1o time  As at 3t
March 2013 the Group had 34 6 days (2012 38 1 days) purchases outstanding
in trade credilors
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Propertes

The directors ase of the epinion that ihe current market value of the Group's
praperties 1s in excess of the cairying amount at which they are included 1n the
balance sheet

Going concern

The Group s business activities, together with the factors likely 10 affect its future
development performance and position are set out in the Business Review en
pages 4 1o 9 The hnancial position of the Group s cash flows, hiquidity
posiion and borrowing facilities are descnibed in the Financial Review The
Financial Review and note 26 to the financial statements include a descrpticn
of the Group s objectives pelicies and processes for managing its caprial, 1s
financial nsk management obyeclives and s exposures to credit nsk and
hquidity fskc

The Group has considerable financial resources avaitable and a strong balance
sheel as explaned in the Financial Review on page 12 Cash fow plans are
prepared as par of the Group's annual budgel and thiee year plan  These plans
are sensitised {o prowide an understanding of the impact of nisks  The plans are
subject o review by Internal Audit who provide a report to the Board The Board
has reviewed and approved these plans As a result, the directors believe thai the
Group 13 well placed to manage its business nsks successfully despite the
challenging market conditions

The directors ace satshed thai the Gioup has adequale resources to continuge in
busingss for the foreseeable fulure and consequently a going concern basis
continues io be appropriate 1n preparing the accounts

Share capital - *

The Company has a single class ¢f share capital which s dwided into ordinary
shares of 10p each All shares rank equally and are fully pard Mo person helds
shares carrying specral rights with regard to the conlrel of the Company

Each share carries tha nght to one vole at general meetings of the Campany and
na nght to ficed nceme

Directors are siill imsted as io the number of shares they can allo} The current
authonty allows Carectars to allol shares up 1o a nominal amouni of £1,526,852
Duning the year ended 31 March 2013, the Directars exercised their authonty 1o
allot shares in respec! of employee shaie schemes (see note 23)

The Company may purchase its own shares An authonty from erdinary
shareholders for the Company 1o purchase up to 5 473 147 shares (representing
approxmately 10% of its 1ssued share capiial at 5 June 2012) remained in force
at 31 March 2013

The Company operates an employee benefit trust to hold shares i ihe Company
wiich are used to salisfy granis under the Group s share incentive schemes EES
Trustees Intematignal Lid 15 he current Liustee of the trust The irusiees may vole
1 respect of any shares held in the trusts bul has waved this night

Details of the movement in the authonsed and issued share capital of the
Company dunng the financial year to 31 March 2013 and of the outstanding
oplions over shares in the Company at 31 March 2013 can be found in nete 23
to the financial statements on page 79

General nghts attaching to shares

The nghis atach:ng 1o the ardinary shares are set out n the Companies Acl
2006 and the Company's Arlicles of Associalion A copy of the Articles can be
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obtained on request from the Company Secretary The Arlicles may only be
changed by special esolution of shareholders which requires on a vole on a
shaw of hands, al least three-quarters of the shareholders or proxies present at
the meeling to be in favour of the resolution or, on a pol ai least three-quarters
tn npmenal value of the voies cast by sharehoiders or thewr proxies 1o be in favour
of the resolution

A shareholder whose name appears on The register of members may choose
whelher those shares are ewidenced by share certificates (cerificated form} or
held tn electromc form {uncertificaled} (n CREST

Dividend reghts

Subject to the prowsions of the Companies Act 2008, the Company may, by
ordinary resolution declare & dividend 1o be paid to sharehaolders but the
amount of the dividend may noi exceed the amount recommended by the Board
The Board may also pay isenm dwidends al any hime and of any amount
whenever in the opivion of the Board there are sufficient distnbutable profits of
ihe Company to ment paymeni

Vating nghts

Subject to the restrichons set cul below a shareholder 1s entitled to attend {or
appeint another person as his represeniative (a ‘praxy’) to atlend) and to
exercise all or any of hus nghts fo speak ask questions and vote ai any general
meeting of the Company A shareholder may also apposnt more than one proxy
provided that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the nghts atlached fo a
differert share or shares held by ihal shareholder A proxy need nol be a
sharehglder of the Company

The right 1o appoinit a proay does nat apply fo a person who has been nominaled
under section 146 of the 2006 Act 10 enjoy nformalion nghis {a Nomunaled
Person’) He/she may, however, have a nght under an agreement with the
regustered shareholder halding the shares en s/her behalf to be appointed (or
lo have someone else appointed) as a proxy Alternalively 1f a Nominaled
Person does not have such a right, or does not wish 1o exercise it he/she may
have a nght under such an agreement to give instructions 1o the person holding
the shares as to the exercise cf voling nghis

In accordance with secilon 327 of the 2006 Act, m order to be valid, any form
of proxy senl by e Company to shareholders or any proxy registered
elecliomcally n refalson ta any generat meeting musi be delivered to the
Company's registrars not later than 48 hours belore the time fixed far holding
Ihe meeting {or any adjourned meeting) In calculating the 48 hour penad no
account shall be taken of any part of a day thai 1s not a working day Full details
of the deadlines for exercising voting nights n respect of the 2013 AGM are set
out In the Notice of AGM

Subject to any nghts or restrictions for the ime being attached to any class or
classes ¢l shares and to zny other provisions of the Ariicles of Association or
statutes on a vole on a sesofulion at a general meeting on a show of hands every
sharehalder present i person, every pioxy present who has been duly appointed
by one or more shaceholders enbiled to vole on the resoluiten and every
authonsed representative of a cosporahion which 18 a sharehotder of the
Company enbiled to vote on the resolulicn shatl have one vote If 3 proxy has
been duly appointed by more than one shareholder and has been mstructed by
one or more of those sharehalders lo voie for the resolution and by one or mare
of those sharehclders to vote agaist i, that proxy shall have one vote for and
one vole against the resalution 0n a pall every shareholder present 1n person
or by proxy shall have one vote for every share held
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A resolubon pul 1o the vote at a general meeting shall be decided en a show of
hands unless the notice of ihe meeting specifies thal a poll will be called on
such resolution or 2 poll 1s {betore the resolution 1s put to the vote ona show af
hands ar an the declaration of the resulis of the show of hands) direcled by the
Chairman or demanded 1n accordance with the Articles of Association

[ta person fails 1o give the Company any information required by a notice served
on fum by the Company under section 793 of the 2008 Act {which confers upon
pubhic companies the power to require informalion 1o be supphed n respeet of
a person s interests in the Company s shares) ihen the Company may, no soener
than 21 days later, and alter warning that person, serve a disenfranchisement
nolice upon the shareholder regisiered as the holder of the shares in respect of
which the section 793 notice was given Unless the information required by the
section 793 natice 15 given within 14 days such holder will not be enbitled 1o
recewe nolice of any general meeting or attend any such meeting of the
Company and shall not be entilled to exercise either personally or by proxy, the
voles attaching Lo such shares in respect of which the diseniranchisement noltce
has been given unless and unhiF the iformation required by the section 793
notice has been provided

Liquidation

It ihe Company 15 wound up the hquidator may, with the sanclion of a special
fesolution of the Company and any other sanchen required by law divide
amongst the shareholders the whole or any part of the assets of the Company
He may for such purposes set such value as he deems fair upon any property
Io be dwded and may determine how such division shall be carned oul as
between the shareholders or different classes of shareholders The ligurdator
may also transfer Ipe whole or any parf of such assets 1o lrusiees fo be_held in
trust for the benehit of the shareholders No shargholder can be compelled io
accepl any shares or other secunties which would give him any hatlity

Transfer of shares

These are no specific restnclions on the size of a hetding nor on the Iransier of
shares, which are bath gaverned by the general prowisians of the Articles and
legisiaon  The Direclors are not aware of any agreements between lhe
Company s sharehelders thai may rsull in restnchions or the transfer of shares
or on voling nghls

In accosdance with the Listing Rutes of the Financial Services Aulhonty, certain
emptayees are required to seek the approval of the Company lo deal in s
shares

The duectors may decline to register the transter of any cerlificated share unless
the mstrement of transter 1s duly stamped {if stampable) and accompanied by
the certificate of the shares to which it refates and such other evidence as the
directrs may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the
transfer

Transfers af uncertificated shares must be conducted through CREST and the
directors can refuse to regrsler transfers in accordance with the regulaiions
goveraing ihe operation of CREST

All share transfers must be regisiesed as soon as practicable

Change of contrgl — significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions entidling the counter
parhies 1o exgrcise iermenation nghts in the event of a change of control in the
Company

Under the ierms of the banking facility agreement hsted in the Financial Review,
it any person, or group of persons acting in congerd, gains contral of the
Company Lloyds TSB Bank plg 15 ne longer obliged 1o fund any loan, and may
cancel 1ts commitment under the faciity and declare (s participation in all
oulstanding loans together with accrued interest and all other amounts payable
under the facility, immedialely due and repayable

A number of commercial agreements entered nto in the normal course of
busmess include change af control provisians

The Group’s share schemes also contain prowsions relating to the vesting and
exercising of awards/options in the event of a change of control of the Group

The execulve directors service agreements confain prowisiens for up to 12
maonths compensation for foss of ofice or empleymeni fotlowing a takeaver
Fusther details are reported in the Remuneration Repert

Amendment of the Company’s Articles of Assocration

Any amendmenis to the Company s Arlicles of Association may be made in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way of special
resolution

Appointment and replacement of directors

The Board must compnse of nol less than 3 directors and na more than 15
directors

Mo persen other than a director retining at a general meeling shall, unless
recommended by the direciors lor election, be ehigible for election 1o the office
of dyecior-unless,_noi_less thap 7 noy mote thap 42 days beforehand, the
Company has been given nolice execuled by a shareholder ehgitle to vote at
the meeting of his intenion 1o propese such person for election together with
a nolice executed by that person of his willingness to be etecied

The Company may by orhnary resolution, of wiich special nolice has been
given 1n accordance with section 312 of the 2006 Act remove any direclor
befare the expiraton of his penod of office and may, by ordinary reselubion,
appoint anothes person n his stead

Substantial shareho!ders

As al 21 May 2013, in accordance with the Disclasure and Transparency Rulgs
the Company had been notified of the following substantial shareholdings, other X
than those of the Directars, n the 1ssued share capdal of the Company

As a percentage of

the Issued

No of shares share capital

Mr John Kane 15,975,647 29 19%
Mr Michael Kane 3,708,725 1043%
M & G lavesiment Management 5,653,576 1033%
Ms Joanna Bailey 3974320 726%
Lipntrust Asset Managemeni 3,215183 587%
Fideltty mnvestments 2847 868 520%
Schioder Invesimenl Management 2,512513 458%

Mr John Kane and Ms Joanna Barley are the adull children of Peter Kane
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Repen, the Dweclors
femuneration Repart and the financial stalements in accordance with applicable
law and regufations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year Under that Yaw the directars have prepared the Group and Parent
Company financial stalements 1n accordance wilh International Financial
Reporiing Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unmion Under
company law the directors must not approve the financizl statements unless
they are satisfied that they qive a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the profil ar lass of the Group for that penod  In
preparing these financial statements, the directars are required 1o

select suitable accounting peltcies and then apply them consistently

* make Judgements and accouniing estimates that are reasonable and prudent

slale whether appheable IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Umon have
been followed subject 10 any matenial departuses disclosed and exptained
In the financial statements

prepare the financial statements on 1he going concern basis unless it 1s
Inappropnate to presume thal the company will continug 1a busingss

The direclors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records thal are
sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactians ang disclose with
reasanable accuracy at any time the financial posihon of the Company and the
Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statemenis and the Direclors
Remuneration Repori comply wilh the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the

- ——a0up financial starements, Aruele 4_pf e JAS Regulation They ame also

responaible for safequarding the assets of the Company and the Greup and
hence far taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulanties

The directors are respansible for the mainlenance and iegrity of the company's
website — www ukmail com  Legislation i the Umited Kingdom governing the
preparalion and dissermination of inancial statements may differ from legislation
In oihes junsgickons

Each of the direclors whese names and functions are listed 1n the Dwectoss and
Advisers Section confirm that, 1o the best of their knowledge

+ the Group financial staternents which have been prepared in accosdance
wiih IFRSs as adopted by the EU give a true and fair view of the assels,
labilities, financial positian and profit of the Group and

« the Directors report contaned in this Annual Beport includes a fair review
of the development and performance of the business and the pasition of
the Group together wilh a description of the principal nsks and
uncertainties that 1t faces

Independent auditors ang disclosure of migrmation to auditors
Each ot the persons who 1s & director at the ime of this report cenfirms that

= 50 iar as the director 1S aware ihere 15 no relevani audit information of
which the Company s auditors are unaware and

« the director has taken all steps that he or she cught to have laken as a
directar in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant avdit
information and 1o establish that ihe Company's auditors are aware of that
nformation

The audilors, PreewaterhouseCoopers LLP have 1adicated ther willingness to
comtinue 1n office, and a resolution that they be re-appainted will be proposed
at the Annual General Meeling
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Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeling { AGM ) will be held al the offices of Ivestae 2
Gresham Streel Lendon EC2V 70P on Wednesday 10 July 2013 at 12 00 noon
A letter from the Chairman and the Nolice ol Meeting { Nolice’) 1s made
available to all ordinary shareholders at least 21 working days beiore the
meeting and may be found at www ukmail com

The routine business of an AGM 1s to receive and adopt the Director s Annual
Report and Accounts to approve the Remuneration Report of the directors, to re-
elect dieclors 1n respect of those retinng, 1o appaint audiors and fix thear
remungralion and 10 declare a dividend

Praviding that notice 15 given lo the Company no later than six weeks before an
AGM or no later than the dale on which the nolice of AGM 1s given, shareholders
representing at least 5% of the total voling nghis of all ihe shareholders who
have a nght to vole at the AGM or at least 100 shaieholders who have that nght
and who ho!d shares n the Company on which there has been pad up an
average sum per shareholder of at least £100, may require the Company 1o
include an item i the business 1o be dealt with at the AGM

All Directors are requested to attend the AGM The Chairman and each Board
Commitige chairman make themselves available to take questions from ordinary
sharehelders at the AGM

Annua! General Meeting - special busingss

I addiion to the routine business of the meeting the special business sel out
below will be transacted

Resolutton 9

Resoleton @ ercws a-similar atthonty ghven 2188t 7ears Anma! Generat Meeting
and, if passed, will auihonse the directors to allot shares in the Company {and 1o
grant such nghis) up 1o an aggregate nominal amount of £1,526 701 If gven,
1is authoniy will expire &t the conclusion of the Company's next Annual General
Meeting or on 10 October 2014 (whichever 15 the earlier) It 1s the directors'
intention to renew this authanty each year As at the date of this document, no
ordinary shares are held by 1he Company In treasury

This resolution complies with the latest guidance 1ssued by the Assogiation of
Brtish Insusers (the ABI")

Resolutton 10

Generally, 1f the direclors wish to allol new shares o ather equity secuniies
{wittun the meaning of section 560 of the Companies Act 2006 (*Act )) for cash
then under the Act they must first offer such shares or secunties to shareholders
in proportion to their existing holdings  These stalulory pre-emption aghls may
be disapphied by shareholders

Resalution 10, which will be proposed as a special resalution, fenews a similar
pawer given at last yeai's Annual General Meeting and 1f passed will enable the
directors o altol equity secunties for cash up to a maximum aggregate norunal
amauni o1 £273 664 without having 1o comply with statutosy pre-emption nghis,
but this power wil be hmited to altoiments

(a) n connection with a nghts issue, open offer or other pre-emptive offer 1o
ordinary shareholders and te holders of other equity secunties {if required
by the nghis of those secunties or the dieclors otherwise consider
necassary), but {In accordance with normal practice) subject o such
exclusions or cther arrangements such as for frachional entitlements and
overseas shareholders as he directors consider necessary, and

(b} 1nany other case up lo an aggregate nominal amount of £273,664 (which
represents approxmalely 5% of the 1ssued ordinary share capiial of the
Company as at 21 May 2013)
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The Company has 1ssued 1,510 ordinary shares in the last year and 57,740
ordmary shares in the last three years on & non pre-emplive basis represenling
0003% and 0 105%, respectively of the ssued ordinary share capital of the
Company This 15 (0 fine with the 2008 Statemant of Puaciples 1ssued by the
Pre-emplion Group which provides thal a company should not sssue shares
represent:ng more than 5 0% n any penod and no mere than 7 5% of ils 1ssued
crdinary share capital fer cash in any rolling three year pesiod, other than ona
pre-emptive basis without prior consultalion with shareholders

If given this power will expice at the conclusien of the Company's next Annual
General Meeting or on 10 October 2014 (whichever 1s the earhier) 11 1s the
directors' intention to renew ihis power each year

Save for 1ssues of shares in respect of vanous employee share scheme, ihe
directars have no curent plans to exercise the authonties sought uader
resolutions 9 and 10 afthough they consider their renewal approprate n order
lo lake advantage of business oppariunilies as they arise

Resolution 11

Resalution 11, which will be proposed as a special resolutian renews a sivular
authonty given al fasi year's Annual General Meeting If passed it will 2llow the
Company to purchase up to 5473 298 ordinary shares in the market (which
represents approximately 10% of the 1ssued ordinary share capifal of the
Company as at 21 May 2013) The mimmum and maamum prces for such a
purchase are se1 out n the resolution  If given, s authorly wiil expire at the
conclusion of the Company's next Annual General Meeting or en 10 Ociober
2014 (whichever 1s the earlier) It 1s the directars' intention 1o renew this
authenty each year

The directors have no current Intention to exercise the avthonty sought undar
resalubion 11 to make market purchases but consider the aulhoniy destrable te
provide maemum flexsbility in the management of the Company’s capital base
I passed, the directors will anly exercise 1ms authonty if they believe that to dg
30 would resull 1n an Increase in earmings per shate and would be i the best
interests of the Company and of its shargholders generally

The Treasury Shares Regulations allow shares puschased by the Company oul of
distributable prohis to be held as treasury shares which may then be cancelled
sold for cash of used to mees the Company s obligations under ws employes
share schemes The authonty sought by thes resolution 1s iniended to apply
equally to shares to be held by the Company as treasury shares in accordance
with the Treasury Shares Reguiations

Cautionary Statemend

While held in freasury the shares are not entilled 1o recewe any dividend or
dividend equivalent (apart fram any i1ssue of bonus shazes) and have no voling
nighls This power will oniy be exercised if and when, in the ight of market
conditians prevathng at that dwne, the dieclors believe thal such purchases
would Increase earmings per share anc would be for the benefits of shareholders
generally The directors will have regard 1o institubional shareholder gu:delines
which may be n farce at the time of any such purchase, holding or re-sale of
shares held in treasury As at 21 May 2013, the Company holds no ordinary
shares in ireasury

As at 21 May 2013 (being the last practicable date before the publication of this
document) ihere were oplians ouistanding over 934,192 ordinary shares in (he
Company (which represents 1 71% aof the 1ssued grdinary share capital of the
Company at thal date) If the authonty to purchase the Company's ordinary
shares was exercised n full and those shares were subsequently cancelled

these options would represent 1 50% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the
Company

Resolution 12 Notice pariod for general meetings

The directors are proposing Resolutian 12 set out in the Nolice to renew the
authonty obtained at Iast year's AGM to reduce ihe nolice penod for general
meetings (other than AGM's) 10 al least 14 days It 1s iniended that §tus shortar
notice period will only be used for non-routing bustness and where il 1s tn the
best inlerests of shareholders as a whole

Annual General Meetings will continue 1o be held on at least 21 clear days'
notice

- fignen the-approval will e efiactive untd the Gompany's nevt Aanyal Generad
Meeiing when i 15 intended (hat a simitar resolubion will be proposed

Note thai the changes io the Act mean that 1n order to be able to call a general
meeling on less than 23 clear days' noiice the Company must make a means
of electrenic voting available te all shareholders for that meeting

By order of the Board

////%/z/

Sieven Glew
Company Secretary
21 May 2013
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Remuneration Report

This part of the Remuneration Report 15 unaudded

Dear Shareholder
il gives me great pleasure i present the Remuneration Report for 2012413

| was appointed as the Charman of the Remuneration the Commttee 1n May 2012, following the resignabion of Bil Cackburn | would hike to thank Bill Cockbum for his successiul
chawmanship of ilis Corritiee over a aumber of years.

In Sepdsmber 2012 | was pleased to welcome Jessica Burley as a member following her appointment to the Board who along with Bill Spencer ensures that we retan a fully
and sutiably independent commuttes

Thete has been much discussion and debatz on execulive pay over the ksl year which | welcome as | remain of the opinion that good hrancial performance follows good
corporaie governance |am also a firm believer 1n epen and transparent diafeque with the Company's shareholders on remuneratzon matters and believe i 1s important to both
understand their views and fo ensure our strategy 15 suitably aligned lo these The Commitiee thus monitars closely the views of the Company's shareholders and nstitubional
nvestor gmdehines for directars remuneration

The Committee has taken note of the recommendations made in the Depariment of Business Innovahion and Skills (BIS) consultabon document on execulve remuneralion
narrative reporting and shareholder voting nghts

Indeed a nurnber of changes have been made 1o both our policies and to the format of the follewing report all of which | hope you welcome

Performance and Reward for 201213

The remuneration framewaork for our Executive Directors remains relatively straightforward Our incentive plans largely compnise an annua! cash banus imcentive linked

Iz both profit and margin performance anda Long Term Incentive Plan aligned to the Company's EPS growth and relative sharehalder return performance over a three
year peiod

2012113 has been a good year of financial and operational performance with resumed growth n earings the delivery of key restructunng activities (as announced
last year} and continued successtul imvestment in the network infrastruclure

As described n the Business F Hewew on page 4 lhe Company's underlying PBT and uperahng margm weie robust for the year under review exceeding Ihe targets set
e p——

under the annual bonus plan As 2 result the Commmee determined thal 45% ol 'the bonus max mur was payahfe 1o both the Chuet Execulwe and the Group Finance
Direclor

However, whilst tang-term incentive awards which are based on three year performance 1o the end of 2012/13 met the threshotd TSR vesimg target, they failed to
achieve the necessary EPS larget, and therefore this element cf the award lapsed The Commuties 1s salisfied 1hat the remuneration payabie to Executives 1 a farr
reward for performance dunng the year

Wz encourage Executive Direcloss to hold a stake in the business they manage, and | am pleased 10 note thal their shareholdings are malenally over the mimimum
levels suggested by this palicy

This year, we further aligned aur remuneratien palicies with the inlerests of afl shareholders thiough the iniroduction of banus and LTIP clawback provisions
Remuneration Policy lor 201314

In summary | see 11 as the Commitiee's pome aim fo ensure the Company continugs 1o attract, motivate and relain the ghest calibre indviduals to deliver the best
possible returns for shareholders ) firmly beheve that the mix of our remuneration packages provides this opportunity, not anly to the Executive Directors but equally
lo the teams hey manage

The Cornmittee feels that the current remuneration structure remains appropniate fo! the current year and therefore does nol propase any matenal changes 1o the -
going policy

Our remungratron packages wiil continue to be reviewed annually 1o ensure they remain highily aligned io the Cernpany's objectives and 1o our sharehalders Interests
whilst ensusing they continue fo motrvate and stretch all our employees to achieve the challenging targets we demand

Finally 1 would welcome the epportunity to see you at this year's AGM

Michael Findlay

Chairman of the Remuneratign Commitiee

42 UK Mail Group plc
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This part of the Remuneration Report 15 unaudited

This report to sharehalders has been pregared on behalf of the board by the Reruneratron Committes The Committee adopts the orinciples of good goverrance as set out in the UK Corporate Gavernance
Code (ihe Code ) and compties with the Listing Rules of the Finangizl Conduct Authority and the relevant schedules of the Companies Act 2006 and the Directors Remuneration Report Reguiations in
Schedufe 8 1o the Large ang Medum-sized Companies and Groups ¢Accounts and Repods) Regulations 2008 These regulziions require the Company & audstors [o repodt on the Audited infarmatian 10
the repon and to statg that this secton has been properly prepared in accordance with these regulations The sechions of thereport which are subject to audit have been highlighted This report 15 subject
to shargholder approval at the Annual General Meeting ( AGM ) on 10 July 2013

As stated i the Chavman s introductory letter the format of this report has been prepared in accordance with the proposed sevised reporting requlations The repert has een spli mto wo sechons ihe
Remuncration Podicy Report setting cut the policy for 2013414 and subject 10 on going review for subsequent peniods and the Implementalion Report which sets oul the remuneration paid n respact of
the year undes review The content of this repert conlinues 1o comply with current legislation

The Remuneration Committae

The current members of the Remuneration Commwtiee (the ‘Committee’) are Michael Findlay (Chawman) Bill Spencer and Jessica Burley Bill Cockbum was the
Chawman of the Commuttee until 31 May 2012 when he resigned s a directar All current members of the Commiites have been members throughout the year except
for Jessica Burley who was appainied on 1 September 2012

The constrtuticn and eperation of ihe Committee duning the year has complied with the Code s guidance on direciors’ remuneratian

The Committee’s principal duty 15 the determination of the remuneration packages for the Chairman, 1he executive directors and the members of the Operating Board
It met 5 imes dursng the year and each member s atlendance at those meetings 15 sel cut on page 34 of the Corporate Governance Report

The Commutiee s delalle terms of eference are availzble on the company website al www ukmail com with the key r2sponsibilities summarsed as follows

The determunation of a semor remuneration strategy that ensures that the senior management of the Company are provided with the appropriate incentives 10
encourage enhanced performance and are surtably rewarded for their indmidual contnbution 1o the success of ihe Company

0

Reviewang the eflectiveness of the semor remuneration policy wilh regard to its impact and compatibility with remuneralion policy across the rest of the
Company,

Ensuring thal any contractual 1erms on termination are fair both to the Company and to the indwidual and that failuie 15 not rewarded,

=== Ensurmg the remineration sotley-operates wathinan acceptable risk profle - - -- - ' - -

Appraving the design, largels and payments fer the Cempany’s bonus schemes,

Appraving the design, targets and annual awards made for 2l share incentive plans requinng sharhalder approval, and

Assessing the subsequent achievernent of the perfarmance 1argets in respect of bath bonus schemes and share incentive plans

The Committee 1S paruculary keen to ensure thal achievernent of the Company's key strategic goals s encouraged Ihrough $he design and implementation of suably
apprepniate remuneration packages, thereby ahgning executive’s interests with those of all shareholders

External 1rends and best pracuice are routinely moniered and the Commuitee welcomes feedback from institutianal sharehalders, advisary and shareholders
representative bodies

Remureration policy report

Our remuneration pedicy 15 fo provide competitive remuneration packages that will ecruit, retain and motivate directors and indmiduals of the required calibee to meet
the Group s strategic objeciives  The objective 1s to ensure the palicy 1s appropnate to the Group's needs and rewards executives for creating shareholder value The
Commiltee momitors the Group’s compliance wilh the Code provisions and insbitulional investor guidelines for directois’ remuneratton

The policy aims to balance appropnalely the fixed and perfarmance-related elements of remuneration  The latter element 1s achieved through an annual bonus scheme
and longer term 1ncentives  The bonus plan rewards the achievements of Group profit before tax and operating maigin targets which the Commitice and the Boarg
believes ase tughly refevant measures of annual perfarmance  Longer term performance remuneration 15 delvered through equity-based LTIP schemes which reward
three-year relative Total Shareholder Retum { TSR') and Earmings per Share {'EPS") performance

The Commitiee normally reviews the execulve dieciors’ and semor management team's remuneration annually, against & pohicy that posiions base salanes al
competiive levels  The vanable elements of the package are designed to aftract high caltbre indwiduals motvale outstanding performance and provide executive
directors and the sentor management ieam with the opporlunily to eam an overall upper quattile tofal iemunerahion package for top quartile performance

The Commitiee regulary reviews the constiluent elements of remuneration and the policy as a whole fo enswre « does not encourage any undue nisk faking
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Details of the ndwidual Exgcutive Drrectors remuneration are descnbed below

The remuneration policy for non-executive directors including the Chawrnan is determined by the Board

Elements of the remuneration package of executive directors

Component

Alignment to strategic goal

Operation

2013/14 Maumum
Potential Value

2013/14 Performance
Metrics

Apphcation for 2013/14

Base salary

Sel at the appropnate level for
ihe skills, expenence, and
general performance of the
individuzl and the role

Any annual increases
awarded are fully ahigned
wilh salary increases across
the company

Normally reviewed in Apnl
of each year by reference
to the mid-market leve! of
companies of similar
revenues, profits and
market capitalisation

The salanes as at 31 March
2013 were,

CEQ £329,000
Gp FD £233 000

These would normally be
subject to 1he annual review
in Apnl 2013 However this
tevigw has been posiponed
to July 2013 (1n Line with
the wider employee
pepulztion review)

None

Salanes are subject to the
nexd annual eview 10 July
2013 where 11 15 anticipated
any Increases pieposed wil
be in ling with the wider
employee population

Pension

Provides a competitive
retirament benefit, in a cost
efficient manner for the
Company

A defined contribubion or
altlematively individuals can
elect to receve therr
pension contnibutions as

2 satary suppfoment ™ -

CED 15% of base salary

GpFD 12 5% of base
salary

Nore

No changes to exssting
coniribution armangements

Benafits

Pravides 2 competitive way 1o
feward executives Ina cost
elficient manner for the
Company

Executive directors receve
prvate health cover,
permanent health insurance
and death in service
benefits and ¢an opt to
teceve either a car or car
allowance

The car allowance or car
benefil as at 31 March
2013 were,

CEO £12,000
Gp FD £10.000

Insured benefit values will
vary kom year fo year
depending on the cost of
prowiding them

None

No changes 1o exishng
beneht arrangements

Annual cash bonus

Designed to reward Execulives
for achieving shorl ferm
objectives linked 1o the
busingss' KPls

75% of the bonus 15
payable in cash

25% of any bonus receved
by execulive directors I1s
compulsory deferced into
the Share Malching plan

The bonus is subject lo
clawback for reasons of
inancial missiatement
and/ar misconduct of an
individual

Maximum of 100% of hase
salary

The bonus (s pnmanly
dependent an a shiding
scale of targels based on

- the Group s underlyng
PBT performance (80%)

- the Groups aclual
operating margin achieved
{20%)

No changes to the incentive
opportumty

Perfarmance measures
remain as

80% hnked to the Group's
underlying PBT perfermance
agans! budget and

20% linked to the Group's
actual operating margin
achieved
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Component

Alignment to strategic goal

Dperation

2013/14 Maximym
Potential Value

2013/14 Performance
Metrics

Application for 2013/14

Bonus deferral

Provides retention and
alignment with shareholders
wirlst rewarding leng-term
value creation

Supports shargholding
guidelng requirements

Exgcutive Direclors are
required to defer 25% of
their annual bonus for a
period of 3 years subject to
continued service only

The Exgcutives receive a
matching award of shares of
equivalent value, under the
Share Malching Plan

("SMP ) which vest after 3
years subject to
performance conditions

25% of annual bonus
deterred

Matching ratio of 11

{1e maximum matching
award of 25% of 1he annual
hanus}

None for deferred bonus

Matching awards are
subject to a shding scale
of EPS grawih targets

The targel sange 15 sel prior
to grant, based on an
assessment of internal
financial forecasts and
having due regard to
external analyst consensus

25% of the 2012/13 annual
honus awarded to Executives
will be deferred with a
corresponding matching
award under the SMP
anticipated n June 2013

Long lerm
ncentive plan

Provides a medium-term
motvational ool to Execulive
Directors, focussec on the
creation of sharehoider value

Aligns directors' and
sharehelders' interests over
the long-term

Supports sharehalding
guidehine requirements

Approved by shareholders
i July 2009

Annual grant of awards
which are subject to
performance condiliens
measured over 3 years

The'LTiP 1s subject 0™ ~
clawback for reasons of
matenal misstalement of
the financial results of the
Company or cassation of
empleyment following
rmiscanduct

Overall erdinary indidual
limit of 100% of base
salary

The hmit can be exiended
to 150% In exceptional
circumstances (e g 1o
acwie Tetention SCERANGS
cr on mitdl regrutment)

It1s proposed that awards
granted 1n 2013/14 will be
subjectto the follewing
performance condiions
measured over 3 years

- Max 50% 15 dependent
on EPS growth 1r 2015416
compared 1o the base EPS
n2012/13

- Max 50% 1s determined
by the e lative TSR
cempared

1o lhe consbituents cof the
FTSE All-Share Companies
index {ex Investment Trusis)

The target range 15 s&t prior
1o grant, based on an
assessment of internal
financizl forecasts and
having due regard to
extemal analyst consensus

An UTIP grant 15 anticipated
to be made in May 2013 an
the following basts,

CEQ- 100% of salary

Gp FD- 100%
of safary

Shareholding
Requirements

To encourage a long-term,
sustainable focus on
shareholder value

Execulive are expecled to
retain all shares which vest
(post settlement of fax
labilities) until they have
the ollowing shareholding

CEQ - 200% of salary
Gp FD- 150% of salary

CEO 200% of salary

GpFD 150%
of salary

None

As at 31 March 2013 each
director has surpassed the
1espective shareholding
guidehne

CEQ — 361% of base salary

Gp FD - 186%
of salary
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Component

Alignment to strategic goal

Opetation

2013/14 Maximtom
Potential Value

2013/14 Performance
Metrics

Application for 2013/14

Non-Executive
Directors

Set at an appropriate level
hased on the hime
commitments and
responsibility of the individual

Fees are paid in cash on a
maonthly basis

The remuneration of each
Nan-Executive Director 1s
100% non-performance
related

Chairman Fee £70,000
Basic Fee £30000

Senior Independent Fee
£5,000

Camnuttee Chairman Fee -

None

No changes (o existing
arangements

£5,000
The lees for the Group

Chairman and cther Non-
Executive Directors arg
deterrmined by the Board as
& whole

A basic fee1s paid to all !
Non-Executive Directors 1
wilh supplementary fees for
holding the position of I
Senior Independent Director
and/or chainng one of the

commillees !

Fees are reviewed on a
annual basis and set in
Tomied to feed piidim - -
companies of comparable
size and with reference to
0ON-(0INg JIMe comrutments

]
I
1

New Appointments | Base salary levels will be set with eference 1o the abave policy but with the fiexbibiy to eflect the expertence and calibre of the indvidual  If a new
directar Is appointed on a below market salary they may be the subject of a senies of phasad increases to achieve a market posiioning over an appropniate

ime frame subjeci to therr development in the role and overall performance
A new director wou'd be expected to participate in the remungration struciure outhingd above

The Remuneration Commitiee may consider it necessary io compenszte an mdwidual for the value of any remuneration losferled on leaving thear current
employer Where this s considered appropriale the Comminiee will enceavour Lo struclure this compensation so that it mirrors the terms of remuneration
being replaced 1n tarms of composition valug and timing

1 Guy Buswell and Steven Glew had shareholdngs at 31 March 2013 of 310 693 and 113 910 respectively The srare price used for cakulaling the value o the executve s shareholdang 1s 37% beng the clasing share price on 31
March 2013 The base salary ysed represents the salary eamed in the fnancrl year as per the Directors emaluments table on page 52

Detailed Remuneration Policy Report (Unaudited information)
Base salanes

Base salanes are reviewed annually although not necessanly aliered In considenng appropnate salary levels the Commitlee takes 1nto accouni the remuneration paig by
comparable UK compames in terms of market capitalisation, revenues and profits  The Company's practice 1§ Lo target basic salanes by reference to the mid-market leve!
Ihe appropnate market for the execulve posiion Howeves, the Commuiltes will not reveew external benchenark data 1n isolation, but will use if as past of a broader review which
considers expenence and developmeni in the role general perfermance levels and wider wage and mflationary indicators In forming thewr decision, the Commitiee 1s mindful
of the general ingreases awarded lo the rest of the nigamsation, and would ordinanly expect to approve a consistent approach

Foltowing the imital decision i March 2012 to freeze base salanes, a salary increass of 1 5% was awarded 1n October 2012 to Execulve Direclors consisten] with the approved
increase applied aciss the Company to all employees The Committee would expect a simifar approach o be adopled for the 2013/14 review which will take place w July 2013
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Annual eash bonuses

The Group operates an annual cash bonus scheme for execulive direclors The level of bonus payment 1s dependent upon the Group s performance evalualed agains!

Group budgefed pre-tax prafit sei out at the beginning of the year The annual bonus 15 nol pensignable by the Cormpany The banus potential for exacutive directors
15 up1o 190% ef basic salzry for maamum perormance

For 2013/14 bonuses will be determuned by performance against 2 sliding scale of budgeted pie-lax prohit (80% of bonus) and operaling margin (20% of bonus}
targels

The Commillee censiders that the prafil belore tax and cperating margin targets are commercaally sensiivg on a forward looking basis and has therefore chosen nof
to disclose them at this time  Full ielrospective discloswe of 1he targets used will be ncluded in the Implementation Report for 2013/14

The annual bonus 15 subject o clawback provisions which allow the Commitige to recover any undue bonus for reasons of matena! misstaterent of the Company s
firancral resulls, cessation of emptayment as a result f misconduct, or admimisirative error Clawback applies for two years from the date of payment

The rules of the bonus scheme require that ai leasl 25% of any bonus recewed by executive directars 1 delered for a perod of 3 years in the share matching plan
The vesting of deferred shares 15 subject to coninued semvice only

Share Matching Plan

Selected executives are required to invest a portion of thexr cash benus in the acquisition of Company shares worth up lo 25% of therr pre-tax salary Where such an

invesiment 1s made the execulives will recenve under he Share Maiching Plan a matching award of shares of equivalent valug  As noted above at least 25% of any
honus received by executive directors will need 10 be invested 1n the Share Matchmg Plan

Awards under the SMP will vest according to the following conditrons

Performance measure | Award proportion Detinttion Vesting requirement

EPS 100% The EPS measure 15 calculated by reference to UK Mail s real Threshold performance —

- £PS giowlh Thie measuie T Gefined as analised giowlhin = | 33 3% wili ves! where EPS
adjusted EPS {1 e ona continuing basis and excluding growth exceeds RPl + 4% pa
exceplional lems) over a hiee year perfarmance penod over a thiee year penod

Maximom performance —
100% will vest where £PS growth
exceeds APl + 6% pa overa
three year perod

The RPI measure 13 used because the Remuneraiion Commutiee believes it ensures that executives are enly rawarded where there has been real giowth
Long Term Incentive Pian

The Group s Long Term Incentive Plan 15 a key link tetween executive rermungration and the long termn success and performance of the Group

The current plan was approved by sharehotders at the AGM in July 2009 This pernuils a maximum potential annual award of shares lo an executive of 100% of salary
{with the addiuonat flexsbility to grant awards worlh up 1o 150% of satary in exceplional cricurmslances, such as onrecruitment of 0 acute retention scenanos) Shares
vest atter three years, condiional upon Lhe satisiaction of welevant performance citena

in order to algn the interests of participants with those of sharehotders, the rules of the plan were amended to allow the Remuneration Cemmutiee 1o delerming that
dwigends accrue on the shares compiised in the award The Remuneralion Commitige can determine that these dividends are satishied eilher as shares or as thew
cash equivaleni when the award vests fo the exient that the performance cntena are achieved

In2012 the Remuneration Comemitiee introduced a ‘clawback’ provision whereby the Commutiee retains the nght, in exceptional circumstances to reclaim any monies
based on fimancial missliatement and/or the misconduct of an individual thiough means deemed agpiopriate to those specific circumstances
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The Comvmittee intends ta grant an award to executwe and operating Board membess in 2013714 at 100% of base salary, wih the following vesting conditions

assurming that all shares are re-invested No shares will be
released undes the TSR condiion if UK Mail's TSR aver the
three year perfarmance perad 1o 31 March 2016, when
compared to that of the FTSE All-Share index {ex Investment
Trusis) falls betow the median

Performance measure | Award proportion Cetintion Vesting requiremnent
EPS 0% The EPS measure 55 calculaled by reference to UK Mail's real Threshold performance -
EPS growlth The measure 1s defined as annuabised growth 1n 25% will vest whese EPS growth
adjustec EPS {1e ona continuing basis and excluding exceeds 6% pa
exceptional 1ems) over a three year performance penod 1o
31 March 2016 Maximum performance -
100% will vesl where EPS growth
exceeds 14% pa
TSR 50% The TSR 1s calculated {on an annuahsed compound basis)

Threshold performance -

25% will ves for median
performance against the consiluents
of the benchmark index.

Maximum performance -
100% will vest for upper guartile
or abave performance against the
conslituents of the benchmark
index

Performance 1n between 1he threshold and maximum points will be calculated on a straight Line basis

These measures are used because the Remuneration Committee believes Ihey offer a balance between meeting the needs of shareholders (by measuning perfarmance
{e0 companies) and providing a messore of performance {EPS Growth} over which the e tirecions have direct influence -

agamst other UK
Other Schemes

Exacutive direclors e eligible to parbicipate in the Group's HMRC approved Sharesave scheme on the same terms as other employees  Under this scheme,

participants may contnbute between £5 and £250 intolat each month, for a fixed period of three or five years., Contnibutions are deducted from net salary At the end
of the savings period, these funds can be used to purchase ordinary shares in the Company at a discount capped at 20% of the markel price set &l the grani date
Composition of Remuneration Package

The targeted composition of each execulive director’s remuneralion between fixed and vanable remuneration 1s approximately S0% denved from selary and benelils

and 50% from vanable incentives as follows

Notes to Charls

1 On-plan benus has been assumed to pay-out at 50% of the maxamum with the SMP {based on the level of deterral at this level of perfarmance) assumed to
pay-oul at 50% and the LTIP vesiing al 50%

2 Maximum full pay-out of the bonus, SMP (based on level of deferral at this level of performance) and LTIP
3 No sharg pnce growih has been modelled
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External Appointments

The Commitiee telieves thal where Board members hold directorships in other compantes the Company can benefit from their expenence  As a result and subject
to the Board s prior approval, executive directors may take on no more han ane exiemal dicectorship and retaim any fees eamed the details of which were as follows

Executive Company Fee £ Comment

Steven Glew SuperGroup ple 50,000 Resigned 5 Feb 2013

Directprs’ Service Contracts

115 the Company's policy that, whutst there should not be 2 fixed duration n respect of direclors’ senice conlracts each contract comams notice penods of not more
than one year and containg a clause whereby the maximum contractual termination payments do not exceed the direelor s remuneration (defined as base salary,
bonus, pension contributions car allowance and any other benefit then accruing) for the previous calendar year

For future director appointments the Remuneration Commitiee has previously determined that any banus element will be excluded fiom termination payments in ling
with best practice ensunng that any such compensation does not exceed the sum of one year's salary, pensicn and benefits and wil) involve mitigation wherever
possible

Mr Buswel! s contract provides that on lerminatian by the Company without cause he 1s entitled to a termination payment of 12 months remuneration with immed ate
effect

Mr Glew's contract provides hat on termination by the Company without cause be 1s entitled to recerve an inibial payment of 6 months remuneration Thereafter, he
wauld be entitled 1o 2 monthly payment at the same annual rate unki the earlier af 12 monihs the date he commences employment with 3 third party of the date he
becomes self-employed

However n the event of terminabion following a change of control, executive directors are entitled to a termimation payment of 12 months remuneratian

P~ R e S S W= R I AN PR o AR e P o v i

There are no prowisions for edher of the executive directors or predetermined compensation in excess of one year's remuneation

The date of each service contract 1s noted in the table below

Execulive Direclor Contract date Unexpired term as al 31 March 2013 Date of next election
Guy Buswell 310306 12 months 2014 AGM
Steven Glew 050606 12 morths 2015 AGM

The Commutteg's policy in an extt event 1s outhned in the table below

Payment "Bad" leaver Deparlure on agreed terms 'Good" leaver

{e g voluntary resignation or {e g death, Ill health, redundancy)

termination for cause)
Base salary, pensignand | Paid for the proportion of the | Treatment wili normally fall Paid up 1o the data of leaving mcluding any uriaken halidays
benefits notice period worked hetween Good leaver and Bad and, subject to mitigation a payment in heu of notice may he

Leaver treatment subject to the macle
thscretion of the Remuneratien

Annugt bonus Nona Commitlze and the terms ofany | Bonus paid pro rata based en the complete calendar months
termination agreement worked
Long Term Incentive Plan | Unvested share awards lapse At the discretion of the Remunerziion Committes unvested

awards are ehgible to vest al the normal vesting date with the
Remureration Committee's normal palicy being (1) to apply
performance taigets over the onginal performance pernod and
{1} the apphcation of a pro-rata reduction

Other Mone Disbursements such as legal cosis outplacement ete
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Non-Executve Directors

All directors are requised by the Company's Articles of Association o submii themsalves for re-glection at least every thiee years orin the case of a director apposnted
by the directors in the past year such director 1s required 1o submit themselves for re-election ai the next AGM

Execulive Director Contract date Unexpired iermas at 31 March 2013 Date of next election
Jessica Burley 300712 29 months 2013 AGM
Peter Kane 011001 tndefinite 2013 AGM
Michae! Findlay 240412 29 months 2013 AGM
Bill Spencer 101014 19 months 2014 AGM

How Employees' Pay 1s taken into Account

The Remuneration Committee will censider the remuneration structures elsewhere in the Group when selling pay lor the Executive Directors and in particular by
considenng the salary increase levels set jor the Group

Regular updates are provided by the HR function so the Remuneration Committee 1s kept aware of the palices across the Geoup

No formal consultation with employees 15 conducted in relation to their views on the current pay policy although general engagement 1s continually assessed thiough
employee surveys which include several queshions regarding the effectiveness of the current remuneration pehcy, and ECG leedback

How Executive Directors' Remuneration Policy Relates to the Wider Group

The remuneration pelicy summansed n the able above provedes an overview of the structure that operates for the Executive Duectors and ather senior management
levels

Below this level 1he same hroad remuneration pnncmles will apply, alben 1t with the suuclure and quantum iz1lored according to me relevani JGD grade based on

semonty, level of respon5|b|luly and’ abllny to iluence overall group performance

How Shareholders Views Are Taken Into Account

The Remunesation Comritee considers shasehelder feedback ie be esseniial in developing a remuneration policy which s fair for both Executives and the Company
Feedback 1s collected at each AGM, during meetings hefd willh sharehalders trom time to e, as well as more general on-going guidance from shareholder
reprasentative bodies  This leedback 1s 1hen cansidered as part of the Company's annual and on gaing reviews af remuneration policy

With regards to 2014/15 the Remuneration Commitiee will review remuneration palicy 1n ight of the feedback recemed n relation 1o the 2013 AGM  The Comnuiltee
will consult with shareholders if any sigmficant changes in 1he policy ate proposed in the future

AGM Vating
At the Company s AGM held on 11 July 2012 shareholders were asked to approve the 2012 Remuneralion Report The foltowing votes were received from
sharehelders
Total number of voles Percenmage of votes cast
For 3861913 9973
Againsi 100 304 026
Abstentions 5190 om
TOTAL 38,724,625 10000
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Implementation Report
Adwisors to the Commitiee

Dunng the vear the Commuties sought advice, from extesnal remuneration cansullants New Bridge Sireet (NBS'), largely as to best praciice n the market, the sefiing
of suitably challenging targets far the Long Term tncentive Plan, and revision of the plan rules so as to introduce ‘clawback’ pravisions in respect of executive directer
awards

NBS also provided sundry administrative semices such as the calculation of the Company’s actual TSR performance against the benchmark actual LTIP vesting fevels
and of the fair vatues of share awards granted dunng the year NBS 15 a member of the Rernunesation ConsuManis Group and s a signatory to iis Code of Conduct
The Commutiee 15 satisfied thal there are no potential conflicts No matenal additional work has been provided to the Compzny by either NBS, or any other company
within the Aon ple group of companies, of which NBS 15 a member

The Commitiee also sought internal suppert from the Group s Charmman Chiel Executive, Finance Director and Head of Human Resources, al! of whom may attend
meetings by invitation, but are not present for any discussions that relate directly Lo therr own remuneralion

The Company Secretary acled as secretary to the Commitlee duning the year under review

Review of the year

Dunng the year ended 31 Masch 2013, the fellowing agenda iiems were distussed

« Review and approval of salary increases for executive dueclors operating board directors and the overall worklorce

Review and approval of the annual bonus schemes and 1argets for the financial year 2012/13
+ Review and appreval of an amendment tg the LTIP 2009 rules to effect the inclusion of executive director ‘clawback’ provisians

« Approval of an LTIP grant te executive and board members

Review ot esgcufive remuntation marke! practice, and - - - -

Review of corporate governance practice

Performance Graph

The graphs shawn below compare the lolal sharehalder relum for an tnvestment in the shares of UK Mail with the relurn for the same investment in the FTSE All-Share
index (excluding Invesiment Trusts) over a five year and a three year penod commencing on 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2010 In the opinion of the Commiltee,
the FTSE Afl-Share index, (excluding Investment Trusts), is currently the most apprepnale index against which the TSR of UK Mail shauld be measured and 1s also
the comparater group used n the Long Term Incantive Plan

Total Share Return Total Share Retum
This graph shows the value by 31 March 2013 of €100 nvested in UK Mail Group on 31 This graph shows the value by 31 March 2013 of £100 nvested in UK Mail Group on 31
March 2008 compared with the value of £100 nvested n the FTSE All Share (eacheding March 2010 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE All Share {excluding
Investment Fusis) hdex The clher powts ploited are the values at whervening nancal fvestment Tusis) index The other points plotted are the values at infervening fnancal
year ends Source Thomson Reuters yeal ends. Sowre Thomson Razess

The ihree year graph has been included as it 15 more closely representative of the performance penod of the executive mcenlive plans
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Directors’ Emaluments

Emoluments recevable by each director during the year were as follows

Execulive duectors

Guy Buswell

Steven Glew
Non-execulive directors
Jessica Burley (1)

Bill Cockburn {n)
Michael Findlay

Trevar Jenkins {m)
Peter Kane

Bifl Spencer {iv)

Satary
& Fees
£000

326

232

18

35

727

{1} Jessica Burley was appainted 1g the Board on 1 September 2012

{n} Bill Cockburn retired rom the Board on 31 May 2012

{1) Trevor Jenkins retired from the Board on 31 Qctober 2011

{iv) il Spencer was appainted to the Board on 1 November 2011

No direclor waved emoluments 1n respect of the vears ended 31 March 2012 and 2013

Single tigure of total remuneration for 2013

The table helow provides a single figure of total mmuneration for 2013 for executive dueciors

Executive direciors
Guy Buswell
Steven Glew

Total

(1} The LTIP value s based on the estimated number of shares vesting al 362 9p being the average share price in the quarter ended 31 March 2013
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Salary
£000

326
232

558

Pension 2013 2012
Benelils Contnibutions Banus Total Tolal
£000 £300 £000 £000 £000
13 49 147 535 386
1" 29 104 376 270
- - - 18 -
. - - 7 45
- - - 39 30
- - - - 20
- - 76 70
- - 35 15
; 24" _n ~ 251 " 1,080 836
Frxed pay Vanable pay
Pension 2013
Benehts Coninbutions Sub tatal Bonus LTI (1) Sub total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
13 19 388 47 43 180 578
ik 29 212 104 A 135 407
24 18 660 251 74 325 985
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The fetlowing fable details the 1otal remuneration of the CEO for the five year pened ending 3t March 2043,

CEO Singte figure of Annual variable Long term incentive
total remuneration element award rales agamst vesting rates agaunst maximum
(€ '000) maximum opportunity opportunity
2009 1,193 50 00% 98 40%
20102 730 50 31% 52 70%
2011 386 000% 000%
2012 386 000% 000%
2013 578 45 039% 12 65%
' L1 vesting 1S a werghted average of 94 34% vesting under the LTIP 99 9% vesting under the ane-off LTIP and 100% vesting under the SMP
2Tl vesting 1S & weighted average of 60 92% vesting under the LTIP and 36 67% vesting under the SMP

Base Salanes, Beneft and Pensien
Salaries were reviewed and increased in October 2012 by 1 5% in ine with the wider employee population 1o £329 000 p 2 for the Chiefl Executive and £233,000
pa for the Graup Finance Director

Benefits comprise company car benefits health insurance and death in sevice benefils

Pensign contnbutiens of 15% of base salary were made to the Chef Execubve and 12 5% of base salary for the Group Finance Dereclor

Annual Bonus - - - - - [ - - PR eI erm—

The bonus in operatian for 2012/13 was subject to slidng scale profit before tax and aperaling margin targels

Performance Measure Budget Threshald Maximusm Actual % of bonus payable
Profit before tax £m £158m £16 Om £19 0m £17 8m 40% (max 80%)
Operating margin % 35% 35% 45% 37% 5% (max 20%)

Therefore total bonus payments were 45% of salary for the Chief Execulive and 45% of salary for the Group Finance Director The Commuitiee 15 satishied that the level
of bonus 15 a fa0r 1eward for the pertormance defiverad in the year

25% of the bonus will be defered into shares atiracting a matching award under the SMP duning 2013/14 No bonus was payable 1n 2011/12 and theretore no deferral
or matching award was made during the year under review

Long Term Incentives
LTIP Awards were granied on 29 Noverber 2012 on Lhe foltowing basis

Execuiive Nursiber of shares Face/Maximum Value of Awards at Grant Date % of Award Vesting Performance Penod
compnising award (% salary) al Threshold
Guy Buswell 94,325 £280 617 (86%) 25% 010412-310315
Sieven Glew 66,939 £199 143 (86%) 25% 010412-310315
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The awards will vesl three years from the daie of grant subject to the foflowing challenging performance condiions

Performance measure | Award proportion Defimtion Vesting requirement

EPS 50% The EPS measure 15 cateulated by reference to UK Mail's real | Threshold performance —
EPS growth The measure 1s defined as annualised grawth in| 25% will vest where EPS growth
adusted EPS {1e on a continuing basis and excluding | exceeds 116% pa

exceptignal 1tems) over a three year performance period fo 31
March 2015 Maximem performance —
100% will vest where EPS
growth exceeds 18 1% pa

TSR 50% The TSR 15 calculated {on an annualised compound basis) | Threshold perlarmance —
assuming that all shares are re-invested No shares will be | 25% will vest for median
released under the TSR condition (f UK Mail s TSR over the three | perfarmance against ihe
year performance peniod to 31 March 2015 when compared to | benchmark index

that of ike consituents of the FTSE All-Shaie index (ex
Investment Trusts), falls below the median Maximum perfgrmance —
100% will vest for upper
quartile or above performance
against the benchmark index

Directors' interesis 1n shares held in the Leng Term Incentive Plan are as foltows

- =t - -= -z P - . T . R - - - Number at
Award Perlormance Number at Granted n  Exercised in lapsed in 31 March
Date of Award Plzn Price Period Ending 1 Apnl 2012 the year the year the year 2013
Guy Buswell
150709 LTIP 275p 310312 124 807 - - (124,807)
260510 TP 340p 310313 81,391 - - - 81,391
281112 TP 298p 310315 - 94 325 - - 94,325
206,198 94,325 - {124,807} 175,716
Steven Glew
1507 09 LTIP 2750 10312 88 570 - - (88 570) -
260510 LTIP 340p 310313 57759 - - - 57,759
291112 TP 298p 310315 - 66,939 - - 66,939
146,329 66,939 - (88,570) 124,698

Awards granted may be exercised between thiee and ten years {ollowing the date of grant, subject lo continuing employment wath the Group and performance

condiiens being achieved In the event of leaving employmeni before the matunly date, an award will immediately lapse
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Remuneration Report

This part of the Remuneration Report 1s avdited

The awards are pnimanly subject to two distinct performance cenditiens, 50% relates to EPS performance and 50% relates to the Company s TSR relative to the FTSE

All-Share tndex as detailed an page 80 The 1able betow details the vesting tustory of awards granted under the LTIP 2009 since it has heen w oparalon,

Date of award Plan Vesting EPS target TSA target EPS achieved TSR achieved % Awards
range 1) range {1) vesting
150709 LHIP 1607 12 50%-90%pa | Medianto Upper | No No 0%
Quartile
260510 LTIR 280513 B85%-130% pa | Medianto Upper | No Yes 12 65%
Quartile
No award made - - - - - -
in 2011
291112 LTiP Live plan 116%-181% Median to Upper | Live plan Live plan Lwve plan
pa Quartile
(1) EPS andt TSA target 1ange represents mamumy/maxmum range for 25% to 100% vestng wih suaighl line proala vestng be'ween these Iwo poinis.
Sharesave Scheme
Number
Earliest Expiry Exercise Number at Granled in Exercised in Lapsed in 31 March
Date of Grant Exercise Date Date Price 1 Apnl 2012 the year the year the year at2013
Steven Glew ~ . 3 ;
170709 D10g12 010313 227 3997 - - {3,997}

The Sharesave Scheme provides a savings plan to purchase shares and has no perfo:mance cntena in order to parkcipate

The market pnce of the Company's shares al the end of ihe #inancial year was 379p and the sange of prices durng ihe year was between 214p and 379p

Interests in Shares

The interests of the directors (together wilh interests held by his or her connected persons) in the ardinary shares of (he Company as at 31 March 2013 were as

follows

Guy Buswell
ltessica Burley
Michael Findlay
Steven Glew
Peter Kane

Bill Spences

31 March 2013
Ordinary Shares

of 10p

310,693

1,500
113,919
3,339,633
4,800

1 Apul 2012
Ordinary Shares

of 10p

305,693

1,500
13,919
6672 967
4,800
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Remuneration Report

This part of the Remuneration Report 1s unaudded

Legally And % of salary | Delerred Bonus Share Matching Long Term Sharesave Total
Beneficially Owned | Held Under Awards Pan Awards Incentive Plan Scheme Awards
Shareholding Awards
Gurdeline

310313 | 310312 | (% of salary) | Unvesied | Vested | Unvested | Vested | Unvesied | Vested | Unvested | Vesied | 310313
Executive
Directors
Guy Buswell 110,693 | 305,693 361% - - - 175,716 - - 486,409
Steven Glew 113,918 | 113,519 186% - - - 124 698 - - - 238,617
Non executive
Directors
Jessica Burley - - - - - - - - - - - -
Michae! Findiay | 1,500 1500 - - - - - - - - 1,500
Peter Kane 3339633 6672967 - - - - - - - - 13,339,633
Bitl Spencer 4,800 4,800 - - - - - - - 4800

Alfdireflors’ migrests e berrehiedity held $dve for 3 333,334 ordingTy-shiares wiichars held By téneficiarizswha are persons tonnected with PetdriGme” There tas ~ -

been no change In the Interests set out abave between 31 March 2013 and 21 May 2013

Share Dilution Limits

Where new issued or lreasury shares are used to salisfy share awards the aggregate dilutign resulting from the 13sug of shares 1o satisfy executive share plan award

grants will not exceed 5% nany ten year penod Dilution resulting from all incentives including all-employee incenlive sehemes will aot exceed 10% inany ten year

penod The Semuneration Commttee regularly reviews dilulian against these Timits and currently has headroom of 1 0% and 3 8% respectively

Employee Share Ownership Trust

The Company s Employee Share Ownership Trust halds shares in the Company or subsequent transler to empleyees under ihe Long Term Incentive Plan the Share
Malching Plan and the Sharesave plan  Shares held by the Trust are not voted ai shareholder meetings and do not accrue dividends At 31 March 2013 the Trust

held a lofal of 55,493 shares (2012 126 471 shares}

Michag! Findlay

Chairman of the Remuneralion Comenittee
(n behalf of the Boadd

21 May 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Indzpendent Auddors’ Report to the members of UK Mail Group Plc

We have avdiied the financial statements of UK Mail Group Plc for the year ended
31 March 2013 which compnse the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, The Consolidated and Company Balance Sheets the Cash Flow
Staiements, The Consolidated and Company Statements of Changas in Equity and
the related notes The financial reparting framework 1hat has been appliad 1n their
preparation 1S applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Unign and as reqands the Parent Company
Finarcial Statements as applied n accordance with the prowsions of the
Companies Act 2006

Respective responsstilities of directors and audrors

As explained more fufly in the Directors Respansibiliies Statement sei owt on page
40, the direciors are responsible for the preparation of the financial stalements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Qur responsiility 1s to audit
and express an opinion en the fimaneial statements in accordance with applicable
law and Intemational Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Audiling Practices Board's Ethiczl Standards for
Auditars

This repost including he opimiens, has been prepared for and only for the
company s members as a body 1 accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Acl 2006 and for no other purpose  We do nol In giving these
opinions accept or assume respansibibty for any other purpose or to any olher
persort la wharm this feport 1s shown or into whose: hands 1L may come save where_
ke;(pressﬁ/ agreed by our pror consent in wmmgh | ) )

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audil involves oblaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial staternents suffictent jo give reasonable assurance that the financal
slatements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of wheiher the accounling policies are
appropriate 1o the Group's and the Parent Company s circumstances and have
been consistently apphed and adequately discloses the reasonableness of
significant accounting esimales made by the directors and the overal!
piesentation of the financial statements fn addition, we read al! the financial and
non-fmancial information 1 the Report & Accounts 10 identify matenal
inconststencies with the audiled finangse! statements If we become awase of any
apparenl matenal rmisslatements or inconsisieacies we consider the
implications for our report

Opimtoen an financizl statements
[n our epimgn

= the inancial statemenis give a true and Fair view of the stale of the Group s
and of 1he Parent Company s affairs as at 31 March 2013 and of the Group's
profitand Group's and Parent Company s cash flows for the year then ended

= the Group financial stalements have been properly prepared in accordance
with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union,

= {he Parent Company financial staiements have been propesly prepared
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Evrapean Union and as applied in
accordance with the orowisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

+ the financial statements have been prepared n accordance with the
requirements of the Cempanves Act 2006 and as regards the Graup dinancial
siatements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opimon on other matters prescnibed by the Companies Act 2006

[nour apinian

+ the pari of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audied has been
prepey prepated 1n accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

« the informatian given in 1he Directors’ Report fer the financial year far which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consisient with the fnancial
statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to repart in respect of the foltowing
Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are required 1o report ta you if, 1n our epinion

+ adequale accountng records have not been kept by the garent company or
returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not wsited
by us, or

« the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors

Rermuneration Report to be audiled are mot 1 agreement with ihe accounting
fecords and relums. or

« certain disclosures of directors remunerziion specified by law are nol made of

« we have nol recenved all the mformation and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review
« ihe directors sialement set gut on page 38, in relation 1o gaing concern,

= the parts of the Corposate Governance Slatement refating to the company s
comphance with the mne provisions of UK Corporate Governance Code
specilied for our review and

» cerlam elements of the report lo shareholders by the Board on directors
femuneration

Jaskamal Sarai (Servor Statutory Auditar)

for and on behali o PncewalerhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountans and Statutory Audilors
xbndge

21 May 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2613

2m3 2012
Note £m fm
Revenye 2 4754 4294
Cost of sales {4207) {380 4)
Gross profit 547 486
Administrative expenses (37 0} (357}
Operating profit before exceptional expenses 5 177 151
Exceptional admimistiative expenses 3 - (22
Operating profit 17 129
fiuange wcome 4 g2 a1
Finance costs 4 1) 0
Prafit before taxation 178 128
Taxation before exceptional 1tems (43) (41)
Exceptiona! taxation items 3 - 06
. Total taxatton _ [ - ) 43 . e (35)
Profit for the 1inanctal year 135 94
Total comprehensive ncome for the year 135 94
Total comprehensive income attnbutable fo
Owners of the parent 135 94
Basic earnings per shate ] 247p 173n
Diluted earmings per share 9 24 Bp 17 3p

The notes on pages 64 to 90 are an wiegral part of these finangral sialements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 10 95 95
Inlangible assets 1 49 38
Invesiment properties 12 18 18
Praperly plant and equipment 13 35 334
Deferred tax assets pal 03 04
500 489
Current assels
Inventories 16 03 02
Trade and ather receivables i7 66 7 635
Cash and cash equivalents 18 282 216
952 853
LIABILITIES
Current rabilities
Borrgwings 20 (08) (18)
Trade and oiher payables 19 {74 3) (64 1)
Cunenttar rabthitiesa- - See— - - - - = . T e {223} (17 == ===
Provisions 22 03 (13}
{mn (68 9)
Net current assets 175 16 4
Nen-current abilities
Boriowings 20 04 {14)
Delerred tax habililies 21 (17) (22)
Provisions 22 (10) {08)
{31) (4 4)
Net assets 644 609
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares 23 55 55
Share premium 153 153
Retained earnings 436 401
Total equity 644 609

The finanoal stalements on pages 58 1o 90 were approved by the Board of Directors an 21 May 2013 and were signed on its bebalf by

Steven Glew
//]/ 4
Group Finance Direclor

Guy Buswell M
Chief Executive —

Reqistered number 02800218
The noles on pages 64 ta 90 are an miegral part of these fnancial statements.

Repul & Accounts 59




Company Balance Sheet

as al 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Note £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidianes 15 187 188
TR AT
Current assels
Trade and other receivables 17 01 3
Current tax asseis - 01
Cash and cash equivalenis 18 263 175
_w W
LIABILITIES
Current liabihitres
Borrowings 20 - (10
Tiade and other payables 19 (76) -
R S - . oo - R T _— o T - - = {18) .- I A § 1]
Net current assets 188 197
Non-cusrent habilities
Barrowings 20 - (10}
Nel assels ﬂ __Blg
Shareholders' equiy
Ordinary shares 23 55 55
Share premium 153 153
Relamed earmings 167 167
Total equity 375 KT

The financial slatements on pages 58 to 90 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 May 2013 and wer stgned on its behalf by

Guy Buswell Steven Glew
LA Y& o

Chiet Executive het Firance Drector

Registered number 02800218

The noles on pages 64 to 90 are an iniogral part of these Shancial stalements.

60 UK Mail Group ple




Cash Flow Statements

far the year ended 31 March 2013

Note
Operating activities
Cash generated from aperations 25
Finance ncome recenved
Finance costs paid
Taxation pard
Net cash inflow from operating actmities
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13
Purchase of inlangible assels i1
Net cash outflow from investing actvities
Financing activities
Drvidends paid to shareholders 8
Repavment of finance lease habilities 30
Net proceeds from 1ssue of erdinary share capital
Repayment of term topan 30
Net cash outllow from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease} tn cash and cash equivalents 0
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 30
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30

The noles on pages 64 io 90 are an integral part of these fnancial siatements.

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
fm m £m £m
311 218 204 102
01 01 06 07
{01) {¢1) {04} {04)
{41) (49) - e
270 173 206 104
(62} “n - -
(16} (18 . -
(78} (65) - -
98) 99 (98) 99)
08 08 - -
01 01 01 01
20) {10} 2o (10)
(126) (11 6) (11 8) {10:8)
66 08) a8 (G4)
216 224 175 179
282 216 263 i75
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Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Ordemary Share Retained Total
shares premium earnings Equity

Group Note £m Em £m em
Balance as at 1 Apnl 2011 2% 167 389 611
Profit for the year - - 94 94
Total comprehensve income for the year - - 94 94
Dividends paid to shareholders B - - 99 (99)
Employees' share option scheme
- share-based payments - - 02 02
- exercise of share oplions - o - 01
Transler between reserves - (15) 15 -
Total transactions with shareholders recorded directly in equity - {14) {(82) (96)
Balance as at 31 March 2012 55 153 a01 609
Balance as at 1 April 2012 55 153 401 60 9
Profit for the year - - 135 135
Total comprehensive ncome lor the year - - 135 139
Dvidends paid to shareholders 8 - - (99) (99)
Employees’ share option scheme
- share-based payments - - 01) 1)
Total transactions with shareholders recorded directly 1n equity - - (100) (100}
Balance as at 31 March 2013 55 153 436 644

The notes on pages 64 to 90 are an wlegral part of these financial statements.
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Company Statement of Changes

in Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2013

Company
Balance as at 1 Apnl 2011

Profit for the year

Totaf comprehenswve income tor the year

Dividends paid 1o sharehglders
Employees' share ophien scheme

- Increase In investment 1n subsidianes
- exercise of share ophons

Transfer between reserves

Total transactions with shareholders recorded directly in equity
Balance as at 31 March 2012
Balance as at 1 Apnl 2012

Proft for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Dwaidends paid to shareholders
Employees' share opéion scheme

- decrease in investment 10 subsidiaries
- exercise of share options

Total transachons with shareholders recorded directly in equaty

Balance as at 31 March 2013

Tha notes on pages 64 to 90 are an nlegral part of these fnancial statements.

Ordinary Share Retained Total

shares premivm garnings Equity

Nole £m £m £m £m
55 i67 149 371

- - 100 100

- - 100 100
8 - - (99 99)
15 - - 02 02
- 01 01

- 19 15

- {i4) 82) (96)

55 153 167 375

55 153 167 375

. 99 99

- 99 99
8 - (99 99)
15 - {01} 01
- 01 01
- - {99) (99)

35 153 167 35
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Notes to the Financial Statements

64 UK Mai Group plc

Principal accounting policies
Accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2013

The princepal accounting polictes adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below These policies have been consislently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise slaled

General tnformation

UK Mail Group Plc (regisiration 92800218} 15 2 public imited company
incorporated and domiciled 0 England 2nd the halding company of UK
Mail Limiteg and UK Pallels Limited It 15 queted on the London Steck
Exchange (LSE UKM) The Group's pnncipal aciivily 1s the provision of
express collection and delivery services for parcels, mas and pallehised
goods The address of is reqistered office 15 464 Berkshire Avenue Slough
SL14PL

Basis ol preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accowdance with the
Companies Acl 2006 As applicable to Companies using IFRS and those
IFRS standards as adopted by the European Union and IFRIC inderpretations
which are effective as al 31 March 2013

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective far the first
time for the current financial year that have had a matenal impact on the
Consolidated or Company Fingncial Statenents of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2013

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

New standards, amendments and interpretations 1ssued effective for the
financial year begiming 1 April 2013 and nol yet adopted by the Group
include 'AS 1 amendmeni 19 and IFRS @ 10 12 and 13 Nene of ihese
are expected o have a materal effect an the Consolidated and Company
Financial Statements of the Group

The financial staterments have been prepared under the histonical cost
conventior: and on the going concern hasis, as described in the going
concern statement in the Direclors Report on page 38

The preparation of financial statements n confarmity with generally
accepted accounting penciples, requies the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reporled amounts of assels and liabilsties at the
date of the financial stztements and ihe reporied amounts of revenues and
expenses dunng the reporting penod Although these esimates are based
on management's best knowledge of the amounl event or actions actual
results uthimately may differ from those estimates

The cntical accounting judgements and the key scurces of esiimahon
uncertamty are detalled in nole 34

Consolidation

The Group ftnancial stalements ncorporate the financial slatements of UK
Mail Gioup pic (the Company') and entities controlled by the Company
{ils subsichanes } made up to 31 March each year Control 15 achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an ivestee entity s as to oblain benefits from s activitlies

The financial siatements of subsidianes are consolidated from the date that
control commences fo the date control ceases On acquistion of a
subsidiary, all of the subsidiary's assels and habihties thal exist af the date
of acquisihon are recorded at ihew fair values reflecting their condition at
that date Changes lo those assels ang habiiiles, and the resulling gans
and losses that anse after the Group has gained control of the subsidiary
are credited or charged to the post acquisition statement of comprehensive
ncome

Intra-group transaciions and balances are eliminaled on consolidation and
consistent accounting policies ae used throughout the Group dor the
purpeses of the consolidation

The results, assels and labilties of the franchise network are not
consolidated nto the Group's results as the Group Coes not have a
partictpating share ownership in the franchises, or 1he ability to direct and
contral thewr activilies Addionally the Group does not bear or beneft in
the majonty of the nsks and rewards

Advantage has been taken of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not
to mclude the Company's own profit and loss account The profit of the
Company for the year was £9 9m (2012 £10 0m)

Goodwll

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisiion over the fair vatue of
identifiable net assets of a subsihary &l the date of acquistion Goodwll 15
measured at cost less imparmens losses and 15 tested for impairment at least
annually Any tmpaiment 1S recognised immedidtely m the statement of
comprehensive 1ncome and 15 not subsequently reversed

Onihe disposal of 2 business, goodwill lating to that business remaining on the
balance sheet 15 included n the determination ¢f the gain or less on disposal

Intangible assets (other than goodwill}

Intangible assets include acquirad computer software hcences not parl of
the operating software acquired with a related piece of hardware These are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred 1o acquire and bring to use
the specific software These costs are amorised on a straight fine basis
oves their estimated useful lives, of between three and seven years which
are reviewed annually

Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and
umque software products generated for use by the Group and where 15
probable 1hat they generale economic benefits exceeding costs beyond
ong year, are recognised as inlangible assels These represent the direct
employment costs of software developers Lime spent on relevant projecis
Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised
over therr estimated wseful economic lives, of between three and seven
years which are reviewed annualty

Separately identifiable customer lists acquired by the Group are amoriised
over thewr useful economic lives, with provision made for any impairment

Investment properties

Investment properties campnse of freehold and leasehold lang and buildings
held for long term rental yrelds and are not accupied by the Group

Investment properties are accounted for under the cost model, al cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and are
depreciated either over fifty years (in the case of {reehold properbes) or
over the penod of the lease on a straight ine basis

Praperty, plant and equpment

Property ptant and equwpmen! are slated al cost less accumulaled
depreaiabion and any impairment n value Land 15 not depreciated
Depieciation 1s provided on a siraight hine basis 5o as to wnle off ihe cast
of the assels to thewr residual value over their estimated useful economic

lives, using the following rates
Freehold huildings fity years
Short leasehold buildings the penod of the lease
Motor vehicles plant and equipmani  three 1o len years

Computer equipment thige 1o seven years




Notes to the Financial Statements

The nomal expecied useful economic lives and residual values of the
major categones of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually

The carrying valve of property, plant and equipment 15 reviawed at least
annually Any resultant impairment losses are charged immedialely to lhe
siatement of comprehensive income

Assets that are subject to depreciation are tesled for impairment whenever
events or changes i circumstances indicate that the carrying amounl may
not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds 1ls recoverable amount The
recoverable amouni is the higher of an assel's fair value less costs 1o sell
and value 1n use

Investments in subsidianes

Investments in Group undeniakings are siated at cost less any provisien for
impairment

The Company reflects the fair value of share-based payments granted fo
employees of subsidrary companigs s an investment in subsidiaries with
a corespanding credi to equity

Inventories

Inventones represented by fuel stocks held by the Group, zre stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost 1§ determined using the first-in-first-out method and net realisable
value 15 the estimated selling price less costs of disposal in the ordinary
course of business

Finance and operating leases

Leasing agreements, which transter to the Group substanbizlly all the nsks
and rewards of ownership of an asset, are treated as if the asset has been
purchased outnght and are classified as finance leases The assets are
included 10 non-current assets and the capital elements of the {easing
commilments are shown as ebhgations under inance leases The lease
rentals are treated as consisting of capital and inlerest elements The
capital element 15 applied 1o seduce the outstanding obligatiens and the
Interest element 1 charged agains! profit so as te give conslant penodic
rates of charge an the remaiming balance qutstanding at each accounting
penod Assets held under finance leases are depreciaied over Ihe shoster
of the lease lerm and the useful lives of equivalent owned assels

Leases where the Group does not retan substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of an asset, are classified as operating leases
Operating lease renlal payments are recognised as an expense n the
slalement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the term
of the lease

Revenue

Revenue reflects all sates made by the Group, whether delvered Dy network
services franchisees or sub-contractors The Group remains ihe principal
in all transactions, save whei2 1 acis as an agent, on behalf of s
customers Revenue 1s recogmsed i the accouniing penwd in which
constgnments are delivered for custormers

Income from investment properiies 1s Jecognised on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease, even il the payments are not recerved on sucha
hasis

All ravenues are staled nel of valug added tax

Cost of sales

Cost of sales reflects all the direct costs incurred 1n the collechon and
delivery of a consignmenl ncluding the costs of sub-contracted and
employed dnvers, linehaul costs, and Royal Mail access costs logelher
with the direct costs of operating the network Cost of safes includas the

depreoation costol network vehicles cages and site equipment
Adminstrative tosts

Agminisirative costs reflect all 1he establishment and ceniral support cosls
ofthe Group, incluching the remuneration of non-operabional site based staff
and head office personnel, depreciaion of buidings, amortisation of
centeal IT systems and bad debts

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported 1n 2 manner consistent with the intemal
reporting provided to he chiel operaling decision-maker The chiel
operalng dension-maker, who 15 respensible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operaling segments, has been identibed as
the Board of the company

Taxation

The tax expense represents dhe sum of the tax curenily payable and
deferred tax

The tax currently payable 15 hased on the laxable profit for the year Taxable
ol difiers lromthe net profit 1n the statement of comprehensive income
becawse It excludes ttems of income or expense that are taxabie or
decluctiblein ather years and 1t further excludes tems thal are never laxable
of deductable

The cormpany provides deferred income tax using the balance sheet labulity
method onall emporary differences at the balance sheet date belween the
tax bases of assels and liabiltties and their carrying amounts for inancial
reporting pumoses Defened 1ax assets are recogmised for all deductible
temporary differences to the exleni that i11s probable that taxate profit will
he avallable aganst which the deductible temporary differences, carry
forward of unused 1ax assets and unused tax losses can be uthsed
Deferred incorme tax assets and latilies are measured at the tax rates that
apply to the period when the asset 15 reahised or the hability 15 settled
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheel date

Full provision 1s made for deferred taxation on all taxable temporary
differences Delerred tax assets and habilities are recogmised separately on
the balance sheet Deferred 1ax assets are recognised only ta ihe extent 1hat
they aie expecled o be recoverable

Defered taxationis recognised m the slatement of compiehensive income
unless it relites lo taxable Iransactions taken direcily 1o eguity, In which
case the defeed tax 15 afso recognised in equwty The defered tax 15
rel eased to the staterment of comprehensive iIncome at the same time as the
laxable transaction s recogmised n the statement of comprehensive
income

Pension costs

The Graup operates a defined contrabutien pension scheme The assets of
the scherme are beld separately from those of the Group 1n independently
adminisiered funds The pension cosis charged n the siatement of
comprehensive income represent coninbutions payable by the Group to the
scheme toget her with the acrmnistiration charges of the scheme

Foreign cuirencies

Transaciions in foreign currencies are recorded 1n sierling at the rate ruling
& the wransachion date Mometary asseis and liabiliies denominated in
foreign currencies ae translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet dale All exchange differences arising from (rading
tiansactionsare deatt with in the stalemen of comprehensive income
Share-based payme nts

The costs of equiy-settled share based payments are iecogmised In the
sialement of comprehensive income with a correspoading ncrease en
equily over ihe veshng pertod as services are provided to the Group
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The charge 15 based on the lair value of the equity instrument granted and
the number of equity nstrumens 1hat are expected to vest The fair value
15 measured at grant date and takes acoount of vesting congitions 1hat
relate to the market price of the Company's shares In order 1o determing
the value of the mstrument a proing model relevani i the type of
nstrument 1s used

Provisions

Provisions are recogmised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
of constructive) as a result of 2 pasl event 1115 probable that an outftow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be equired to seitle the
obhgaiien and a rehiable estimale can be made of the amount of the
obligation

Where ihe Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for exampte under
an insurance coniract, the reimbursement IS recognised as a separate assel
but onty when the resmbursement 1s virtually certain  If the effect of the
time value of money 1s material, provisiens are determined by discouniing
the expected future cash flows at a pre-lax rate fhat reflecls current market
assessments of the ime value of money and, where appropnale the risks
speciitc 1o the habihty Where discounting 1s used, the increase n the
provision due fo the passage of fime 1s recogmised as a finance cost

Contingent habihities

Contingent liabilities represend passible ehligations whose exsience will
be conhrmed only by the accurrenge or nen occurrence of one or maore
uncertain future evenis nol wholly under the control of {he Group
Contingent liabilibes also include certain obhgations that will probably not
lead to an outfiow of resources embogying economic benefits of where the
outflew of resources embodying ecenomic benefits cannat be measured
with sufficient rebability In accerdance with IFRS contingent liabilities ate
not recognised as habihities

Exceptional tems

Matenial and non-recurming items of income and expense are disclosed in
the statemeni of comprehensive (ncome as excepiional items. Bxamples of
items which may give nse to disclosure as exceplional items include
matenal gains or losses on the disposal of businesses or non-current
assets, material asset .mpairments, and business recrganisation and
restructunng cosis

Dividends

Intenim dividends are recognised as & destnbubon frem retained earmings in
the penod in which they are paig

Final dividends are recognised as a distnbution from retamed earmngs in
the period in which they are approved al the general meeting

Share capital

Orcinary shares ale classried as equily Ingremental cosis directly
atinbutable 1o the 1ssue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction
from the proceeds receved Own equity instuments that are reacgquired
{treasury shaies) or shares held (n the Employee Share Ownerstup Trust
{ESOT) are deducted from equity No gan or loss 15 recogmised 1n ihe
statement of comprehensive come on the purchase sale 1ssue of
cancellanon of the Group's own equity instruments

Fmanceal instruments

Financial assets and financial iabihlies are recogmsed in1he balance sheet
when the Group becomes a panly 1o the conlaclual provisions of the
mstrument Financial assets are de-recegnised when the Group no longer

has the rights 1o cash flows the nsks and rewards of ownership or control
of the assel Financial hiabihwes ate de-recogmsed when the obligation
under the liabiity 15 discharged, cancelled or expues

Trade and other recewvables Trade receivables are recognised imtially
at faw value and subsequently measured al amortised cost using the elfeck
interest method less provision for impairment A prowision 1s made when
there 15 objective evidence that the Group will nol be able to collect the
dehts Bad debts are written off 1o the statement of comprehensive incame
when identified

Trade and other payables Trade payables are recognised inihially at tair
value and subsequently measured al amortised cost using the efiective
interest method

Interest-bearing loans and borrawings All interest-beanng loans and
borrowings are imitially recognised at faw value plus directly atinbutable
iransaclion cosls Afier mtial recogmiron interesi-beanng loans and
horrowings are subsequently measured at amorhised cost using the
eftective imerest method Amorused cost 15 calculated by ialang o
account any 15sue ¢osis and any discount or premium

Cash and cash equivalents These compnse cash in hand, curieni
account and demand deposit balances with banks and simular institutions,
which are madily converible to a known amount of cash within thiee
months and which are subject to an insignificant nisk of change in value

For the purpose of the cash flow statemenis cash and cash equivalenis

consisl of cash ang cash equivalents as delined above net of outstanding
bank overdrafis
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2  Segmental information

Management has determined the operating segments based on reparts tha are reviewed by the Board for making siraiegic decisions These reports reflect the
Group's delined management struclure whereby distinct managers are accauntable 1o the Board for the resulls and activities of their identified segments and ihe
different markets in which they operate The Board, which 1s the Group s chugf operating decision maker, considers 1hat the Group has four reportable operating
Segments

The Group's opefating segmenis consisi of Mail, Parcels, Couner, and Pallets Services The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of operaling prohi before net finance costs and taxation

Ceniral costs comprises of network costs and ceniral support costs Central assets compnise mainly of corporate assets cash current and deferred tax balances
The Group manages 1s business segments on a nalicnal basis with all its operations in the UK, as are nearly al? of the cusiomers

Inter-company transaclions, {(which are conducted on an arm's length tasis) batances and unrealised gams on transactions between segments are eliminated
Unreahsed losses are also eliminated

Na indwidual customer accounted for mare than 6% of revenue In the peneds included m these consoldated financiat statemenis
Business segments
The business segment results for the year ended 31 March 2013 are as [ollows

Business Segment
Mail Parcels Courigr Pallets Central Total
£m £m £m fm £m £em

Segmental revenue 2416 1893 188 280 - 4777
Inter-segment revenue - - (23} - - 23)
Group revenue 2416 1893 165 280 - 475 4
Operating profit/(loss) 107 163 26 IF:) (127) 177
Finance income 2
Finance costs {01)
Profit before taxation 178
Taxation (43)
Profit attnbutable to equity sharehalders 135
Other segment iems
Capual expenditure {including acgusitions)
- Property, piant and equipment {nate 13) 08 37 - 01 20 66
- Intangible assets {note 11} 01 - - 03 21 25
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {note 13)
- Owned assets 05 34 01 - 17 57
- Under finance leases 06 - - - - 06
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 1)
- Owned assets 01 - - - 12 13
- Under finance leases - - . - 01 01
Impaeraent of irade recevables - a4 - a1t - 05
Defesred 1ax assels - - - 01 02 03
Other assets 526 58 6 61 89 463 166 9
Flimnations (17 1) . - {45) - (21 6)
Total assets 355 586 01 45 465 1452
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The business segment resuls ior the year ended 37 March 2012 are as tollows

Busingss Segment

Mail Parcels Courer Pallels Centsal Total
£m tm £m £im £m £m

Segmental revenue 2081 1721 222 283 - 4307
Inter-segment revenue - - (7 - [
Group revenue 2081 1721 205 283 - 4299
Qperating profii/(loss) belore excephonal stems 100 116 27 21 (113) 151
Exceptional items — administrative expenses €7 (t2) (03) - - (22)
Operiing profit/{loss) 93 104 24 21 {11 3) 129
Finance income 01
Finance cosls __((11 )
Prohit before taxation 129
Taxalron (35
Profhit for the year 94
Other segment items
Capital expenditure {including acquisitions)
- Property, plant and equipment {nole 13) 03 30 01 13 47
- Iniangible assets {note 11} 01 - - - 17 18
Depreciation of property plant and equipment {note 13)
- Owned assets 07 ' 42 01 01 16 67
- Under finance leases 05 - - - - 05
Amortisatian of intangible assets {note 11)
- Owned gssels 01 - 01 - 10 12
Impairment of trade receivables 01 D2 - - 03
Deterred 1ax assets - - - 01 03 04
Other assets 627 896 01 86 362 187 2
Elminations {28 2) {310) - {42) - (63 4)
Total assets 345 586 01 45 365 1342
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3

Exceplional items

2013 2012

£Em £m

Restructuring costs - 22
Exceplronal taxation credit — rehief on restructenng costs - (06)
Exceptional items . 16

Operations restructure

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2012, the board approved a change programme, designad to impreve the efficiency of the network infrastructure, and to reduce
{he fixed cost of the business This resulied 1n a number of reslructuning changes in opertional, sales and head office management with further changes
surrounding the regionalisation of cusiomer care centres, the closure of jour depots and the restruciving of Couner cperations

These changes resulled n an exceptional cost of £2 2m which compnised of £1 2m redundancies, £0 8m property closures, and £0 2m other costs
Exceplional taxattan credit
The exceptional taxalion crecit of £0 6m in the year ended 31 March 2012 relalzd to reliefin respect of exceptional restructunng costs included above

Finance income - net

2013 2012
£m Em
Interest recevable on
Bank balances 02 01
Finance income 02 01
tnterest payable on
Finance leases 1) ©1
Firance costs 01) (01)
Finance income - nel 01 -
Operaling profit 2013 2012
£m £m
The lollowing slems have been chamed/(credited) in arnving at operating profit
Royal mail actess costs 2018 1698
Subcontracior cosis 853 781
Employee benehis experse (note 6) 660 623
Cost of inventones recognised (included n cost of sales) (note 16} 122 119
Depreciation of property plant ang equipment (note 13) 63 72
Arnartisation of intangibles ¢ncluded n admuinstratve expenses) (note 11) 14 12
Loss/{profit) on disposal of praperty, plant and agutpment D2 02
Qther operating lease rentals pavable
- Plant and machinary 68 68
- Property 56 57
Renairs and maintenance expenditure on properly plani and equipment 44 44
Other operating lease rentals recevable
- Ptant and machinery (04 (03}
- Property 03 (03
- Computer equipment on (01}
Trade recervables impairment {included in admimistiative expenses) 05 03
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Services provided by the Company's auditor

Dunng the year the Group obtaingd the fo!lowing services from the Company's auditor and 1is associates

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audd of the parent company and consolidated financial statements
Fees payable 1o the Company's auditor and its assoctates for other services

- The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation

- Other sevices pursuant to legislaticn

Total audit and auddt-related services

Tax compliance services
Tax advisory services

All ather services

Total non-audit services

Total audit and non-audd services

Employees and directors

Employee benefit expense for the Group dunng the year

Wages and salanes

Social security costs

QOther pension cosis™

Share based payments {nole 24)

~other pension costs all relate to defined contnbution schemes
The monthly average number of people (including executive directors) employed by the Group was

By busmess group

Mail services
Parcel services
Couner semvices
Pallet services
Central

Key managemsnt compensation

Salanes and short-term employee benghis
Post-emplaymem benehis

Terminalion bengfits

Share-based payments

The key management figures given above nclude the mainand operating board direclors

2013 2012
£000 £000
26 26
90 89

11 11
127 126
23 35

7 5

14 -
44 40
mn 166
2013 2012
£m m
596 556
50 51
15 15
(D1) 01
66 0 623
2013 2012
Numbet Nurnber
200 145
2,063 2079
92 108
127 124
167 1585
2,649 2611
2013 2012
£000 £000
1,794 1670
113 13
73 144
(34) 25
1,946 1970
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Directors’ remuneration

2013
£000
Aggregate emoluments 1,002
Pension costs 8
1,080

2012
£000

758
78
836

Pension contributiens were made n respect of two {2012 two) directors  These contribulions were paid as a supplement to the directors safanes, as detalled

In the Remuneration Report
Further delails of directors' emoluments are set out 1n the Remuneration Report

Taxation
2013
£m
Analysis of charge in penod
Current tax - cufrent year 47
Current {ax - adjustment in respect of prior years -
Total current tax 47
Deferred tax (note 21) - current year (03)
Deferred tax (note 21) - prior years 1)
Total deferred tax {0 3)
Taxation 43

The differences between the tolal curren 1ax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK carporation tax to the profit before fax

are explained below

. 2013

£m

Prafit on cidinary aclwities before iax 178

Profit on orcinary activities muitiplied by rate of corparation tax in the UK of 24% {2012 26%) 43
Effects of

Expenses nat deduchible for tax purposes g2

Effect of change in 1ax rate 01)

Adjustment in respect of pnor years {01)

Total tax charge 43

£nil (2012 £ml) of deferred 1ax has been debited directly 1o eguity in respeci of share options

2002
Em

129

34

02
(02)

01

35

The teduction in the main rate of corporabion 1ax from 26% to 24% with effect from 1 Apnl 2012 was subsiantively enacted wia a reselution passed by Parlrament
on 26 March 2012 The Finance Act 2012 was substantively enacted on 3 July 2012 and included legislation 1o reduce the maim rate of corporatien iax from

24% to 23% with effect from 1 Apnt 2013 Closing delerred tax balances have therefore been valued at 23%

Fusther changes 1o the UK Corperation iax rates were announced (n the 2032 Autumn Stalement and ihe March 2013 Budget These include further seductions
to the main rate to reduce the rate to 21% wilh effect from 1 Apnf 2014 and to 20% with effect from 1 Apnl 2015 These changes had not been substaniwvely

enacted at the balance sheei date and therefore are not included (n these financeal statements

Dwidends
2013
Group and Company £m
Finat 2072 paid 11 80p {2011 11 80p) per 10p share 64
Interum paid 6 40p {2012 6 40p) per 10p shase 35
99

2012
tm

G4
35
99

In addition, the directors are propasing a final dwvidend en respect of the financtal year ending 31 Masch 2013 of 12 4p per share which will absarb an estimated

£6 8 million of shareholders' funds 1t will be paid en 26 July 2013 1o shareholders who are on the register of members on 28 June 2013
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9  Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 1s calcutaled by dividing the profis for the year (the 'earmings’) atinbulable 1o ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outsianding during the year excluding those held in the employee share awnershtp tiest (node 23) which are trealed as cancelled

For diluled earnings per share the weighled average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue is adjusted lo assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
The Group has two classes of ciluive petential ordinary shares those share options granted 1o employees where the exercise price 1s less than the average
market price of the Company's ordinary shares duning the year, and the coniingently issuable shares under the Group's Long Term Incentive Plan

Reconciliakions of the earmings and weighted average number of shares used n the calculalions are set out below

2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
average Per share average Per share
Earnings number of amount Eamings number of amount
£m shares pence fm shares pence
Basic EPS
Earnings atinbutable to ordinary shareholders 135 54,632,719 247 94 54 586 755 173
Effect of dilutive shares
Qphians . 75,042 {o1) - 9,448 -
Long Tesm Incentive Plan - - - - 834 -
Diluted EPS 135 54,707,761 246 94 54,597 037 173
Basic EPS
Earnings atinbutable 1o ordinary sharehalders 135 54,632,719 2417 94 54 586,755 173
Exceptional ems {note 3) - - - 16 - 28
Adjusted EPS * 135 54,632,719 247 1o 54,586,755 201
Etfect of dilutive shares
Options - 75,042 {01} - 9448 -
Long Term Incentive Plan - - - - 834 -
Diluted Adjusted EPS * 135 54,707,761 246 10 54,597,037 201

.

*= ajusied and thluted adjusted earmngs per stase-have een caicoiated excluding the excepttonal stems and theassociated fax impagt - =~ === -

10 Goodwill
2013 2012
Group £m £m
Cost and net book value
At 1 Apnl and 31 March 95 95

As sequired under IAS 36 Impairment of Assets', goodwill has been aliccated to the lowest level of cash-generating unit as fellows

2013 2012
Goodwll by cash-generating unit £m £m
Couner Semviges 16 16
Paltet Services 79 79
Net book value at 31 March 95 95

The goadwill carned n the Courier Senaces segment represenis goodwill acquired on the acquisiion of BXT Limiled in February 2003 The Group's couner
operations were conselidaled under single management during the year ended 31 March 2007, and as a result are now all reported 1n the books of UK Mail Lid
As a consequence management regard the Counier Senices segment as the relevani cash-generaiing unit (CGU')

The gaodwill carried in the Pallet Sevices segment represents goodwill acquired on the acquisition of UK Pallets Lid in July 2003

Goodwill 13 tested for impairment annually at the ime the Group prepares its annual budgets Budgets are prepared on management's previous experience and
incorporate their view of current econemic condilions and trading expectattons Fach impairment review takes account of the recoverable amount of the cash-
gengraling units which 1s determined on a vatue in use basis The 2013/14 budgets were extrapolzted using growih rates in the range of 15% to 54% pa
(2012 00% fo 5 4%) for the first five years and 1 75% (2012 1 75%) thereafter being the anticapated fong tesm GDP growth rale of the UK economy The
thscount date apphied to a CGU represents a pre-1ax rate that reflects the Group s weighted average cost of caputal adjusted for the nsks specific to the CGU
The pre-tax dhscount rates are n the 8 3% to 8 9% range {2012 6 9% to 9 3%)
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1

Sensitivity to changes n assumptions

Growth of market and market share

Management has considered 1he impacl of a vanance in the growth of the markel and market share for each CGU, and beheve that there ts no reasonable
poetential change 1n any of ihe key assumptions used that would cause the carrying value of the Couner Senaces CGU to exceed 1t recoverable amount

The value 1n use calculation for the Pallet Services CGU shaws that if the forecasted market growih rales were only 75% achieved or the discounted cash flows
shoutd fall by 30%, the recoverable amount would be greater than its carrying vafue

Pre-tax discount rate

Management has considered the impact of an increase in the pre-1ax discount 1ale applied to this calculalon The valug in use calculation shows that if the
pre-lax discount rate was incieased to 11%, the recoverable ameunt of each CGU would stilf be greater than s carryang value, indicating no imparment
Market struclore

Managemen; believe that there will be no structural changes i evher the pallebsed goods or couner markess which will affect these forecasts

The Carmpany has ng goodwill (2012 £ml)

Intangible assets

Customer Acquired Interna! software

hists software licences developments Total
Group fm £m £m £m
Cost
AL 1 Apnl 2012 01 35 49 85
Additions - 11 14 25
Disposals {01) 01} (@3) {0 5)
At 31 March 2013 - 45 60 105
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 Apal 2012 ) ) 01 20 26 47
Charge for the year o . o5 09 14
Disposals (¢1) 01} 03) {0 5}
At 31 March 2013 - 24 32 56
Net book value at 31 March 2013 - 21 28 49

Customer Acguired Intemal software

lists software lcences developmenis Total
Group £m fm £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2011 01 34 38 73
Additions - 07 11 18
Disposals - e - {06)
At 31 March 2012 01 35 49 B85
Accumulated amartisatian
Al 1 Apnl 2011 01 27 13 41
Charge for the year - 03 09 12
Reclassticaton . (¢ 4 04 -
Disposals - {0 6) - (08)
At 31 March 2012 01 20 26 47
Net book value at 31 March 2012 - 15 23 38

Amortisation o custamer hsts 1s charged threugh cost of sales Software related amortisation charges have been charged through adrumistrative expenses

The Company has no intangible assets (2012 i)
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12 Investment properiies

2013 2012
Group £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnil 26 17
Reclassification (see note 13) - 09
At 31 March 26 26
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Apnl 08 08
Charge for the year - -
At 31 March 08 08
Net hook value at 31 March 18 18

One {2012 one) invesiment property 15 held by the Group located in the West Midiands, and 1s being sublet under an operating lease The lease 1S due to expire on
23 June 2014 The rental income recognised in the vear was £0 3m (2012 £03m} Direct operating expenses mcurred were Enil (2012 Eml)

The property was valued in March 2013 by the Group Property Manager by reference to recent comgparable pioperty iransaclions 1n the same area, at £2 4m fo £2 5m

The property was fast externally valued by qualihed professional vaiuers werking for the company of DTZ Bebenham Tie Leunq, Chartered Surveyars, acting in the
capacity of Edernal Valuers in December 2010 at £2 445000 Al such valuers are Chartered Surveyors being members of the Royal Instilutien of Chartered Suveyors
(RICS) DTZ Debenham Tie Leung 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of BTZ Holdings plc {the 'DTZ Group’} a part of the UGL service group I the fnancial vear to 30 Apnl
2013 the proportion of total fees payabte by the Group to the total fee income of the UGL service group was less than 5% The valuation was prmanily derved using
cornparable recent market transactions on arm's length terms The valuation was carmied out in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards

The Company does nel own any investment preperties (2012 nil)

= - = . P

13 Property, ptal?l and equlpn;enl

Mator
Short vehicles
Freehold land leasehold plant and Computer
and buwldings improvements equipment equipment Total
Group £m £m Em £m £m
Cost
Al 1 Apnl 2012 218 36 37 114 705
Additians . 03 43 20 66
Disposals - {0 4} (23) (12) (3 9}
At 31 March 2013 218 35 357 122 7132
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Apnt 2012 48 19 223 81 3T
Charge for the year 05 04 ig 16 63
Disposals - (04) {21) {12} (37)
At 31 March 2013 53 19 230 B5 397
Net book value at 31 March 2013 165 16 "7 37 335
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Graup

Cost

At 1 Apnl 2011

Additions

Dispesals

Reclassificalion (see note 12)
At 31 March 2012

Accumulated depreciation
A1 Apnt 2011

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2012

Net book value at 31 March 2012

The Company owned no properly plant and equipment al 31 March 2013 {2012 £}

14 Assets held under inance leases

=

15

e [ VS

Cost

Additions

Accumulated depreciation
Disposals

Net book value

b bty

Molar
Short vehicles

Freehold tand {easehold ptani and Computer
and buldings Improverments equipment equipment Total
£m m fm £m £m
226 34 331 15 06
01 02 30 14 17
- - 24 (15) (39)
{09 - - - 09
2t 8 36 337 114 705
43 15 199 7% 3e
05 04 46 17 72
. - 22) (15) (37)
48 18 223 g1 371
170 17 14 33 334

Property, plant and equipment Intangible
{Mctar vehicles property plant {Acguired sofiware licences)
I S s " N «am.eqmm);: e . Wi S SO~ S P SN~ LT

2013 2012 2013 202
£m £m £m m
44 44 09 09
- R 10 -
37 (32) {10) (09

{01} - -

06 12 09

The majonty of the leases are for an imbial conlractual penod of 6-7 years, with options to renew for varying furlher penads al fixed rates The interest rate
inhereat in the lease 15 fixed at the contract date for the lerm of the lease

Investments

Company

Non-current investments

Cost of investments in subsidiaries

At 1 Apnl

{Decrease)/increase In investments 1n subsiciares - share-based payments

At 31 March

A list of the prncipal subsidiary underizkengs 1s given in note 33

2013
fm

188
01}
187

2012

186

18 §
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16 Inventories

2013 2012
£m £m
Fuel stock 03 02
The Group consumed £12 2m {2012 £11 9m;) of inventones during the year
Inventonies are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value
The Campany has ro inveriory (2012 £mil)
17 Trade and other recewvables
Group Comgany
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m fm fm fm
Trade recervables 522 484 - -
less provision far Impatment (1) {02} - -
Trade recervables net of provisions for impairment 521 452 - _
Amaounts due from subsidiary underiakangs - - - KR
Other debiors KR 22 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 115 131 01 -
667 635 01 31
Further information on ihe credit nsks relating to trade and olher rcevables 1s given in nole 26
Company g = e e e e - . ot e = = am =

Amounis due from subsidiary undertakings bear interest al a rate linked to the London Inter Bank Offer Rate ('LIBOR’), unsacured and are repayable on demand

None (2012 none) of the Company's trade and other receivables were past due at the year end and the Company does not gonsider it necessary te provide for
any imparments

18 Cash and cash equivalents

T6 UK Mal Group pic

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and 1n hand 282 216 263 175

The effective interest rale receivable on the cash and hank balances was approxmately 1 3% (2012 0 9%), accruing ona daily basis

Cashand cash equivalents include the fcllowing for the purpose of the cash flow stalement

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalenis 282 216 263 175
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19

20

Trade and other payables - current

— TA _ aw Wl e %

The term loan which was due 1o expire on 31 July 2013, was seltled dunng the course of the year

Inferest on the term loan was reset every month As at 31 March 2013 the effactive rate of interest on the term foan was approxmately 1 2% (2012 13%) The

loan was subject 1o vairous covenants

The minemum lease payments under finance teases fall due as follows

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m m
Trade payahles 97 372 - -
Qther payables 44 09 - -
Amounts owed 1o franchises 19 18 - -
Amounts owed fo subsidiary underiakings - - 76 -
Other taxes and social secunty payable 131 128 -
Accruals 151 13 -
Deferred income 01 01 . -
743 641 76
Amounis owed to subsidiary undertakings bear interest at a rate inked to UBOR unsecured and are iepayable on demand
Borrowings
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 202
fm £m £m £m
Current
Amounts due within cne year or on demand
Sterling term lpan (unsecured) - 10 R 10
Finance lease obligatrons (See note 26) 08 08 - -
08 18 10
Non-current
Amounts due after one year
Sterling ferm Joan (unsecured) - 10 - 10
Finance lease cbligations {see note 26) 04 04 - -
a4 14 - 10

Company

2012
m

Group
013 2012 2013
fm fm £m
Amounts payable under hinance leases
Within 1 year 08 08
Between 1 and 5 years 04 06
Tota! mimmum lease payments 12 14
Future finance charges - {02)
Present value of finance leases 12 12
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21 Delerred tax
Defermed tax 1s calculated in fuil on iemporasy differences under the liability method using a 1ax rate of 23% (2012 24%)

The movement on the deferred tax account 1s as shown below

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Deferred tax account fm m em m
At1 Apnl {18) (25} - -
Income stalement credi 04 i . -
At 31 March (14) {18} - -

Deferred 1ax assets and habilites are only offset where there 15 a legally enfarceable nghi of ofiset and these 15 an intention 1o seltle the balances net

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Delerred tax assets €m £m £m £m
At1 Apnl 04 05 - -
Income sialement charge {01) (01} - -
At 31 March 03 04 - -

Deferred tax assets, which largely relate ta share based payments, are calculatad on he difference between the market pnce at the balance sheel date and the
ophian exercise price The excess of Lhe deferred tax over the cumulative Income stalement charge 1s recognised 1n equity

There are no unrecogmised deferred fax assets

The moverent ¢n the defarred tax labihity account 15 as shown below

Group Company
AP S U ST e T LT el S A DS LR X X M AT T 4 DT deiaat mh BaT e B aFem o, 72‘01"3 —_—— "I_‘"mi’?:"h: ";.'LFTZE."S":.:‘.:Z. ,“K—?OT?GA Pl FENE Gl
Defesred tax llabilities £m tm £m m
At1 Apnil 22 30 - -
Income statement credit {05) {08} - -
Al 31 March 17 22 - -

Deferred tax labilities which largely relate to accelerated capiial allowances, are calculated on the dilfercrce between the accounting net book value of the
asset and their carrying amount for tax purposes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are expecied to be recovered as follows

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
Deterred tax assets £m £m £m £m
Within 12 months 01 02 - -
Alter 12 months 02 02 - -
At 31 March 03 04 - -
Deferred tax liabilties
Within 12 monshs 04 01 - -
Aler 12 months 13 21 - -
At 31 March i7 22 - -

No deferred income 1ax was charged or credited 1o equity during the year in eilher the Group or the Company (2612 £nil)

22 Pravisions

2013 2012

£m £m

At 1 Apnil 21 06
Provided n the year 04 24
Utihsed in the year {12} 09)
Al 31 March 13 21
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Provisions have been analysed between current 2nd non-current as follows

2013 2012

£m tm

Curent 03 13
Non-current 10 [tR]
13 21

£05m (2012 £1 4m) of the provision relates 1o exceptiona! restructuring costs o be incumed within one year and up to five years {See note 3)

£08m (2012 £0 7m) o the provision relates to prapery lease dilapidations under teases expinng wittun one year and up i 15 years. The properlies have been inspected
by the Group Property Manager, and estmates made for the anicipated dilapidation expenditure 1o be mcumed pnor to sub-lelling, or reversion of the lease

23 Called up share capital

Group and Company 2013 2012
£m m

Authonsed

70 000 000 (2012 70,000,000} ordingry shares of 1Jp each 70 70

Issued, allotted and fulty paid

2013 2012
Ordinary shares of 10p each Shares £m Shares £m
At1 Apni 54,731.4M 55 54,693 973 55
Allgtted under share aptian schemes 1,510 37,498 -
At 31 March 54,732,981 55 54,731,471 55

Potenbial 1ssues of ordinary shares

T T T A T T, I e J S LTINE m RR a4 s TR L SR AT, TR T T L S e TN el T N o i T

Certain employees and franchisees hold ephions fo subscribe for shases n 1he Company at prices ranging from Nil to 418p under share eption schemes
approved by shaseholders between 2001 and 2009 as follows,

Year of Exercise Exercise 203 2012

Scheme grant price penod Numbers Numbers
Sharesave scheme 2010-2012  1868p-275 011013100103 18 350,679 215907
New executive 2001 share option scheme 2001 - 2002 364p- 418p Expired 31 0512 - 27,357
Franchise option scheme 2002 2002 380p Expired 12 07 12 - 19,735
P 2010 - 2032 NI 26051310291122 583,513 1021741
934,192 1,284 740

Employee Share Ownershig Trust

The Company's Emplayee Share Qwnershrp Trusi holds shares in the Company far subsequent transfer o employees under its incenlive scheme awards Shares
field by the Trust are not voled at shareholder meetings and do not accrue dividends All other shares carry veting nighis and accrue ¢ividends

At 31 March 2012 the ESOT held a total of 126,471 shares Dunng the year, 70,978 shares were 1ssued 1o employees, in respeel of matured awards under the
2009 SAYE plan, al an average price of 290p per shaie

Fallowing the above transactions, the teust held a tofal af 55 493 shares with a market value of £0 2m at 31 March 2013 (2012 126 471 shares with a markel
value of £0 3m)

24 Share-based payments
In orcter 1o align the interests of employees and franchisees with those ¢f shareholders, share options are awarded to both employees and franchisees under
discrelionary share incentive plans, and employees under all-employee share plans, as follows
Sharesave plan

The Company has ofleced a SAYE share plan since 199G to ehgible employees, cluding directors. The plan 1s an HMRC approved all-employee share plan
HMRC does not permit performance conditions 1o be attached to the exercise of cptions Under the plan participants are granted options gver the Company's
shares Each paricipant may save beiween £5 and £250 per manth lo purchase shares in the Company al a discount of up to a maxmum 20% of the market
value at the ime of {ne cplien grant
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New Execufive 2001 Share Oplion Scheme
There have been na grants under this scherte since 2003 Long-ierm incentive awards are made undes the Company's Long-Term Incentive Plan {see below)

As al 31 March 2013, there were no outstanding options under this scheme and the scheme has expired

Franciuse Share Ophon Scheme
There have been no grants under this scheme stnce 2005 As at 31 March 2013 there were no ulslanding oplions under ihis scheme and the scheme has expired

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIPY)

The Remuneration Cormittee first introduced an LTIP 1n 2004, as a more affective means of incentvising the Company's semor management than the execulive
share option scheme Uncer the LTIP the Remuneraticn Commutiee can grant options aver shares in the Cempany to employees of the Company with a
contractual Iie of an option being 3 - 10 years

The perlormance condibions attaching to any future awards granted under the plan were amended at the Annual Genesal Meeting of the Company held ont i5
July 2009, such thai 50% of an Award 1s subjec! 16 a performance condiion based on the Company's annual earmings per share (EPS) growth and 50% 1s
determined Dy the TSR performance of the Company relative to all the other companies 1n the FTSE All Share Index (excluding Investment Trusts) at the start
of the financial year in which an award 15 granted over a penod of three financial years

Additionalty, in order to fusthes ahgn 1he snterests of participanis with those of sharehol ders, the rules of the plan were amended such that dwvidends accrue on
the shares comprised within the award To the extent that awards vest under the performance cniena, the proportionate value of the accrued dwidends thereon
will be satishied as additional shares at the time of vesting

Dunng 1he year ended 31 March 2013, the required largets under live LTIP grants were as follows

EPS Target range (1} TSR Target range (1)

Year of grant Threshold (25%) vesting | Max {100%) vesting Threshold {(25%) vesting | Max (100%) vesting Quicome
2009 50%pa 90%pa Median Tap quariile Failed EPS/TSR

- Py S S P g oo - - —_~ ¥ L TL e - - T =T - e -_— L-'Jmﬁdmns'\._ -~
2010 85%pa 130% pa Median Tep quartile Falled EPS conditign

25 3% vested under the
TSR condition

2012 11 6%pa 18 1% pa Medizan Top quartile Live award

(1) Vesting «s on 2 shding scale between the minemum and maxmum ponts

Awards made under the 2009 grant lapsed, as boih the EPS and the TSR condiions were below the required minimum threshold target levels

The awards made under the 2010 grant will vest in May 2013 at a 12 65% vesting (evel hawing rnet the threshold TSR condiion The required EPS condilion
was below the required rminemum threshald target level

Share Matching Plan {SMP'}
Selected exgcutives may be invited 1o invest a portwon of their cash bonus in the acquisition of Company shares worth up to 25% of their pre-tax salary

Where such an investment 1s made, ihe executives will receive a grant of a matching award over shares in the Company with an equivalent value, which may
be exercised between 36 and 42 months following the date of grant subjeci to the achievement of certain EPS performance entena Further detail 15 prowided
1n the Remuneration Report on page 42

As al 31 March 2013, there were no outstandng optrons under this plan

Calcutatron of fair values

For equity-seliled share-based transactions fair values of share eptions awasded in the finangial year are measured at ihe date of grant af the eplion using a
share pneing oplion model Where the moded 1s dependent on the Company's TSR over a penod, the Monte Carlo moged 15 used m all other circumstances
the Black-Scholes model 15 used Non-market conditions, such as the Company meeting earnings per share targets are not incorporated into the calculaiion
of fair value at the grant date bul are reflected 1n the amount of compensatien expense accrued over the vesting perod The expected hie of oplions depends
on the behaviour of oplien holders, which 15 incotperaled inta ihe aplren mode! consistent with historic observable data

For cash-setited share-based transactions fair values of share aptigns awarded in the financial year are measured at each balance sheel date at the fair value
af the liathlity, with all changes immediatefy recognised n the Statement of comprehensive income Non-market conditions such as the Company meeting
earnings targets, awe not incorpotated wia the calculation of fair value at the grant date bui are reflected in the amount of compensatton expense aceued aver
ihe vesting penod The expected life of apilons 1s detemuned by reference 1o the contractual terms
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The far values calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the hmiatians of the option-pacing model used The
significant assumptions used to estimaie the fair value of the options granted in the financizl year were as follows

LTIP
Grani date 29/1/12
Share price at grant date £297%
Exercise price
Number of employees 6
Number of shares granied 271,884
Vesting pesnod (years) 3
Expected volatity 2819%
Option hife (years) 3
Expected life (years) 3
Risk-ree interes! rate 035%
Expected dividends expressed as drvidend yield 00%
Fair value per aption £251
Expected forfeiture (%) 203%

SAYE
19/07/12
£2 225
£18688
142
292,308
3

29 74%
3

3
059%
818%
2029
N/a

SAYE
19/07/12
£2 225
£18688
21

48 756
5
35092%
5

5
025%
818%
£0 34
N/a

The risk-free rate was determuned by reference lo the rate chitainable on UK government securiies (‘UK Gilts'y with matunties cammensurate with the expectad
term remairing for each award The expected volatility 1s estimated by considening the Company s histonc average share price volailly over similar perieds to
the expecied hie of the option under consideration In additian, the expected diwidend yield was based at the prevailing rates for the SAYE grants but 1s assumed

as zero for the LTIP grani given the dwidend equivalence’ ferm

Reconciliation of eption movements

7 reconcifidtion ot opfion mavements over The year io 31 Marci 20737 shgwii pelow™—" "~

Outstanding as at 1 Apnl
Granted

Lapsed

Exercised

Qutstanding as at 31 March

Exercisable at 31 Maich

Options are exercisable as follows

2013

Weighted

average

Weighted remaining

average life

Range of exgrcise Number expected

eXercise prees price ol shares years

£000- €0 99 £000 583,513 12

£100- €199 €187 309,300 29

£200-£299 £275 40,779 14
E3 00 - £399
£400 - £4 99

LRI & o i, D LE N T T e X
2013 2012
Weighted Weighted
average dverage
2013 exergise 2012 EXBICISE
Number price Numbe: pnce
1,284,740 £0 56 1 824,066 9075
613,948 £104 - -
{893,518) £0 56 (499,066) fin
(70,978) £z 27 {40,260) 240
934,192 £0 74 1284,740 {056
- - 47 092 £4 02
2mz
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
remamning Weighted remaining jemaning
Iite average life hife
contracted EXeICISe Number expecte contracled
years price of shares years years
81 000 1,021,744 07 77
31 - - - -
16 £243 215507 13 16
- £380 19,735 01 03
- £418 27 357 01 02

The weighted average share price durning the year for optioas exercised was £2 27 (2012 £2 58) The tolal credit for the year relating to employee equiy seltled
share-based payments was £0 1m credit (2012 £0 1m charge) Afer deferred tax the net credi was £0 1m {2012 £0 1m charge)

f
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25 Recongilration of profit to net cash ilow generated from operations

26

. e . T I T, rIme

B2 UK Mail Group pic

Profit for the year

Taxatien

Finance income receivable

Finance costs payable

Depreciaion and amortisation

Loss/(prefit) on dispesal of prapery, plant and equepment
Share-based payments

{Increase)/decrease n trade and other recevables
(Increase)/decrease in inventones
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
{Decrease)/inciease In provisions

Net cash llow generated from operations

Financial tnstruments and financeal nsks

Group Company
2013 2012 M3 2012
£m £m £m £m
135 G4 99 100
43 35 - -
{02) on (0 §) Q7
01 01 04 04
17 84 -
02 02 -
(01} 01 -
32) (68) n 333
{01) - - -
96 55 76 {32 8)
{07 15 - -
3 218 20 4 102

The Group's overall objeciive when managing finaneial nsk 1s to safequard its ability to continue as a going concernin order 1o provide returas for shareholders
and benehits to other siakeholders Risk management 1s camed out by 2 central treasury funchien unger wniten golicies approved by the Board Under the
supervision of the Group Frnance Director 1he Group Treasury function identifies and evatuates financial risks i close co-operation with the operating dvisians

The use of simple financial dervatives 15 considered in eider to hedge specific financial nsks where cost effective 1o de so The Group does not enter into or
trade hinancal instruments, including denvative financial instruments lor speculabive purpnses

J—— e e mmmeme =

o L T a TImoo .

H|sks are inherent inihe use of debl capial, nciuding interest rate nsk Addrionally the Group 15 1o ume!y exposed 10 E number ol other financial nsks |ncludlng

— vy

credil nsk, market nsk, iquidity nsk foreign exchange nisk and capilal nsk These are discussed below

The contractual matunty prohle of the Group's financial assels and habihties at 31 March 1s set out below The amounts disciosed are the contraclual
undiscounted cash flows and therefore include interest cash flows {forecast using LIBOR nierest rates as at 31 March in the case of floating rate financial assets
and iabiliies) The table also compares the book value and the fair value of the Group's bnancial assets and hatihties Fair value 1s the amount at which a
financial nstrument could be exchanged in an arm's Jenglh iransaction beiween informed and willing parties, oiher thana forced or hquidalion sale and excludes

accrued interest

Group Total Between Between
contractual one and two and
Book Fair cash Within two five Over five
value valug tlows one year years years years
At 31 March 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Trade receivables 521 521 521 521 -
Other recevables 31 31 31 31
Accrued income 61 61 61 61
Cash at bank and 1n hand 282 282 282 282
895 895 89 5 895
Financial habiihies
Finance leases {12) (12) (12) {08) (0 4) - -
Trade payables {397 (397) (39 7) (397) - -
Other payables (44) {4 4) (44) 44) - -
Amounts owed to franchises (L)) (19) (19) 19) - -
QOther taxes and soctal secunty payable {13 1) (131) (13 1) (131) - -
Accruals (151} {151) {151) {151) - -
(75 4) (75 4) (7154) (750 04 - -
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Tatal Between Between
contraclual one and two and
Book Farr cash Within two five Qver five
vatue value flows one year years years years
At 31 March 2012 £m m om om m m m
Frnancial assets
Tiade recervables 482 482 482 482 - -
Other receivables 22 22 22 22 - -
Accrued Income 72 12 72 72 - - -
Cash at bank and 1n hand 216 218 216 216 - - -
792 792 792 792 - - -
Financial habilies
Term loan {20 (20) (20 (10) (10} - -
Finance leases (12) (12) {12) {0B) (04) - -
Trade payables (372 (372 (372) (372) - - -
Olher payables (09) 09 {09) 09) - - -
Amounts owed lo franchises {18} (18) (18 (18) - - -
Other laxes and social secunty payable (12 8) (12 8) {128) {128) - - -
Accruals {113) (113) (113 {113) - -
67 2) (67 2) (67 2) (658) (14) - -
Company Total Between Between
contractual one and two and
e e T BT S T i T M s Withn T we T fwe = Over five
value value flows one year years years years
At 31 March 2013 £m Em £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash a1 bank and n hand 2513 263 263 263 -
263 263 263 263 - -
Financtal habilties
Amounts owed fo
substdiary undertakings {7 6) {7 6) (76) {76) . -
{7 6) {7 6) {7 6) (76) - -
Total Between Between
contractuat one and two and
Bock Fair cash Within wo five Qver five
value valug {lows ane yeas years years years
At 31 March 2012 fm fm £m fm £m tm £m
Financial assets
Amcunis due fiom
subsidiary undertakings 31 31 31 31 - - -
Cash at bank and I1n hand 175 175 1758 175 - - -
206 206 206 206 - - -
Financial iabilties
Terr loan (20 (20} 20) {10y {1q0) - -
(20) 20) {20) {10) (10) - -
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All financial assets and liabiliies staled at far value n the table above have carsying amounis where the lair value component 1s a level iwo fair value
measurement Level two fair value measurements use inputs other than quoted pnces that are observable for the relevant asset or hability, either directly or
indirectly

The fair value of the bank loan approximates to the value reported in the balance sheet since 1t caries a floabing rale where paymenis are resel 1o market rates
al intervals less than ong year The vatue of finance leases 1s based by discounting the contracted cash flows at prevailing (nterest rates

All financial assels and liabilibies arg stesling denominated
Credit nisk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group 1f a custemer or counterparty ta a financial instrument fails to meel 1ts contractual obligations These nisks
anse pnncipally from the credit exposure to trade recevables, as well as from cash and cash equivalents

The maxtmum exposure 1o credit nsk is represented by the book value of each financial asset as recorded n the batance sheet

Cashand cash equivalents held by the Group include bank balances and short term deposils with a maturity of ane week o: less The credit nsk on these liquid
funds 1s imited because in all cases ihe counterparties are banks wih high credit ratings confvmed by infernational credil-raling agencies

The Graup has no significant cencentrations of credit nsk Concentrations of credit nisk o trade receivables are mited dug tg the Group 5 customer base being
large and unrelated, with no one customer acoounting for more than 6% of liade recevables The Group has implemented policies that require appropnale credit
checks an polential custemers before sales commence and stnet credit control of oulstanding amounts Trade credit insurance 15 employed to protect any
sigmificant exposure o bad debls

Trade recervables that are neither past due nor imparred are expecled to be fully recovered as there 1s no recem history of defauli or any indrcations that the
deblors will nol meet their payment ebligations At the year end there are na trade recewvables (2012 none) whose terms have been renegotiated and would
atherwise be past due of impaired

Impaired recevablas mainly relate to debtors in financial difficulty where defaults 1n payments have occurred hability for payment is chsputed or debtors have
- e . Enigied iAl0 Danaiupicy. Trade secaivables are ampaied when et is obgdive evidence thai ihe Group willaokbaeabls o colect-all amountsdue sciading— -
1o the onginal terms However, the Group expects a poriron of these racevables to be recovered

The Group does not hold any material collateral as securry and no assets have been acquired 1hiough the exercise of any collateral previously held

The Group's trade recewvables are stated after allowances for bad and doubtful debis an analysis of which 1s as follows

2013 2012

£m m

At 1 Apnl 02 02

Armount released through administraiive expenses (0 1) -

At 31 March 01 02
As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of lrade receivables before provisicns 1s as follows

2013 2012

£m tm

Less than 30 days 519 478

Between 30 - 60 days 01 04

Between 60 - 90 days 01 -

More than 90 days 01 02

522 48 4
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As at 31 March 2013, irade recevables of £0 1m (2012 £0 2m) were :mpaired The amount of the provision was £0 1m at 31 March 2013 {2012 £0 2m)
The ageing of these impaired trade recervables 1s as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

Less than 30 days . .
Between 30 - 60 days - 01
Between 60 - 90 days - .
More than 90 days 01 01
01 02

As of 31 March 2013, trade recevables of £7 8m (2012 £7 6m} were past due but nol impaired These relate 1o a number of independent custamers tor whom
there 1s no recent history of default and there are no indications that they will not meel their payment obhgatians in respect of the trade receivables recognised
in ihe balance sheel that are past due and unprovided The ageing analysis of these trade receivable 1s as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Less than 30 days 74 72
Between 30 - 60 days 01 03
Between 60 - 90 days 01 -
Mare than 90 days 02 01
78 76
At 31 March 2013, there were Cril (2012 £mil) trade recevables impaired bul not past due for payment
None {2012 none) of the other classes of financial assets within trade and oiher recewables contain wmpared assels
T- =~ 75 7 7 Credit quaity of cash a! bank and shart-ferm deposits - =7 = - e L A= EE
The credd quality of cash at bank and shorl-term deposits 15 as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
Current Rating (Moody s)
Al - 196
A2 282 20
Total 282 218
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Market risk

Overall, since the vast majonty of the Group's actvities are provided to UK businesses the fortunes of the Group are linked to the general health of the UK
economy The Graup's exposure 1S imied by beng spread acioss a wide range of cuslomers No customer accounis for more than 6% of revenue

Price nsk

Royal Mail access costs represent a significant cost to the Group Price aisk i1s imiied as Ofcom 15 mandated to maintain sufficient headroom between retail
and access pnices, such ihat competition 1s encouraged within the mail industry

Fuel 15 @ significant cost to the Group, alihough 1t canstitutes less than 3% of iotal costs Price nisk is Minimised as sgmificant nceases i the fuel price can
be passed ontd the majoriy of customers via & fuel surcharge meehanism common throughout the express delivery indusiry

Interest rate risk

The interest nsk prefile of the Group's interesi-earmng financial assets and interest-beaning financial labihities at 31 March 2013 was

2013 2012
Fixed rate Flpating Fixed rate Flgating
financial rate financral fingncial rate financia!
Book value assets/ assels/ Book assets/ assels/
total (habilties) {liakulries) value total {liabilities) {hiatuhbies)
fm £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assels

Cash and cash equivalents 282 - 282 216 - 216
282 - 282 216 - 216

Financial habiities
hinancedeasgee=- -~ T smmrmoors memnr (1) m 2 2-12) -2 - ol L L dFDV D B =l -l -
Teem loan - - {20) - {20
{12) 12) 132) {12) (20}

Group Treasury monitor cash and cash equwalent balances on a daily basis, placing surplus funds with approved hinancial institutions generally overnight
Interest receivable is based on a raie inked 1o the base rate The Group nas addionally made a numiber of longer term deposiis where the interest rate recevable
has been agreed on inception, with the menies being able to be called back at smmediate nolice without penalty

The interest rate payable on finance leases 15 fixed at the incepiton of any agreement
The nterest rate on the term loan 15 based on a floating rate linked to LIBOR

A change of +00 basis poinis in the average interest rale recalvable and payable over the financial year would have increased or decreased profit before tax and
equily for the year as follows

2013 2012
Profit Profit
before tax Equity befare iax Equity
£m £m £m £m
Increase of 100 bp wn the average rate recervable/{payable) n2 02 01 01
Decrease of 100 bp n the average rate recevable/{payablz) 02 02) - -
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Liquidity nisk

The Group's business activities tagether with the factors likely to aftect ils fulue developrment, performance and pasiion are set out in the Business Review on
pages 4 to 11 The financial position of the Group, 11s cash fiows, iquidity position and treasury nsk management approach are described in the Financial Review
on pages 12 to 15, and is bargwing faclities detaled n note 28

Ligudity nsk s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meel 1s financial obiigations as they fall due

The Board reviews both the leng and short-tarm financing requirements of the Group to ensure that there are sufficient available funds both for the day-to-day
aperations of the Group and for planned capital nvestments The Group has considerable nancral resources together with long-lerm coniracts with a aumber
of customers and suppliers across different geographic areas and indusines Asa consequence, the directors believe that the Group 1s wetl placed 1o manage
is business nisks successfully despite the current ecanomic cutlook

As at 3i Marich 2013 the Group had an undrawn committed overdraft facility of £5m (2012 £5m) s place untl 30 June 2013, and an undrawn cammitted
mongy market facihty of £7m {2012 £7m) in place until 30 Novemnber 2014

Foreign exchange nisk

The Group tncurs fereign currency fisks on sales, purchases and cash denorminated it curiencies other than Stering The Group 15 not significantly exposed to
the effects of fluctuations in exchange rates since all income 15 1n sterling and costs denominated 1n foreign currency (principally the Euro) represent less than
0 3% of all expenditure

There would have been no impact on profit belfore 1ax or equity in erther the year ended 31 March 2013 or 31 March 2012, had Sterling strengthened or
weakened 10% agans! the Euin

Capttal nisk

The Group's objeclives when managing capiial are to safequard the Group's abality to continue as a going concesn n order 1o provide returns for sharehalders
ang henefits far other stakeholders and ta maintarn an optimal capital strucluee 1o reduce the long-taem cost of capual

Inarder to maiain or adjust the capital structure the Group may ad)just the amount of divdends pard to shareholders retum caprial 1o shareholders, 15sue new
shares or sell asseis to reduce debt

27 " Operating lease commitments “minimom fease payments - - T e eEETTE T T = -

At 31 March, the Group had total commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows

Group Group

2013 2012
Vehicles Vehicles
Land and pant and Land and plant and
burldings equipment buildings equipment
£m £m em £m
Within 1 year 52 54 4% 61
Between 1 and 2 years 40 28 43 47
Between 2 and 5 years 59 26 87 21
Afler 5 years 35 08 44 -
At 31 March 186 116 223 129

The Group leases various properties under non-cancellable operaling lease zgreements The leases have vanous terms escalation clauses and renewal nghts
The Group also leases vehicles and oféice equipment under non-cancellable operating lease agreements which are generally negouiated for an average lesm of
faur years during which me the rentals are fixedt

The total future sub-lsase payments receivable refating to the above operating leases amounted to 2ail (2012 £nil)

The Group sublets one of 11s properfies (see note 12) under a nan-canceflable eperaing lease agreement, due to expire on 23 June 2014 At 31 March, the
future mimimum lease payments receivable were as follows

2013 20012

£m fm

Within 1 year 03 a3
Between 1 and 2 years 01 03
At 31 March 04 06

Report & Accoums 87




Notes to the Financial Statements

28

29

30

B8 UK Mail Group plg

Contingent babilities

The Company has guaranteed bank and other boriowings of subsidiary underiakings 1n a cross-guarantee agreement on an undrawn Group bostowing facihly
amounting fo £12m (2012 £12m)

The Greup has a bank guaraniee agreement with Lloyds TSB Bank ple, under which the bank provides a facility which allows the Group to request that the bank
13sue guarantees to third party suppliers for general business purposes The maximum total facility valug1s £10m (2012 £10m) At 31 March 2013, upon the
fequest of the Group, the bank has 1ssued a guarantee with a value of £8m {2012 £8m) fo a third pariy supplier of a subsidiary company

The Group has a documentary credit facility with Lioyds TSB Bark plc of £1 7m (2012 £1 7m}, 1n respect of letters of credit opgned with the bank

The Group 15 subject 1o Iigatien from ime 10 ttme as a resull of its activiltes The Group esiablishes provisions in conneciion with hiigalion where il has a
present legal ¢ constructive obligation as a result of past events, and where it 15 more likely ihan not that an oulflow of resources will be required to seltle the
obligation and the amgunt can be reliably esimated Since these provisions, which ate reflecied in the Group's consciidated financial stalements represent
esbmates the final resclutton of any such maiters could have a matenal effect on the Group's operaling resulis and cash flows for a garbgular reporting period

Capital and ether fmancial commitments
There were np ouistanding capital commitmenis at 31 March 2013 or 31 March 2012

Analysis of net cash

Group
At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March
2Mm Cash Flow Other 2012 Cash Flow Other 2013
m fm fm £m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and 1n hand 22 4 {08) - 216 66 - 28 2
Total cash 224 {08) - 216 66 . 232
Debt due within one year {10) 10 (19) 10 10 -
Debi due-alles one-year -—— = 20— - T e ~ 40 - S0} - sl s L e e mes
Finance leases {20 08 - (12) 08 (D 8) 12)
Total debt {50) 18 - 32) 28 {08) (12)
Net cash 174 10 - 184 94 (0 8} 270
Company
At 31 March At 31 March At 31 March
201 Cash Flow QOther 2012 Cash Flow Other 2013
{m tm £m £m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and 1n hand 179 (0 4) - 175 88 - 26 3
Total cash 178 04) - 175 88 - 263
Cebi due within one year (10Q) 10 (10) 10 10
Debl due after one year (2Q) - 10 (10) 10
Tetal debt (30) 10 - {20) 20
Net cash 149 06 - 155 108 - 263
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Related party transactions

The Group has 1derified ine dicciors of the Company, parties related to ihe directors, 1ts key management, its ESOT (see nole 23) and 1Is subsidianes {note
33) as related parties for the purpose of IAS 24 'Relaied party disclosures'

Material iransactions and year end balances with related parties were as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Dividends paid by UK Mail Group ple and receved in a beneftcial capaciy by
- the Direciors of UK Mail Group ple 1,293 1,295
- parties related 1o the direclors of UK Mail Group plc 3,338 3339
- PDMR’s of UK Mail Group ple (ather than above) 7 7
Dividends received by the ulimate pareni company from subsidianes 10,000 10,000
Armounts due from subsidiary underiakings 10,487 3,088
Amounts gwed to subsidiary undertakings {18,128) {50}
Interest free loan to ESQT (see note 23) 3,438 3599

Transachons between the parenl and subsiciary largely compnse finance transactions in respect of the groups cash pooling arrangement

Amounis due from and owed 1o subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, bear interest at a rate linked to LIBOR and are repayable on demand

P Kare a direclor of the company and members of his close family and certain farily trusts the benefitianes of which are persons connecled with P Kare,
conirol directly and indirectly 45 7% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company For details of substantial sharehotders see the Directors Report on page 39
Key management compensatien 1s disclosed in note 6

Past balance sheet events

There are no post balance sheel evenis

Principai subsidtaries ———o= == mw oo m - L R b et e T ——— e

At 31 March 2013 the Company had the foltewing pnncipal whelly owned trading subsidianes all aperating withun the UK

Percentage of nominal value

Couniry of of ardinary shares held by
Subsidiary Natuse of busmess Incorparation the Group
UK Mail Lid Collection and delivery of parcels and mal England 100%
UK Paltets Lig Collection and delvery seraces for palletised goods England 100%

The Company holds 100% of the voting nights of each of the above subsidiaries
The financial resulis of all of the subsidianes histed above ate included withen the canselidated report and accaunts
Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group's accounting pohcies are set out 10 nole 1 to these financial statemenis Management 15 required to exercise significant judgement in the apphication
of these pohcies Areas which management believes require the most critical accounting judgements are as follows {apart from those policies invalveng
estimation which are outined in (b) below)

a) Crihical ascounting judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
Exceptional tems

The Direciors consider that items of income or expense which are matenal by virtue of therr nature ang amount should be disclosed separately if the financial
statemenis ace lo fairly present the hnancial performance of the Group The Directors label these ilems colleclively as ‘exceplional items'

Determuning those transactions which are o be considered exceplianal 15 often a subjective matter However, circumstances that the Directors believe would
give nise 1o excephional items, requinng separate disclosure woutd include,

{1) disposal of non-current assets where the profil or loss represents 5% ar mote of the Group's profit before tax,
() disposal of invesiments,

(s} orgamisational or restruciunng programmes
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Leases

In determining whether a lease 1S a finance lease or an operating lease, management 1s required 10 evaluate where the substantial nsks and rewards reside
Where management conclude that the arrangement constitutes a inance lease, then 1l 15 necessary 1o both calculate the proportien of the payment which shauld
be treated as finance cost and capital repayment, and lo judge the hikely pertod of use a1 the inrception of the agreement

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Esbimales and Judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and other factors, including expectations of fuiure events that ase
behieved to be reasonabte undey the circumstances  Management makes estimates and assumphans about the Tuture, whech witl, by definiion, seldom equal
the related actual results The estmates and assumptions that have a sigmficant risk of causing a matenal adjustment ta the carrying amounts of assels and
liabilies withia the nexd financial year are discussed below

Usetul economic lives of property, plant and equipment and mtangible assets
Deprecialion of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of infangible assets are charged so as 1o wiite down the value of those assets to their residual

value over therr respective useful tives The Directors are required 1o assess both the useful economic lives of the assets so that depreciation or amortisation
15 charged on a systematic and proporlionate basis, and ther probable residual values

Recoverability of trade receivables

Trade receivables are recorded net of prowsions for bad debts and credit notes In evaluating the required provisian, the Directors cansider debor specific
circumstances, in addrion fo fustornical trends

Goodwill impairment

Goodwill impairment 15 tested for at least annually, by calculating the estimated recoverable amount Irom each cash-generating unit (CGU') on a value-in-use
basis In perfpiming the test management needs 1o assess and consider,

{1} the Nikely sales and cost growth assumptions used by the CGU,

{11} the sector specific short- and long-term growth rates, as well as that n the UK economy as a whole

b ] el R e -

" {1) the pie-tax tiscaumt rale applicable o the Company
Pravisions

The Group has provided for the estimated cosl of making good properties on cessatien of the lease This requires the Directors & make an assessment of the
potential cosl of the werk as al the reposting date However these costs will nol be immediately incurred and on n on-going basis, the Group maintains s
properties through a programme of repair and renewal which may sesult in changes required in the carrying value of these provisions

The Group has previously provided for the gstimated costs of re-organisation (see note 3) which involved making significant esimates for employee termination
costs onerous lease and other exit costs, and 4o reahisable vatues of assets made redundani or cbsolete Should the actual amounts dufer from these estimates
future results could be materially impacted
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Five Year Summary of Results

2013 2012~ 201

£m tm £m

Revenue 4754 4250 3958
Cost of szles (420 7) (380 4) (3473

Gross prodn 547 486 485
Admnistrative expenses (37 0) (367 (323

Dperating prohit 177 129 162
Net finance income/{costs) 01 - 01

Prefit on ordinary actvities before 1aation 178 129 161
Taxation (43) i35) (49)

Prefit for the financial year 135 94 16
Earmings per share - basic 247 173p 212p
Dwidends per share - interim paid and hinal proposed 18 Bp 182p 182p

* Administrative expenses and taxation are stated inclusive of £2 2m cost and £0 6m exceptional credit iespecively

* ™ Atmirisiave SRPeENses and taxation 3 Saled nclushve of £174rrand £ 9f exteptiondl cost§rebpsaily == =5 T -

i S

2010 2009~
£m £m
3852 3857
{333 5) (332 4)
517 533
(338} 3 n
179 162
{01) 02)
178 160
51) {7
127 8%
234p 16 5p
18 2p 17 2p
TTIASTII 0t S af ha-

The calculatien of earmings per share for ihe five years ended 31 March 2013 1s based on the fallowing weighted numbers of shares n 1ssue

31 March 2013
31 March 2012
31 March 2011
31 March 2010
31 March 2009

54,632,719

54 586 755
54522 247
54 245 126
54,049 420
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Shareholder Infarmation
Registrars and Transfer Office
Equiniti

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

Wesl Sussex

BN9G 6DA

Tel 0871 384 2799 or 0871 384 2255 text phone for shareholders with heaning difficulties

The call centre provides nformalton and assistance on register queries hetween 8 30am and 5 30pm, Monday to Friday excluding UK pudlic holidays
Calls to this number are charged at 8p per minute from a BT landline Mobile and other providers’ charges may vary

International callers ~44 (0) 121 415 7047

www shareview co uk

Financial calendar
26 June 2013

28 June 2013

10 July 2013

10 July 2013

26 July 2013
November 2013 ~
January 2014 ~

*provisional dates

Sharegift

Ex-dividend date — final dividend

Record date to be ebgible for the final dividend

AGM/Interim Management Statement - Qir 1

Annual General Meeting {commences 12 00 roon)

Payment of the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013
Results for the half year to 30 September 2013

Paymant of interim dwidend for the year ending 31 March 2014

Sometimes shareholders have only a small iolding of shares which may be uneconomical 1o sell Shareholders who wish to donate these shares 1o charity
¢an do so through ShareGift, an independent charity share donation scheme (registered charity no 1052686) Further mfgrmation about ShareGift may be
obtaned from ShareGiit on 020 7930 3737 or al www shaiegiit org

- - TN LI T L T LT ey L — == . . —m T T Tmy | T e T T g <ol il gl dys o = e - i

Shareholder securty

Shareholders are advised te be cauticus about any unsolicied financial advice, offers to buy shares at a discount or offers of free company reports Further
Information can be found at www moneyadviceservice org uk

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
The Atrium

1 Harefield Road

Uxbridge

UB8 1EX

Registered Office

Express House

464 Berkshire Avenue
Slough

Berkshire

SL14pPL

Tel 01753 706 070

Emaill investor@ukmail com
www ukmail com

Company No 02800218

Forward looking statements

Stockbrokers and Financial Advisers
Investec Investment Banking

2 Gresham Sirest

London

EC2V 7QP

The Annual Report contains certain statements about the future outlook for the Group Although the Company beligvas that the expeciations are based on ieasonable
assumplions, any statements abeut future outiook may be influenced by factors that could cause actual outcomes and results 1o be matenially different
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